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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The Accourting Officer is required by the Municlpal Finance Management Act {Act B6 of 2003}, to maintain adequate accounting
records and is responalble for the content and integrity of the consolidated financlal statements and related financial infarmation
included in this report. it is the responsibllity of the Accounting Officer to ensura that the consolidated financial statements fairly
present the stata of affalrs of the Municipality as al the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows
for the perlod then ended. The external auditors are angaged to express an Independant opinicn on the consolidated financial
statements and will be given unrestricted access to all financial racords and elated data.

The consolidated financlal statements have been preparad in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidetines and directives issuad by the Accounting Standards Board.

The consolidated financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting polices consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Accounting Officer acknowlsdges that he Is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control astablished by
the Munlcipality and place considerable Importance on malntaiting a strong control environment. To enable the Accounting
Officer to maet these responsibilities, the Accounting Officer sets standards for internal control almad at reducing the risk of
error or deficlt n & cost effective manner, The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effactive accounting procedures and adequate segregation of dutles fo ensure an acceptable level of risk. These
controls are monitored throughout the Municipality and alt employees are 1equired to maintain the highest ethloal standards in
ensuring the Municipality's business Is canducted In & mannar that in all reasonabls circumstances is abave reproach. The focus
of risk management In the Municlpality Is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forme of risk across the
Municipatity, While operating risk cannot be fully sliminated, ihe Municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate Infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavioltt are applied and managed within predetermined procedures

and constralnts.

The Accounting Officer fs of the opinion, based oh the Information and explanations given by manageament that the system of
internal contral provides reasonable assurance that the financlal records may be ralied on for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. However, any system of Intemal financial contral can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
agalnst material misstatement or dofictt,

“The Accounting Officer has reviewed the Municipality's cash Row forecast for the year to 30 June 2020 and, In the light of this
review and the current financlal position, he Is satisfied that the Municipalily has or has access fo adequate resources fo
continue in operational existence for the foraseeable future.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Munlcipality Is & going concem and that the Greater

Tzaneen Municipality has neither the Intention nor the need fo liquidate or curtall materially the scale of the Muntcipallty.

Although the Accaunting Cilcer Is primarily responsible for the financial affalrs of the Municipallty, the municipality's extemal
auditors are responsible for expressing an opinion on the nanclal statements.

The consolidated financlal statements set out on pages 7 to 138, which have been prepared on the golng concem basls, were
: ountin Ofﬁcey 30 September 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

Sfhr 09—

Municipal Manager
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Accounting Officer's Report

Tha Accounting Officar submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2018,
1. infroduction
Maln business and operations

The Greater Tzaneen Municlpality is situated in the eastern quadrant of the Limpopo Province within the Mopanl District
Municipality Area of Jurisdiction. it comprlses a land area of approximataly 3240 km, and extends from Haenertsburg In the
Wast, te Rubbervale in the East, and just South of Modjadjiskloof in the North, to Trichardtsdal in the South.

The long-term goal of Greater Tzaneen Municipality is to ensure that the Municipality is financlally sustainable, to stimuiate
ecanomic growth and to improve the quality of life of all residents In the area of |urisdiction.

To achieve these goals, Council approved the 2018/2019 Budget on 25 May 2018. The Budget, which [s Informed by the
service delflvery needs of the community as captured in the Munlcipality's Integrated Developmsnt Plan, demonstrates the
Municipality's commilment to improve efforts to limit non-prioity spending and direct spending towards the Municipality's
Electricity Network. Tha objectives of combalting electriolly service interrupiions are high on the Municipality's aganda and the
short-term objectives are:

= The upgrading of the Municipality's Electricily Network to ensure the provision of an uninterrupted electricity service.

*  Dala cleaning and improvement of the Municlpality's Revenue Collaction.

* A sfrong adminlstration to ensure a stable working environment through which future development can be

established.

The 2018/2019 Budget of the Municipallty was amended by means of the following two Adjustment Budgets through the year:
*  Adjustment Budget approved by the Gouncil on the 27 February 2019.
+  Adjusiment Budget approved by the Councii on 27 June 2019 fo accomodale the SETA grant.

2. Operational responasibility

ltis the responsibility of the Municipality to present the statemant of financial position, statement of financlal parformance and
cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2019 In accordance with applicable feglsiation which Includes the standards of

GRAP,

In an attempt to obtaln a elean audit opinion for the 2018/2019 financial year the Municipality has institutionalised the concept of
operation clean audit (OPCA) te the extent that weakly meetings are held by the Munlcipailly's Audit Steering Commiitee o
address previous audit findings and year-end activitles.

3. Review of aperating results

This review highlights the Municipality's performance for the past year but does not In any way attempt to provide detall of the
performance. Full details appear In the annual financial statements.

Overview of the Municlpality's results;

The Municipality's overall actuai oparating results agalnst the comresponding approved budget figures are scheduled in Appendix
E1 of the annual financlal statements.

Statement of Financlal Performance

The Statement of Financial Performance reflects a summary of Income and expenditure items, whils the segmental operating
Tesufts per service are shown in appandix D of the annual financial stalements, Over the past financtal year the operating
revenue Increased from R 4 121 251 304 to R 1 140 964 387 while the operating expenditure Increased from R 1 196 840 744 to
R 1208 627 000,

With regards to expendiiure management the cost containment measures approved by cabinet on 23 Oclober 2013 has baan
annually updated from 2014/2015 through the budget process and are baing complied with.

The actual expenditure amounts to R 1 208 827 000 compared to the budgeted amount of R 1 192 627 125, The overspending
is largety due to overspending on the following votes;

- Proviston for bad debt

~ Roads lransferred to RAL

- Legal fees.
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Accounting Officer's Report

The expenditue amount inciudes R 209 024 073 for salartes, R 42 157 908 far repalrs and maintenance and R 348 443 868 for
the purchase of bulk electricily.

The Municipality reported a net operating deficit of R (67 864 220} for the financial year under review, (2018 R (67 864 220)).

The maln revenue sources of the Municipality are:
- Property rates;
- Service charges and
- Government grants and subsidies.

Whilst the highest expenditure items are:
- Employee related costs;
- Bulk purchases;
- Debt impairment;
- Dapreciation and amortisation;
- Repalrs and maintenancs;
- Contracted services;
- ‘Fransfers and subsidies pald.

Statement of Financial Paslion

Councli has embarked on implementing a range of ravenus callecting stratagies to optimise the collection of debt awed by
consumers. The outstanding consumer deblors as at 30 June 2019 amounts to R 470 918 091 (2018: R 426 306 198) of which
R 368 974 237 (2018: R 288 985 (74) were impaired. Indigent debtors to the amount of R - (2018: R 9 878 766) have been
written off as uncoliectable, The total provislon for Impaiment amounts to R 368 974 237 (2018: R 288 985 074).

Unspent conditianal grants and recelpts increased from R 3 955 460 in the previous financial year to R 5 083 273 in the current
financial year with 2 89.80% spending on the Municlipal Infrastructure Grant,

The outstanding loans which have heen taken-up to finance capital projects amount to R 133 455 817 (2018: R 103 181 579)
and the detail of this amount is contalned in Note 14 and Appendix A,

4. Golng concern

The consolidated financial statements have bean prepared on the basis of accounting policles applicable to a going concern,
This basis presumes that funds will be avallable to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and seltlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commiments will ocour [n the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the Municlpality to continue as a going concern s dependent on & number of factors. The most significant of these
is that the Accounting Officer confinue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the Municipality.

5. Subsequent events

The Accounting Officer is not aware of any matter or clrcimstance arising since the end of the financlal year,

6. Accounting Officer

Name Nationality
BS Matlala South Afrlcan
7. Auditors

Auditor General of South Africa will continus In office for the next financial pertod.




Report of the Auditor General
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019
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Economic entity GControliing entity
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Restated® Restated”
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 3 18 162 335 19 164 420 18 162 335 19 164 420
Operating lease asset 6 162 382 173 357 152 382 173 357
Receivables from exchange transactions 7 261 219 338 233724774 261 212 868 233 719 455
Recelvables from non-exchange transaclions & 37 553 080 43 961 106 36 833 080 43981106
Consumer debtors 8 101 843 854 137 321 124 01 943 864 137 321 124
Cash and cash equivalents 9 42 450 240 B 056 255 42 033 011 7 490 665
AB1 481 228 442 401 036 460 337 530 441 830 127
Non-Curient Assets
investment proparty 10 181 377 053 181 377 053 181 377 053 181377 053
Properly, plant and equipmerd 11 1455343 521 1 486 460 143 1466 227 822 1486 313 622
‘Intangible assets 12 1135137 1606 954 1136137 1603 468
Heritage agsols 13 195 000 195 000 195 600 196 000
Other financial assets 4 31 525083 26 887 399 31 625083 26 887 399
1669 675 794 1 696 526 549 1 669 460 095 1 696 376 442
Total Assets 2431 067 023 2138 927 566 2429797 626 2138 208 669
Liabllitles
Current Llabiiitles
Other financial abllities 14 22 810651 10 725 007 22 810 851 10726 007
Finance lease obligation 15 2978 540 824 306 2978 540 824 306
Payables from exchange transactions 16 228 316 091 208 079 431 227 625 697 207 865 083
VAT payable 17 46 796 765 42 373 166 39 960 827 35 353 082
Consumer deposils 18 27 068 007 26 B53 463 27 088 007 26 858 463
Unspent conditionat grants and receipls 18 65083273 3 956 480 5083273 39865 460
Provisions 20 948 670 445724 848 670 445724
334 001 997 293 261 557 326 475 565 287 027 106
Non-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilitles 14 110 645 166 02 456 672 110 645 166 02 456 572
Finance lease obligation 15 3 551 484 602 667 3 561 484 802 667
Employee benefit obligation 21 81474678 83 821 623 81474678 83 821523
Provisions 20 5089 171 4 626 520 5080171 4 626 520
200 760 499 181 507 282 200 760 499 181 507 282
Total Liabilities 534 762 496 474 768 839 527 236 064 468 534 387
Net Assefs 1 596 294 527 1664 158 746 1 602 561 561 1669672182
Accumulated surplus 1 596 2984 527 1864 158 746 1 602 6561 561 1669672 182
* See Note 62
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Economic entily Controlling entity
Flgures in Rand Nota(s) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Restated* Restated*

Revenue
Revenue from exchanhge transactions
Service charges 22 486 306 412 482 612 518 486 306 412 482 612 618
Rental of facilities and equipment 2132853 1781896 2132 863 1781 8068
Interest recelved (trading) 55 17 826 063 18 395 501 17 828 053 18 395 501
Agency services 9 254 073 7 988 116 9254 073 7988 116
Licences and pemits 1020674 1005 867 1020674 1005 867
Other income 23 27 601 807 30768 310 27 601 807 30 768 310
interest raceived - Invastment 56 9639 044 4477 920 9615814 4427 275
Total revenue from exchange 553 780 916 647 030 128 553 757 686 546 979 483
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Taxatlon revenue
Property rates 24 400 180412 99 289 523 109 160 412 99 289 523
Propeity rates - penalties imposed 24 10 022 809 8203616 10022 809 B 203616
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsldies 25 432 583 934 428 692 119 432 583 934 428 692 119
Grants SETA 2 898 502 - - -
Public contributions and donations 58 110 887 49 272 110 887 49272
Fines, penalties and forfells 56 32 189 438 37 986 646 32189 439 37 986 646
Administration and project management 217 388 - - -
Total revenue from non-exchange 587 183 471 574 221 178 584 067 581 674 221 1786
transactions
Total revenue 27 1140984 387 1121 261 304 1137 825 267 1121 200 659
Expenditure
Empioyes relatad costs 28 298 024 073 285 057 089 295 232 465 282 016 266
Remuneration of counciliors 29 27 0850 526 25 383 568 26 136 302 24 432 412
Depreciation and amortisation 59 127 793 108 127 698 817 127 724 087 127 654 038
Impairment loss/ reversal of impairments 31 4399 272 2839 900 4399272 2839900
Finance costs 32 11 973 780 11 974 289 11 973 780 11974 260
Lease rentals on operating lease 508 833 b12 649 - -
Debt impairment 60 123718 683 114 324 652 123718 684 114 324 552
Collaction costs 600 321 1770028 600 321 1770028
Repalrs and malntenance 33 42 157 906 44 932 114 42 157 908 44 932 114
Bulk purchases 34 348 443 869 325 455 993 348 443 869 325 455 993
Contracted services 35 51 435 443 48 050 548 61 435 443 48 050 548
Transfers and subsidias 36 50 207 361 112 420 696 50 247 361 112 420 698
General expanses ar 119 222 839 96 222 521 120 614 821 98 700 950
Total expenditure 1206627000 1196640744 1202734281 1194671 766
Operating deficit (665 662 612) {75 389 440) (64909 014) - (73 371107)
Loss on disposalf write off of properly, plant 57 (2 201 607) (25 924 361) (2 201 607) (25 924 361)
and aquipment
Fair value adjustments 54 - 71004 300 - 11004 300

(2 201 607) {14 920 081) {2 201 607) (14 920 061)
Deflclt for the year {67 B84 220) {20 309 501) {67110 821) {88 291 168)

* Sea Nole 62
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Note Accumulated Total net
Flgures In Rand surplus assets
Economic entity
Opering balance as previously raported 4793 005 212 1793 005 212
Adjustments
Prior year adjustmanis 62 (38 536 965) (38 536 965)
Balance at 01 July 2017 as resfated” 1754 488 247 1 754 488 247
Changes In net assets
Surplus for the year (90 300 501) (90 308 501)
Total changes (80 309 501} (90 308 B01)
Opening balance as previously reported 1707 827 104 4 707 827 104
Adjustmants
Prior year adjustments 62 {43 668 357) (43 668 357}
Restatod® Balance at 01 July 2018 as restated” 1 664 168 747 1 664 158 747
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year (67 884 220) (87 864 220)
Totat changes (67 864 220) (67 864 220)
Balance at 30 June 2019 1606 204 527 1596 204 627
Note(s)
Controiling entity
Opening balance as previously reported 1793822770 § 793822770
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments 62 (35 859 420) (35 859 420)
Balance at 01 July 2017 as restated* 1757 963 360 1 757 963 3650
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year (88 291 168} (88 291 168)
Total changes (88 291 1G8) (88 291 168)
Opening balance as previously reported 1709 548 082 1 709 548 092
Adjustments
Prlor year adjusiments a2 (39 875 910} (39 875 910)
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2018 as restated* 1 669 672 182 4 669 672 182
Changes In net assets
Surplus for the year (67 110621} (87 110621)
Total changes {67 110 621} (87 110 621)

Balance at 30 June 2018
Note(s)

1 602 561 581

1 602 561 661

* Sae Note 62
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Cash Flow Statement

Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2019 2018 2019 2018
Restated* Reslated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Recelpts

Taxation 88 038 382 79408 169 89 038 362 79 408 169

Sale of goods and services 582 169 438 507 320 781 582 170 690 507 291 775

Grants 482 259 885 491 098 263 473 029 212 485 586 603

Interest income 55 9 630 (44 4 477 920 9615814 4427 275

1163 106 729

1082 305 123

1163 853 578

1076 713812

Payments
Employea costs (328 421 445) (310842 240) (323715 602) (306 850 259)
Suppliers {716 362 583} (716 838 638) {711 701 925) {715 206 398)
Finance costs 32 {10 961 350) {11 107 653} {10981 350) {11 107 653)
Transfer of property, plant and equipment 11 64 509 821 75 728 464 64 500 821 75728 484
{non-cash Hem)

{991235657) (963060 065)  (981869056) (957 436 846}
Net cash flows from operating activities 38 171 871 172 119 245 0568 171 984 922 119 277 966
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and eguipmentl il (167 726 334) (125 483 419) (167 691 723) (126 380 561)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and 1 876 890 28691 366 676 890 2691366
equipment
Sale of Investment property 10 - 570 000 - 570 000
Purchase of other intangible assels 12 {154 938) (1150 797) (154 938} (1150 797}
Increase from sale of financial assels (4 637 684) 955 966 (4 637 684) 955 986
Net cash flows from Investing activities (171 842 088) {122 426 884} {171 807 455) (122 314 026)
Cash flows from financing activitles
Additions/(Repayment) of other financial 30 274 238 {16 555 663) 30274 238 (16 585 663)
Habilitles
Additions/{(Repayments} of finance loases 4000 641 (4 756 775} 4090 641 {4 756 775)
Net cash flows from financing activities 34 364 879 (21 312 438) 34 364 879 (21 312 438)
Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash 34 393 985 (24 494 264) 34 542 346 (24 348 498)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 8 056 255 32 550 519 7 490 665 31 830 183
of the year
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of 9 42 450 240 8 056 255 42033 011 7 490 665
the year
* See Nole 62

15



Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

" ‘Budgst on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Referenca
budget oh comparable betweat: final
basls budget and

Figures In Rand actual
Economlc entity
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Servica charges 534 933 000 . 534933000 485306412 (48626 588)
Renta! of facililies and equipmant 1772 100 - 4772100 2,132 853 360 753
Interest received (trading) 17 D00 000 . 17000000 47626063 826 053
Agency services 51 164 291 - 51164291 9254073 (41910 218)
Licences and permits 771 000 - 771 000 1020674 249 674
Other income - {rollup) 12 235 046 (600000) 11736046 27 601 807 16 866 761
Interest recelved - investment 3801 00O - 3801 00C 8639 044 b 838 044
Total revenue from exchange 629 676 437 {500 000) G621 176 437 E53 780 916 (67 395 521)
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxatlon revente
Property rales 87 000 000 . 87000000 409160412 22160412
Property rates - penaities Impased 6 800 000 - 6 B0OO 000 10022809 3222 809
Transfar revenue A
Government granis & subsidies 454 310 000 636 404 454 946 404 432683934 (22362 470)
income received from SETA - - - 2 898 502 2898 602
Public contributions and donations . - - 110 887 110 987
Flnes, Penalties and Forfells 4 501 136 - 4501136 32180430 27 688303
Interest recelvad - external invesiment - - - 247 388 247 388
Total revenue from non-sexchange 552 611 136 836 404 553 247 640 BBT 183471 33 936 931
transactions
Total revenie 4174 287 573 136 404 1 174 423 977 1140 564 387 (33 459 590)
Expenditure
Employes cost {346 615 201) {410 437) (346 925 728) (209 024073} A7 801 655
Remuneraflon of councillors (28 202 323) {380 000) (28582 323) (27 050 sogy 1631797
Depreciation and amortisation (133 550 583) . (133 560683) (127793108)  S757476
impairment foss/ Reversal of - - - (4389272) (4399272
impairments
Finance costs {26 448 B57) . (2644BBB7) (11973760) 14474797
Lease rentals on operating lease {310682) {42 000) {352 682) {509 839) {167 157)
Dbt Impalrmant {29 400 000) . (29400 000) (123716683) (94 318 683)
Collection costs (1 368 243} (165 000) {1633 243) (600 321) 932 922
Repairs and maintanance (51349002) (9881407) (61 231 309) (42157 908) 19073403
Bulk purchases (340 000 000) . (340 00D 000) (348 443 869) (B 443 889)
Contracted Services (64 066 372) (3000 000) (67 086 372) (51435443) 5630929
Transfers and Subsidies {30 804 673) (636 404) (31441 077) (50 207 361) {18 8586 284)
General Expenses (126 831 541) (9363 710) (136 996 251) (119222830} 18772 412
Total expenditure (17168 648 167) (23 076 958)(1 192 527 126)1 206 627 000) (14 099 875)
Operating deficlt 5630406  (23742664) (1B103148) (65662613 (47669 486)
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Differenco Reference

budget on cemparable betwaen final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actuat
Loss on disposal of assets and 2 500 000 - 2800000  (2201607) (4 701 607)
liabllitles
Deficit before taxation 8139406 (23742 &54) (15603 148) {67 864 220) (52 281 072)
Actual Amount on Comparable 8135406 (23742564} (15603 148) (67 864 220) (52 261 072)

Basls as Presented In the Budget
and Actual Comparative Statement

Reconclliation
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Staternents for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budgat on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budgst Actual amounts  Difference Referance
budgal on comparable batween final
basis budget and

Flgures in Rand actual
Controliing entity
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Servica charges 634 933 000 . 534933000 486306412 (48 626 588)
Rental of facilitias and equipment 1772100 1772100 2 132 853 360763  Noteb3
interest received - outstanding 17 000 000 - 170000080 47826053 B26 053
recolvables
Income from agency servicas 51 164 291 . &1184201 9054073 {41910 218}  Note 53
Licences and permits 771 000 - 771000 1020674 249674  Note 53
Other income 12 235 046 (soo000) 11735048 27601807 16 B66 761  Note 63
interost recelved - external Investment 3 801 00D - 3 801 000 9615814 5814814  Note 53
Total revenue from exchange 621 676 437 (500 DOO) 621176 437 6553767686 {67 418 761)
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Properiy rates 87 000 000 . 87000000 400160412 22160412 Note 83
Property rates - penaliies imposed 6 800 000 - 6800000 10022809 3222809  Note 53
Transfer revenus
Government grants and subsldies 454 310 000 636 404 4G4 946404 432583934 (22362 470}
Public contrlbutions and donations - - - 110 987 110987  Notfe 52
Finas 4501 136 - AG01136 32185439 27686303  Nole 53
Total revenue from non-exchange £52 611 136 536404 553 247 640 584 067 581 30 820 041
transactions
Total revenue 1474 287 673 136 400 1174 423 977 1137 825267 (365698 71 0)
Expenditure
Employea cost {343 017 0B5) . (343017 08B) (205232 455) 47784830 Note 63
Remuneration of councillors (27 425 162) . {27425152) (26136302) 1288850
Depraciation and ameostisation (133 475 496) . (133476 498) (f27724087) 5751409
Impairment loss/ Reversal of - - - (4399272) (4309272) Note63
impalrments
Finance costs (26 448 557} . (26448 6B7) (11973760) 14474797  Nole 63
Debl impaiment (29 400 000) . (29400000) (423718684) (94318 684) Note 53
Gollection costs {1 200 000) - {1200000) (600 321) 599 679  Note 53
Repairs and maintenance (61180 126) (9 801 407) (60981 632) (42 157 906) 18823626 Note 53
Bulk purchases {340 000 000} . {340 000 000) (348 443869) (B 443 865}
Conlracted sarvices (54066 372) {3000 000) (67 066 372) (b1 435 443) 5630 929
Grants and subsldias paid {30 804 673) (636 404) (31441 077) (50 207 361) {18 856 284)  Nole 53
General Expenses {126 453662} (8867 0g8) (134320 750) {120 614 821) 13705929
Tota} expenditure {1182 471122} {22 304 899){1 184 776 021}1 202734 281) (17 958 260)
Operating deficit 11816 461 {22168 485) (10 362044) (64 909 014) (64 6566 970)
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets 2 500 000 - 2500000  (2201607) (4701607) Note 53
Deficli hefore taxation 14316451 (22168495) (7 852044) (67110621) (69 258 677)
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments  Final Budget Actual smounts  Diffarence Reference

budget on comparable bebween final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Actual Amount on Comparable 14316451  (22168495) (7 852 044) {67 110821) (59 258 577)

Basls as Presented In the Budget
and Actual Comparative Statement
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidated Financlal Statements for the ysar ended 30 June 2018

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounis

Budget on Accrual Basls

Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Reference
budget on camparabla between final
basls btidget and
Figures In Rand aciual
Statement of Financlal Positien
Assets
Gurrent Assets
Inventories 16 265 405 - 16 266 4056 18 162 335 1 896 930 MNota 53
Other financial assets 3267 978 - 3287978 - {3267978) Note53
Operating lease asset 140 962 - 40 862 162 382 11 420
Receivablas from exchange 150 689 800 . 150599800 261212868 110613068  Note 63
transactions
Raceivables from non-exchange 74 626 631 . 74626631 38833080 {37793561) Note53
transactions
Consumer debtors 10g 186 535 _ 109186635 101943854  (7242681) Note 53
Cash and cash squivalents 11467490  (4786921) 6670569 42033011 35362442  Note 53
365 544 801 (4786 921) 360757 BBD 460 337630 99579650
Mon-Current Assets
Investment property 203 900 753 . 203800753 48i377053 {22523700) Note 53
Property, plant and equipment 1768 050957 (50 000 000} 1 718 059 867 146672027 822 (262832136)  Note 53
Intanglble assets 810 118 - 810 118 1135137 325012 Noto 53
Heritage assets - - . 195 000 185000  Note 52
Other financial assets 45 348 941 . 45348941 3is25083 (13823868)  Note 53
2018 119769 (50 060 0D0) 1 968 419 760 4 669460 095 (298 659 674)
Total Assets 2383 664 570 (54 786 921)2 328 877 649 2129797626 (199080 024)
Liabliities
Current Llabiiities
Other financlal liabilities 10 766 611 . 10766611 22810651 12044040 Note 52
Finance lease obligation - - ' - 2 978 540 2978540  Note 53
Payahles from exchange transactions 177 604 332 . 177604332 227625604 BOO21262  Noteb2
VAT payable 34 473 369 _ 34473369 390960827 5487 458 Note 62
Consumer deposils 25 529 385 - 26529385 27 0GB 007 1638 622
Unspent conditional grants and 1415052 - 1 416 052 5083 273 3668221  Note 53
rocelpts
Provisions 681 902 - 681902 948 670 266768  Note 53
250 470 661 . 250470651 326 475562 76 004 911
Non-Current Liabilities
Other financal liabllifies 172504016 (50000 000) 122594016 110646 168 {11 948860) Note 53
Financa lease obigation 14 634 000 © 14634000 3551484 (11082616} Note 52
Employse bensfit abligation 80653 144 - 80883144 81474678 821 634
Provisions 5089 172 - 6089172 5089 171 )
272970332 (50 000 000) 222 G70 332 200 760 4589 {22 209 833}
Total Llabliitles 523 440 583 (60 000 000} 473 440 983 527 236 061 653795078
Net Assets Te0 523587 (A 786 821) 1 855 436 666 1 602 561564 (262 876 102)
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments  Finat Budget Actual amounts  Difference Referenca

budget an comparable between final
basls budget and

Figures In Rand actual
Net Assets
Net Assets Attributable to Owners
of Controlling Enfity
Researves
Accumulated surpius 1860223587 (4786 921)1 855 436 666 1 02 561 561 (252 875 105} Note 53
Undefined Difference - - - 3 3
Total Not Assets 1860 223687 (4 786 821)1 855 436 666 1602 661 661 (262 876 108)
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
hasis budget and

Figures In Rand actual
Cash Flow Statement
Gash flows from operating activities
Recelpts
Taxation revenue 93 800 000 . 93800000 g903B3E2  (4761630)
Sale of goods and senvices 606 476 573 (500 000) 6050785673 582170 500 (23 BO5 983)
Grants 464 310 000 636404 454 946 404 473020212 18 082 808
Interest income 20 801 000 © 20801000  peis5ei4 (11185188)  Note 53

1175 387 573 136 404 1175523 977 1 153 853978 (21 669 999)
Payments
Employes cosls (343 017 085) _ (343017085) (323715602) 19 301 483
Suppliers (669 676 983) (636 404) (690 616 387) (711701 o25) (210886 538B)
Finance costs (24 448 557) . (24448567) ({0961360) 13487 207  Note 53
Transfer of property, plant and - - - B4BOO8YY 64509821  Note B3
equipment

(1 057 444 626) {636 404)(1 058 081 028} (281 862 066) 76211 973
Net cash flows from operating 147 942 948 {500 goo} 417 442 948 171 984 922 54 641 974
activities
Cash fiows from lnvesting activities
Additions to property, plant and (195 199 250) 60 000 000 (145 199 250) (167 691 723) (22492 473} Note 53
equipment
procaeds on disposal of property, plant 2 500 000 - 2 600 000 67680  (1823710)  Note 52
and equipment
Purchase of other intanglble asssls - - - {154 936} (164 938)  Nole 52
increase in financlal assels (5 073 000) . {(5073000) (4637684) 436 316 Note 52
Net cash flows from investing (197 772 250) 50000 000 (147 772 260) (171807 456) (24 036 205)
activitles
Gash flows from financing activities
lang term liabllities §0000000 (50 000000) 40000 000 40 000 000 -
Repayment of other financlal fiabilities (0 556 B44) . (9556844} (9725762) {168 918)
Finance lease payments {1 500 000) . {(1800000) 4080641 6 590 641
Not cash flows from financing 78 943 166 {60 000 000) 28 943 156 34 364 879 8421723
activities
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and (586 146} (snoo00) {1386 146) 34542346 35928402
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the 12342983  (4286921) 8066 082 7 490 665 {566 397)
baginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the 11 AbG 837 (4 786 921} 6 669 916 42033 011 35 363 096

end of the year
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Greater Tzaneen Mu nicipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidaled financlal statements have beern preparad in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recogniged
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board In accordance with Saction 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Managsmant Act {(Act 56 of 2003),

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an acerual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
histarical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified othetwise,

Assets, labllities, revenues and expenses were not offsel, excep! whare offsetling is sither requlred or permitted by aStandard
of GRAP,

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistantly applied in the preparation of these cansolidated
financlal statements, are disclosed below.

11 Presentation currency

These consolidated financlal statements are presented In South African Rand, which ie the functional currancy of the
Municipality,

1.2 Rounding
All financfal figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rand,
1.3 Golng concern assumption

These consolidated firanclal staternents have been prepared based on the expactation that the Municipality will continue to
cperate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months,

1.4 Significant judgemeants and sources of estimation uncertainty

Bmounts represented in the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of Judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in tha future could differ from these esimatas
which may be materlal to the consolidated financial statements. Significant judgements inolude:

Trade receivables and loans and receivables

The Municipallly assesses its trada receivables and loans and recsivables for Impalrment at the end of each reporting perlod. In
determining whether an impatrmant loss should be recorded Insurplus or deficlt, the surplus makes judgements as to whether
there Is observable data indicating a measurable decraase in the estimated future cash flows from a financlal asset,

The Impalrment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calctlated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ralios,
adjusted for national and industry-specific aconomic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate
with defaulls on the portfollo. These annual ioss ratios ara applled o loan balances In the portfolio and scaled to the estimated
loss emergance perlod,

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

An allowance for stock to wilte stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable valua, Managemant have made esfimates of the
seliing price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory Items. The write down is includad In the operalion surplus note,

Fair value estimation

The cairying value less lmpairment provision of lrade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values,
The fair value of financlat labliities for disclosura purposes is estimated by discounting tha future canlractual cash fiows at the
current market interest rate that is avallable o the Municipailty for simitar financlal instruments.

Subsequent to Initial measurement, investment property Is measured af falr valve, The fair valua of nvestment propeity reflecis
market conditions st the reporting date, determined by the external valustor,
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for fhe year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generafing units and individual assets have been determined based an the higher of value-in-
use caloulations and falr values less costs fo soll. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions.

The Municlpallly reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, Assets are grouped at the lowast level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indlcations {hat impalrment may have occurred, estimates
are prepared of expecled future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected fulure cash flows used to determine the value in
use of goodwill and tangible assets are Inherently uncertain and could materlally change over time. They are stgnificantly
affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply demand, together with economic factors such as inflation
interest and economic conditions.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an astimate based on the information avaliable. Addifional disciosure of
these estimates of provisiens are ncluded In nate 20 - Provislons.

Post-retirement henefits

The present value of the post relirsment obllgation depends on & number of factors thal are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. The aseumptions used in determining the net cosl {income) include the discount rate. Any
changes In these assumptions witl Impact on the carrying amount of post-retivement obligations.

Other key assumptlons for penston obligations are based on cuirent market conditions. Additional information Is disclosed in
Note 21.

Effective interest rate
The Municipality used the prime interest rate fo discount future cash flows.

Allowance for doubiful debts

On debtors an Impairment foss [s recognised in surplus and deficit when there s objective svidence that it is impaired. The
impaltment s measured as the difference betwaen the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at tnifial recogniton,

1.6 Investment proparty

investment property is property {land or a bullding - or pait of a bullding - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital apprectation

or hoth, rather than for:
«  use in the production or supply of goods or services of for
. administrative purposes, or
+  sale In the ordinary course of oparations.

Ownet-ocoupied praperty is property held for use In the production or supply of goods or services of for administrative purposes.

Invesiment proporly is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the fulure economic benefits or service potential that are
assoclated with the Investment property will flow to the Municipality, and the cost of fair value of the investment property can be
measured rallably.

Investment property is Initlally recognised at cost. Transaction costs are Included in the initlal measurement.
Where invesimant property Is acqulred through & non-exchange transaction, its cost Is its falr value as at the date of acquisition.

Costs include costs Incurred Inttially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a pait of, o gorvice a property. If a
replacement part Is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.5 Investment properiy {continued)

Falr value

Subsequent to initlal measurement investment praperty Is measured af falr valua,

The fair valuie of investmant properly reflacts market condilicns at the reporting date,

A gain or loss arising from g change In falr value Is Included in nat surplus or deficlt for the period In which it arises,

if the entily determines that the fair vajue of an Investment property under construction is not reliably determinable but expecls
the falr value of the praperty to be reliably measurable when conslruction is complete, it measures that investment property

consiruclion) is not reliably determinable an a continuing basis, the entity measures that investment property using the cost
modetl (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment), The resldual value of the investment property is then
assumed to be zero. The entity applies the cost madal (as par the accounting poficy on Proparty, plant and equipment) unti
disposal of the Investment properly,

Once the entity bacomes able to measure reliably the falr value of an investment properly under construction that has previously
been measured at cost, it measuras thal proparty at Its falr value. Once construction of that property is complete, it is presumed
- that fair value can be measured raliably, If this is not the case, the property Is accounted for using the cost model in accordance
with the aceounting policy on Propetty, plant and equipment,

Derecognition

Investment property is derecegnised on disposal or when the Investment properly is permanantly withdrawn from use and no
fulure economic benefit or service potentlal are expected from its disposal,

Galns or losses arlsing from the retirement or disposal of investment propaity is the difference betwsan the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal,

Investment property is carrled at cost loss accumulated depreciation and any accumulated im pairment losses.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was Impalred, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deflcl
when the compensation becomes recalvable.

16 Property, plant and oquipment

Proparty, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assats {including Infrastruciure assels} that are held for use In the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than ong period,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognlsad as an asset when:
*  ltis probable that future sconomic benefits or sarvice potential assuclated with the lem will fiow to the

Munlcipality; and
+  the cost of the item can bs measured reliably,

Properly, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs aftributable fo bring the asset to the
lecation and condition necessary for il to be capable of aperating In the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are dedusted In arriving af the cost,

Whore an asset is acquired through a nop-exchange transaction, its cost Is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an itam of property, plant and sguipment is acquired in exchiange for & nen-manetary assel or maonetary assets, or &
combination of monstary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is Initially measured at fair vajus (the cost), i the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost [s the carrying amount of the assel(s) given up.

When significant cornponents of an ftem of propetty, plant and equipment have different usefu lives, thay are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,
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1.6 Property, plantand equipment {continued)

Costs Include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an flem of property, plant and equipment and costs ncurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service It. If a replacemert cost is recognised in the carrying amount of ar ltem of
praperly, plant and squipment, the carrying amount of the replacad part s derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the ltem and restoring the site on which It is located is also included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entily is obligated to incur suich expanditure, and where the obligation
arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of Inventories,

Recognlficn of costs in the carfying amount of an ftem of property, plant and aquipment ceases when the ftem is In the location
and condition necegsary for it to be capable of operating in the manner Intended by management.

ltems such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recegnised when thoy moet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major Inspection costs which are a condition of confinuing use of an item of property, plant and stuipment and which mest the
recognition criterfa above are included as & replacemeant In the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspaction costs from the previous Inspectlon are derecognised.

Propettly, plant and equipmant is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impalrment losses which is carred at
revalued amount being the fair value 4t the date of revaiuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revaiued amount, being the falr value at the date of revaluation less any subsaquent
accumutated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are mada with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not ditfar matenally from that which wollid
be determined using fair value at the end of the repotting perlod.

When an item of property, plant and equipment Is revalued, any accumulated depraciation at the date of the revaluation is
restated proportionatsly with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after
revaiuation equals Its revalued amount,

When an item of properly, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
gliminated against the gross carrylng amount of the asset and the et amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Any increase in an asset's carrylng amount, as a result of a revaluation, Is credited diractly to a revaluation surplus. The
Increase ls recognised In surplus or deficit to the extent that it Teverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously

recognised in surplus or deficlt.

Any decrease In an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, 1s recognised insurplus or defleit In the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to & revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respact of that asset.

The revaluation surplus In equity refated to a specific ftem of proparty, plant and equipment is transfarred directly to retainad
sarnings when {he assat is derecognised.

The revaluation suplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment ls {ransferred directly to retained
earnings as the asset s used. The amount transferred is aqual to the difference betwaen depreciation based on the revaluad
camying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the assst.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight fine basis over their expecied useful fives to their estimated
residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impalrment losses.

Property, plant and equipment |s carried at revalued amount, belng the fair value at the data of revaluation less any subsaquent
accumulated depraciation and subsequent accumulated impalrment losses. Revalualions are made with suffictant ragularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ materlally from that which would be determined using fair value at theend of the

reporting period.
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The useful lives of items of propenly, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depraclation method Average ugeful life in
years

Infrastructure Straight line

. Roads and paving 10-30

*  Pedestrian malls 20

*  Eieciricity 10-30

*  Water 15-20

. Sewsge 1520

. Housing 30

Community Straight line

*  Improvements 30

*  Recreational facliities 20

*  Security 3-5

Other assels Straight iine

*  Bulldings 30

*  Spaclalist vehicles 20

*  Other vehicles 5-7

*  Offlee eguipment 36

. Furniture and fittings 7-10

*  Watercraft 15

«  Bins and contalners 5-10

*  Speclalised plant and equipmant 5-16

*  Other ltems of plant and equipment 5

The depreciable amount of an asset Is allocated on a systemalic basis aver its useful Jife,

Each part of an item of properly, planl and equipment with a cost that Is significant in relatlon to the total cost of the itam is
deprecialed separalely,

The Municlpalily assesses at each reporling date whather there Is any indication that the Municipality expectations about the
resldual value and the usaful fife of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indlcation axists, the
Municipality revises the expected usefuf lifs and/or residual value accordingly, The change Is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate,

The depreciation charge for each perlod Is recognlsed in surplus or deficit unless ltis Included In the carrying amount of another
asset,

ltems of preperty, plant and eqiipment are derecognised when the asset Is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset,

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficlt when
the flamn is derecognised. The gain or foss arising from the derecognition of an ltem of property, plant and equlpment Is
determined as the difference batwsan the net disposai proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item,

Asgets which the economic entity holds for rentats to others and subsequently routingly sell as part of the ordinary caurse of
activities, are transferred to Inventorles when the rentafs end and the assets are available-for-sale. Procaads from sales of these
assets are recognised as ravenue. All cash flows on these assets are Included in cash Tlows from operaling activitles in thecash
flow statement.

The Municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and malntain propety, plant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements (ses note ),
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Munlcipality discloses relevant information reiating to assels under consiruction or development, in the notes to the financial
siatemenis {see note ).

1.7 Intangible assets

An asset is idenfifiable If it either:
«  |s separable, Le. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, fransferred, ficensed, rented or

exchanged, elther individually o together with a refated contradt, identifiable assets of liabllity, regardless of

whether the entlty intends to do so; of
«  arlses fom binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardlass of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from fhe Muricipality or from other rights and obllgations.

A binding arrangement describes an arcangement that confers simitar rights and obligations on ihe parties to It as if it were in the
form of a contract.

An Intanglble assetis recognised when:
» itis probable that the axpected future economic benefits or service potentlal that are aliributable to the asset will

flow to the Municipality, and
«  tha cost or falr value of the asset can ba measured reliably.

The Munlcipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefils or service potential using reasohable and
supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimats of the set of economic conditions that wil axlst over the

useful life of the asset.

Where an Intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transacton, its initial cost at the date of acqulsition is measu red
at its fal value as at that date.

Expendilure on research {or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognlsed as an expsnse when it Is incurred.
Intanglble assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assels aré reviewed at each reporting date.
Amoitisation Is provided Lo wrlte down {he intangible assefs, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

em Usefut life
Computer software, othat 3-5 years

The Municipaifty discloses relavant information relating to assels under construction or development, in the notes to the financlal
statements (ses note ).

Derecognition

Intangible assets are deracognised:
+  ondisposal, or
»  when no future economic beneflts or service potential are expected from Iis use or disposal,

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of anintangible assels is Included In surplus or deficit when the asset |s
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases regulres otherwlse on a sale and leaseback).

1,8 Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assels that have a cullural, environmental, historical, natural, sclentiflc, to chnolagical or artlstic significance
and are held indefinitely for the bensfit of present and future generations. No asset lives are allocaled.

Recognition

The Municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset If it Is probable that future economis benefits or sarvice potential
assoclated with the assat will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
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1.8 Heritage assets (continued)
Inltial measurement

Herilage assets are measured at cost,
Subsequent measurement

After recognilion as an assel, a class of heritage assels is carrled at its cost lass any accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment

The Municipality assess at each repariing date whether thers Is an indication that it may be Impaired. If any such indication
exlsts, the Municipality estimates the fecoverable amount or the recoverabile servica amount of the heritage asset,

Derecognition

The Municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic bensfits or service potential are expacted
from lts use or disposal.

The galn or loss arising from the derecagnltion of a heritage asset is Included In surplus or deffeit when the item is derecognised
" (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leasaback).

1.9 Financial Instrumants

A financtal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financia! asset of ane entity and a finanalal liability or a residual Interest
of anather entity.

The amortised cost of a financlal asset or financial liabllity is the amount at which the financial assel or financial liabillty Is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumtdlative amorisation using the effective interast
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the
use of an allewancs account) for Impairment or uncollectibility.

Berecognition is the removal of g previously recagnised financlal asset or financlal lrability from an entity's statement of financlal
position.

liabliity. When cafculating the effective Interest rale, an antity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment, call and simiar options} but shall not consider futura credit losses, The
caloulation includes all fees and points paid or received between jrarties to the contract that are an integral pait of the effoctive
Interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenus from Exchange ‘Transactions), transaction costs, and all other pramiums or
discounts. Thera is a prastmption that the cash flows and the expected life of g group of similar financial instrumants can be

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a llabillly seftled, betwesn knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

Afinancial asset is:
. cash;
*  aresldual Interest of another enlity; or
*  acontractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another antity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabllities with another entity under conditions that are potentlally

favourable to the entily,

A financlal tiabllily Is any Hability that Is a contractual obllgation to:
*  deliver cash or another financial assst to another entity; or
= exchange financlal assets or financial liabilitias under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to theentity,
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4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets {classas and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the noles thereto:

Class Category

Consumer debtors Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Recelvables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Gash and cash equivalenis Financlal asset measured at amortised cost
Other financlat assets Financial asset meastired at falr value

Thelantity has the following types of financial liabilities {classes and category) as reflacled on the face of the statement of
financlal positton or in the notes therefo:

Class Category

Ofher financial liabllities Financha! liability measured at amorlised cost

Finance lease obligatlon Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Payables from exchange transactions tinancial liabllity measured at amortised cost
Consumer deposlis Financiai liabllity measured at amorlised cost

Initial recognition

The municipallty recognises a financial asset or a financial fiability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes
a party to the contraclual provisions of the Instrument.

The entity recognises financlal assets using rade date accounting.
initial measutement of financial assets and financlai liabilities

The enlity measures a financial asset and financial lability initially at its fair value plus, In the case of a financlal asset or a
financlal fiability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that are direstly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial Hability.

Subsequent measurement of financlal assets and financial fiabilitles

The enilly measuras all financial assets and financial liabilities after Initial racognition using the following categaories:
«  Flnanclal instruments at fair vaiue.
«  Financlal nstruments at amoitised cost.
. Flnanctal instruments at cost,

All financial assets maasured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an tmpairment review.

Fair value measurement cohsidaratlons

The bes! evidence of fair value Is quoted prices in an aclive market. If the market for a financial instrument is nat active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The oblective of using a valuation technique i to establlsh what the
wansaction price would have been o2 the measurement date i an amn's length exchange motivated by normal aperating
considerations, Valuation techniques Include using recent arm's length market transactions hotween knowladgesable, willing
parties, If avallable, reference o the current fair valua of another instrument that is subsiantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and aption pricing models. If there Is & valuation technigue commonty used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has boan demonstrated to provide reflable estimates of prices obtained in actual markel
traneactlons, the entity uses that {echnique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as
fitile as possible on antity-specific inpuls. it incorporates all factors that market paricipants would consider In selting a price and
is consistent with aceapted aconomic methadologies for pricing financial instruments, Periodically, aMunicipality calibrates the
yaluation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable eurrent matket transactions in the same Instrument
{l.e. without modification or repackaging) o based on any avallable observable market data.
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1.9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Reclassification
The enfity does not reclasslify 3 financial instrument while It is issued or held unlass is;

*  combined instrument that is requlred to be measured at fair value; or

*  annvestment in a residual inlerest that moats the requirements for reclassification.

I fair vaiue can no longer be measurad reliably for an Investment in a resldual interesi measured at fair valua, the enfity
reclasslfies the investment from falr value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that faly value Is no longer available bacomes
the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes avallable for an investment In a residual interast for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument would have been required to bs measured at fair value, the entity reclassifias the instrument from
cost to far valua.

Galns and losses

A galn or loss arlsing from a change In the fair value of a financtal asset of financial liability measured at falr value Is recognisad
In surplus or deficit,

For financlal assets and financial iabillties measured at amaortised cost or cost, a galn or loss Is recognised In strplus or deficit
when the financlal asset or financlal liabllity is derecognised or Impalred, or through the amortisation process.

impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether {here is any objeclive evidence that a financlal asset or group of
financial assets Is Impaired,

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
¥ there is objective evidence that an impalrment loss on financial assets measured af amorlised cost has been incurred, the
maunt of the loss is measured as the difference between the assel's carrylng amount and the present value of estimatad future

cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interast rata. The carrying amount of the asset |s reduced directly. 'The amount of the loss is recognised In surplus or deficit.

Financlal assets measured at cost;
if there is objective evidence that an Impalrment loss has been Incyrred on an investment in a residual Intorest that is not
maasured at fair value because its fair value cannot be maasured refiably, the amount of the Impatment loss is measured as the

difference betwsaen the carrying amount of the financlal assat and the present value of estimated fulurs cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment fosses ara not reversed,

Deracognition

Financlal assafs

The entily deracognises financial agsets using tracke date accounting.
The enfity derecognlses a financial assst only when:

*  the confractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are seftled or waived,
*  the entity transfers to anather party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
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1.9 Financlal Instruments (continued}

+  the entity, despite having rolained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financlal asset, has
iransferred control of the asset {o another parly and the other parly has the practical abillty to selt the assetinlits
entirety to an unrelated third parly, and is able to exerclea that ability unilaterally and without neading fo impose
additicnal restrictions on the transfer. in this case, the entity |
. derecognise the asset, and
- racoghise separately any rights and obligations crealed or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounis of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retalned and those transferred on
the basls of thelr refative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at thelr fair values at
that date. Any difference between the consideration recaived and the amounts recognised and darecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

£ the enlity transfars a financial asset in a transfer that quallfies for derecognition in lls entirety and retains the right fo service
the nancial asset for a fee, it recognise sither a servicing asset or a servicing llabllity for that senvising contract. It the fao to be
recaived Is not expacted to compensale the sntily adequately for performing the seivicing, a servicing liabilily for the servicing
obllgation Is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received s expected to bs mora than adaquate compensation for the
sarvicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basls of an allocation of the
carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in lls entirety but the transfer results in the entity abtaining a new
financlal asset or assuming a new financlal iability, or a servicing liability, the entity recogrise the new financial asset, financial
fiabillty or seivicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in Its entirely, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the conslderation
racelved s recognised In surplus or deficit.

If {he transfarred asset is part of & larger financlal asset and the part transferrad qualifies for derecognition in ite entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset Is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the pat
that Is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. Far this purpose, a refained
sarvicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part derecognised and the sum of the cansideration received for the part derecognised Is recognised in surplus or dafioll

If a transfor doss not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transfarred agsel, the entity continue to recognise the transferrad asset In its entirety and recognise a financlal liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenua on the transforred asset and any expense
Incurred on the financial liability. Nelther the assot, and the assoclated Hability nor the revenus, and the associated expenses are

offset.
Financlal iabilities

The entity removés a financial lfability {or a part of a financlal llabliity) from its statement of financlal position when it Is
extinguished — 1.e. when the ohligation specified in the contract |s discharged, cancelled, explres of waived.

An exchange betwesn an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the ariginal financial Habllity and a new financial liability e racagnised. Similarly, a substantial modification of
the terms of an existing financlal fiability or a part of it Is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and
having recognised a new financial liabiiity.

The diffarence between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transfarred to
another parly and the consideration pald, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabllities assumed, is recognised In
surplus or deficlt. Any Tlabiiities that are waived, forglven or assumed by ancther entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are
accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenus from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
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1.8 Financlal instruments (continued)
Presentation

Interest relating to & financlal instrument or a component that Is a financial liability is rscognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficlt.

Dividends or simllar distributions relaling to a financlal instrument or a component that fs a financial liabifity is recognised ag
Fevenue or expense In'surplus or deficit,

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liablity Is recognised as ravenue or
expense in surplus or deficit,

Distributions to halders of residual Interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assels, Transaction costs incurred on
resldual Interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. income lax {where applicabla) relating to distributions to

International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes,

A finenclal asset and a financlal fiability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when
the entily currently has a fegaily enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends efther to setfle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liabillty simuitaneousty,

In accounting for a fransfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entily does not offset the transferred
asset and the assoclated liability.

1,10 Leases

A loase s classified as a finance lease If it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards Incldental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operafing lease If it cdoes not transfar substantially all the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elemenits, the anfity assesses the classlfication of each slament separately,
Finance loases - legsee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabllities in the statemant of financial posttion at amounts equal to the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The comesponding liability to the lessor is
Included In the statemeant of financiai paosition as a finance leass obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present vatue of the minimumn lease payments Is the Municipality's incrementat
borrowing rate,

Minimum lease payments are apportioned betwsen the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding Habllity. The finance
charge is allocated to sach period during ihe lease term =0 as to produce a constant perlodic rate of on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Any contingent rents are expansed In the period in which they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a stralght-line basis over tha lease tarm,

Initiat direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrylng amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an eXpense over the leass term an the same basis as the fease fevaenue,

The aggregate cost of incentives Is racognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-tine basls,
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recagnised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

income for feases is disclosed under revenue In statement of financial performance,
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110 Leases (continued)

Operating leases - |lessee

Operaling lease payments are recognised as anh expensaon a stralght-fine basis over the lease {orm. The differance between
the amounts recognlsed as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.41 Inventorles

Consumable and stands Inventories consist of work in prograss, consumables and finished goods, Inventory s measured at
fowar of cost, or not realisable valus, Whera it is held for distribution or consumption at ne charge or for & nominal amount,

inventories are valued at cost.

The cost of consumable Inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the: Inventorias lo their present location and condition. Redundant and slow moving Inventorles are identified and written down
with regard to their cost. Consumables are written down accarding {o their age, candition and utility.

Stands available for sale during the naxt 12 months are recognised as Inventory.

1,12 mpairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generaling assels are those assets held by the Municipality with the ptimary objective of ganerating a commerciat retum.
When an asset is deployed In a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orlentated entity, it generates a commercial

return.

Identification

Whan the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds Its recoverable amotnt, It is Impaired.

The Municlpality assasses at sach reporting date whether there ts any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired.
If any such Indlcation exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Value in use

Valueinuseofa cash-generafing asset is the present value of the ostimated future cash flows expecied to be derived fram the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of ita useful iife.

When estimating the value in use of an assat, the Municipality estimates the future cash Inflows and outflows to be darived from
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the Municipality applies the appropriale discount rate to those
future cash flows.

Basls for estimates of future cash flows

In measuring value In use the Municipalily:
+  bage cash flaw projeciions on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best estlimate
of the range of aconomlc conditions that will exdst over the remaining useful fife of the assel. Greater weight is glven
to external avidencs,

+  base cash flow projections on the most racent approved financlal budgets/oracasts, but axcludes any eslimated
futurs cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructurdng's or from improving or enhancing the
asset's performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers & maximum period of five years, unless &
longer period can be justified; and

+  esiinate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgetsiforacasts by extrapolating the
projections based on the hudgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. This growth rale does not excaad the ong-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country of courtrles in which the entity operates, or for the market inwhich the asset is used, unless a

higher rate can be Justified,
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Compoaosition of estimates of fufure cash flows

Eslimates of future cash flows Include:

] profections of cash Inflows from the continuing use of the asset;

*  profections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continting use of the
asset (Incliding cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly sttributed, or allacated on a
reasonable and conslstent basig, to the assel; and

*  netcash fiows, if any, to be received {or paid) far the disposal of the asset at tha end of its useful life.

Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
*  cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
¢ income tax recelipts or payments.

The estimate of net cash flows to be recaivad {or pald) for the disposal of an asset at the end of ifs usefuf life s the amount that
the sconcmic entity expects {o cbtain from the disposal of the asset In an arm's length transaction belween knowledgaable,
willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal,

Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-lax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money, represented by the
current risk-frea rate of Interest and the risks specific to the asset for whigh the fulure cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted,

Recognition and measurement {Indlvidual asset)

}f the recoverable amount of & cash-generaling asset Is loss than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset js
reduced fo ifs racoverable amount, This reduction Is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately In surplus or defigit,

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carsying amount of the cash-gensrating asset to which It
relates, the Municipality recognisos a llability only to the extent that Is a requirement In the Stardard of GRAP,

After the racognition of an impalrment loss, the depreclation (amortisation} charge for the cash-genarating asset Is adjusted In
future periods fo aflocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less ils residual vaiue {if any), on a systematic
basls over its remaining useful life.

Cash-generating units

If there Is any indication that an gsset may be Impalred, the recovarable amount Is estimated for the Individual asset. If It is not
possible fo estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Municipality determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generaling unit to which the asset belongs {the assef's cash-genarating unit),

If arr active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified asa
cash-gensrating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally, If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-
gensrating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the Municipallty use management's best estimate of future price(s) that
could be achieved In arm's length fransactions In ostimating:
*  the future cash inflows used to dstermine the assel's or cash-generating unit's value In use; and
*+  the fulure cash outflows used to determine the valus In use of any other assets or cash-genarating units that are
affected by the internal transfor pricing,

Cash-generating units are Identified consistently from period to perlod for the same assef or {ypes of assets, unless a changa is
justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis conslstent with the way tha racoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is determined.

An Impairment loss Is recognisad for a cash-generating unit if the recovarable amount of the unit Js less than the carrying
amount of tha unit. The Impalrment Is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset In the unit, These reductions in carrying amalnts are treated as
impairment losses on Individual assets.
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1.12 Impalrment of cash-generating assets {continued)

in allocating an [mpaliment loss, the entity does nol reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
« its fair value loss costs to sall (if determinable);
s is value in use (if determinable); and
. Zef0.

The amount of the impalrment [oss that would otherwlse have been allocated to the assel Is allocated pro rata to the other cash-
generating assets of the unit,

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes fo a cash-ganeraling unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-cash-
generating asset s allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of tha recoverable amouni of

the cash-generating unit.
Reversal of Impalrment loss

The Municlpality assess at sach reporling dale whether there Is any Indication that an impairment loss recegnised in prior
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer axlst or may have decreased, If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of that assel.

An impairment loss recognised In prlor perlods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has baeen a change in the
astimales usad lo delermine the asset's recoverable amournt since tha last impairment loss was recognisad. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased lo its recoverable amount. Tha increase Is a reveraal of an impalrmant loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset atiributable to & reversal of an impalirment loss does not axceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impaitment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

perlods.
A reversal of an Impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognisad Immediately In surplus or deficlt.

After a reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised, the depreclation {amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset Is
adjusted in future periods lo aliocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on &
systematic basls over Its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an Impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with the
carrylng amounts of those assets, These Increases In carrying amounts ara lreated as reversals of impairment losses for
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to & non-cash-ganerating asset contributing service

potentlal to a cash-generating unit.

In affocating a reversal of an Impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an assel |s not increased above

the lower of:
« its recoverable amount (if determinable); and
+  the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior pertods.

The amount of the reversal of the impalrment loss that wouild otherwise have been aliocated ta the asset Is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit.

Redeslgnation

The redesignation of assels from a cash-generating asset lo a non-cash-generating asset or from a nen-cash-generating asset
\o a cash-generating asset only ocour when thare is clear svidence that stich a redesignalion is appropriate.

113 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Non-cash-generating assets are assels other than cash-generafing assels.

identification

When the carrying amount of & non-cash-generating asset excaeads its recoverable service amount, it Is impalred.

The Municlpality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. [f any such indicatlon exlsts, the Municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.
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1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
Vaiue In use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present valus of the nor-cash-generaling assets remaining service potentlal,

The present value of the remalning service potential of a non-cash-generating asssts Is determined using the following
approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assel Is determined as the depraciated
replacement cost of the asset, The raplacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential, This
cost Is depreclated to reflact the asset In its used condition. An asset may be replaced sither through reproduction {replication}
of the existing asset or through raplacement of its gross sarvice potentlal. The deprecialed replacement cost Is measured as the
reproduction or replacernent cost of the asset, whichever Is lower, less accumulated depraciation calculated on the basls of such
cosi, to reflact the already consumed or explrad service potential of the asset,

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asssl is determined on an “optimlsed” basis. The rafionale is that the
Munlctpality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or rapraduced is an
overdesigned or overcapacily asset. Ovardesigned assels conlain faatures which are unnecessary for the goods or services the
asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that hava a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand far gaads or
services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis
thus reflects the service potential required of the asset,

Recognltion and measurement

if the recoverable sarvice amountof a non-cash-generating asset Is loss than s carrying amount, the carmying amount of the
asset is reduced to Its recoverable service amount, This reduction Is an impaltment loss,

An Impalrment loss Is recognised immediately i surplus or deficit,
Any impairment loss of a revalued hon-cash-generating asset Is treated as a revaluation decrease,

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss fs greater than the carrylng amount of the non-cash-generating asset o
which It relates, the Munlicipality recognises a Hlability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standaids of GRAP.

After the recognition of an Impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future perleds to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over ils remalning useful life,

Reversal of an impalrment loss

The Municipality assess at sach reporting date whether there Is any indicaflon that an impairment loss recognised in prior
pertods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist ar may have dacroased. If any such indication exists, the
Municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset,

An Impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generafing asset Is reversed If there has been a change in tha
estimates used to delermine the asset’s recovarable service amount since the last impalrment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable sorvice amount. The Increase Is a reversal of an Impaliment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a feversal of an Impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have bean determined {net of depreciation or amortisation) had no mpalrment loss been racognised for the asset in
prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating assst is recognised immediately insurpius or deficlt,

After a reversal of an Impalrment loss Is recognised, the depreclation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted In future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's ravised carrylng amount, less its residual valus {if any), on
a syslematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.13 Impairment of hon-cash-generating asssets (continued)

Redeslgnation

The redesignation of assels from a cash-gensrating assetlo a non-cash-generating asset or from & non-cash-generating asset
to a cash-generating asset only occur when thera Is clear evidance that such a redesignation is appropriate.

4.14 Share capltal f contributed capital

An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an Municipality afier deducting alf of its
liabllities.

1.15 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Shott-tarm employes benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the parlod in which the employees render the related sarvice.

Short-tarm employes benefits include itams such as:
»  wages, salarles and soclal security contributions;
+  shoriterm compensated absences {such as pald annu ai leave and pald slek leave) where the compensatlon for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporiing period In which the employee render

the related employas service,
+ ' bonus, Incentive and parformance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
pariod In which the employee render the related service.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are benafits (other than termination benefits) which a municipality pays fixed contributions Into a
aeparate municipality (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributlons if the fund does not
hold sufficlent assets to pay all employee benefits relating ta the employee sefvices In the current and prier periods

Payments made to indusfry-managed {or state plans}) retirement banefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans
where he entily's cbligation under the schemes is squivalent to those arising in a defined contribution vatirement banefit plan.

Defined benefit plans
For definad benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the prcjectad credit method.
Actuarlal valuations are conducted on an annual basls by independent acluaries saparately for each plan.

Consideration is glven to any event that could impaot the funds up to end of the reporting perlod where the interim vatuation Is
performed at an earller dale.

Past service cosls are racognised immediately to the extent that the beneflts are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on
a straight fine basls over the average poriod until the amended benefits become vested.

To the extent that, at the beglnning of the financlal perled, any cumulative unrecognised actuarlal gain or loss exceeds tan
percant of the greater of the present value of the projected henefit obligation and the fair value af the plan assets (the corridor),
that portion is recognised In surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of participating employees.
Actuarlal gains or losses within the corridor are not recognised.

Gains or losses on the curaliment or settiement of a defined benafit plan Is recognised when the enfity is demonstrably
committed to curtalimant or sefflement,

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expendliure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, The asset is measurad at fair value. In alf other
raspects, the asset is reated In the same way as plan assels. in surplus or deficlt, the expense refating to a defined benafit plan
is presented as the net of the amount recognisad for a reimbursement,
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1.16 Empioyee benefits {continued)

The amount recognised In the sialement of financial position represents the present valus of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarlal gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair valus of plan
assels,

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of avaflable refunds and
reduction in fulure contributions to the plan.

1.18 Provislons and contingencies

Provisions are recognised whan:
*  the Municipallty has a present obligation as a result of a past avent;
* itis probable that an outflow of resources embodylng econoimic benefits or service potential will be required to
setile the chilgation; and
= arsliable estimate can ba made of the obligation,

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required fo settle the present obligation at the
reporting date,

Whers the effect of time value of money is materlal, the amount of a provision is the prasent value of the expenditures expected
to be required to setfle the obligation,

The dizcaunt rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liabllity,

Where some or all of the expenditure raguired to seltle a provision Is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it Is virtually cerialn that relmbursarent will be recelved If the municipality
sellles the obligation. The reimbursement Is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision,

Provislons are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted io refiect the current best estimale. Provisions are reversed if it Is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits or service potentlat will be raquired, to settle the

abligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provisich increases In each period fo reflect the passage of time, This
increase is recognised as an Intarest axpanse,

A provision is used only for sxpenditures for which the provision was originally recognised,
Provislons are not recognlsed for future operating deficits.
Contingant assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed In note 41,

117 Commifments

lterns are classified as commbiments when an antity has committed itself to future transactions that wil normafly result in the
olitflow of cash,

Disclosures are required in respact of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Gommilments for which disclosure Is necessary to achleve a fair presentation should ba disclosed In a note to the financial

statements, If both the following criteria are met:
= Confracts should be non-canceflabls or only canceliable at sighificant cost {for example, contracts for computer or

building maintenance services); and
*  Conlracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the antity — therefore salary
commltments relating to employment coniracts or soclal security benefit commitments are excluded,

1.18 Revenue from exchange transactians

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or sarvice potentlal during the reporting period when thoss Inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contiibutions from owners.
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4.18 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

An exchange transaction is one in which the Municlpality recelves assats or services, or has liabllities extinguished, ant directly
gives approximately equal value {primarily in the form of goads, sarvices or use of assels) to the other parly In axchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability seitled, between knowledgeabls, willing parties In
an anmn’s length transaction,

Measurement

Revernue is measured at the falr value of the cohsiderafion recelved or racalvable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sate of goods

Reverise from the sale of goods is recognised when all the followlng conditions have besn sallsfied:
»  the Municlpality has lransferred to the purchaser the significant Hsks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
«  the Municipality retains neither continuing managetlal Involvement to the degree usually assoclated with
ownership nor effective control aver the goods sold;
« {he amount of revenue can be meastired refiably;
+ ltis probable that the economic wenelils or service potentlal associated with the transaction will flow to the

Munlcipality; and .
+  the costs incurred or ta be Incurred in respact of the transactlon can be measurad reliably.

Rendering of services

Service charges relating to electricity and water are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and revenue
s recognized when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption are made monthly when meter readings have not been
performed and are based an the consumption history. The provisional estimates of gonsumption are recognized as revenue
when involced. Adjustments to provisional astimates of consumption are made In the involging period when meters have
bean read. Thess adjustments are recognized as revenua in the tnvoicing perlod.

Revenue arising frem application of the approved tariff of changes in recognised when the relevant service is rendeved by
applying the relevant authorlsed tariff, This includes the Issuing of licenses and parmits.

Service charges relating to solid waste, sanitation and sewerage are fevied monthly In lerms of the approved tariffs.

Intorest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entlly assels yielding interest, royalfies and dividends or similar distributions Is

racognised when:
«  Itisprobable that the aconomio beneflts of service potential assaciated with the transaction will flow to the

Munlcipality, and
«  The amotnt of the revenue can be measured raliably.

Intarest Is recognised, In surplus or deficit, using the effective interest method.

Sarvice fees included In the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the perlod during which the service is
performad.

1.18 Revenue from hon-exchange transactions

Revenus from non-exchange transaction refers to transaction where the municipality recelved revenue from another enfity
without diractly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenus from non-exchange transactlons is generally recognised
to the extent that the related receipt or raceivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there Is no liability to repay the
amount.
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1.19 Revenue from non-oxehange transactions (continued)

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-axchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, excepl {o the extent
that a liabllity Is also recognised in respact of the same inflow.

As the Municipality satisfies a present obligation recognlsed as a Habillty in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaclion recognised as an asset, It reduces the carrying amount of the llability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenus equal to that reduction,

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction s measured at the amount of the increase in net assels recognised by the
Munlcipaiity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the Munlelpalily recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recogrised It will ba measured as the best esfimate of the amount required to setife the
obiigation at the reporting date, and the amaunt of the Increase in net assels, if any, recognised as revenue, When a liabillity is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event oceurs or a condition is satlsfied, the amount of the reduction in the labllity is
recogniged as revenuse,

Taxes

‘The Municlpality recognises an asset in respect of taxes when the taxable evant ocours and the asset recognition criteria are
met,

.Resources arlsing from taxes salisfy the definitlen of an asset when the Munlolpality controls the resources as a result of a past
avent (the taxable avent) and expacts to receive future economic bensfits or service polential from those resources. Resources

The Municipallty analyses the taxation laws to determine what the taxable events are for the varlous taxes leviad.
The taxable avent for income tax is the eafning of assessable Income during the taxation pariod by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for value added tax is the undertaking of taxable activity during the taxation period by the taxpayer.
The taxable event for customs duty is the movernent of dutiable geods or services across the customs boundary,
The taxable event for estate duly is the death of a person owning {axable property,

The taxabte avent for property tax is the passing of the date on which the tax Is levied, or the period for which the tax is levied, If
the tax is levied on a perlodic basis.

Taxation revenus s determined at g gross amount. It Is not reduced for expenses pald through the tax system.

Transfers

Apart from Services In kind, which are not racognised, the Municipality recognlses an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources mest the definition of an asset and sallsfy the criterla for recognltion gs an asset,

The Municlpatity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meat the definltion of an assat and
salisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset,

Transferred assels are measured at their fais value as at the date of acquisition.
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1.49 Revenue from non-exchange transactions {continued)

Fines

Flnes are recognised as revenue when the racalvable masts the dafinition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for recognition as
an asset.

Assets arising from fines are rmeasured at the bast estimate of the inflow of resources to the Municipality.

Whaere the Municipalily collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not ba ravenue of the collecting antity.

Beguests

Bequesls that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognised as assets and revenue when It is probable that the future
aconomic benefits or service potential will flow to the Municlpality, and the falr value of the assels can be measurad reliably,

Glfts and donations, Including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are racognised as assets and revenue when it Is probable that the future aconamic
banelils or service potentiat will flow lo the Municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured raliably.

1.20 Borrowing costs

it s inappropriate to capitallse botrowing casts when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it Is difficult to link the
borrowlng requirements of an entity direcily to the nature of the expenditure to be funded 1e. capital or current.

Botrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incu ed.

4,21 Gomparative Tigures

Whaie necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

4,22 Unauthorised expenditurg

Unauthorised expenditire [s expenditure that has not been budgsted for, axpenditure ihat s not in terms of the conditions of an
allocation received from another sphere of government, municipallty or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant that
Is not permitted In ferms of the Municipal Finance Management Aot (Act Mo. 56 of 2003}, Unauthorised expendlture is accounted
for as an expense in the Statemant of Einancial Performance and where racovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue

in the Statement of Financlal Performancs.
1.23 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expendilure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care heen
axercised,

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wastefu! expanditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financiat
performance In the year that the expenditure was incurred, The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, It Is subsequently accotnted for as ravanue in the statement of financial performance.

1.24 hrregular expendiiure

trragular expenditure |s expenditure that Is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Munlclpal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Beaters Act (Act No. 20 of 1988) or is In contravention of {the
soonomic entity's supply chain management palicy. lrregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. lrragular
axpenditure is accourted for as expenditure in ihe Statement of Financlal Performance and where recoversd, it is subsequenily
accounted for as revenus In the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.25 Internal reserves
1.26 Departmental information

A departmental information on proparty, plant and equipment, as well as income and expenditure, is set outin Appendixes C
and D. The municlpality aperates sclely in its area of jurisdiction as determined by the Demarcation Board.
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1.26 Departmental information {continued)

Departmental Information s prepared in conformily with the accounting palicies applied for preparing and presenting the financial
stataments.

1.27 Budyget information

Economic Entity are typlcally sublect to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations {or equivalent),
which is givan effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or simlfar,

General purpose financlal reporting by Municlpality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget,

The approved budgst is prepared on an accrual basls and presented by functional classiflcation linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2018/07/01 to 2019/06/30,

The consolidated financlat statements and the budget are on the same basls of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting perlod have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts,

Comparalive Information is not required,
1.28 Related partfes

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality, Including
those charged with the governance of the Municipality in accordance with fegistation, In ihstances whers they are requlred to

perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered 1o be ihose family members who may be expecied to influence, or be
influanced by, that management in their dealings with the Municipality,

Only transactions with refated parties not at arm's length or not in the ordinary couise of business are disclosed.

1,29 Events aftor reporting date

Events after reporting dale are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporing date and the
date when the financlal statements are authorised for Issue, Two types of events can be identified:
*  those thal provide evidence of conditions that exlsted at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting data);

and
= those that are indlcative of conditions that arose after the reporting date {non-adjusting events after the raporting

date).

The Municlpaiily will adjust the amount recognised In tha financial statements to reflact adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event ocourred.

The Municipality will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of fts financlal effect or a statement that such estimats
cannot be made In respact of all malerial non-adjusting events, where non-diselosure could influence the economic declsions of
users faken on the basls of the financiai statements,

1,30 Value Added Tax (VAT)

The municlpality accounts for VAT on the payiment basis, Output VAT Is oniy ppayable as and when the purchase congideration
is recelved and input tax can ba claimed as and when payments are made.

1,81 Conditional grants and recelpts

Revenue recelved from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue {o the extent that the municipality
has complied with any of the criteria, condifions or obligations embodied In'the agreement. To the extant that the criteria,

conditions attached to the grants are met. Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is
recognised,
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Economic entlty Controlling entily

2, MNew standards and Interpretations
24 Standards and interpretations not yet affective or relevant

The following standards and interpretatlons have been published and are mandatory for the Municipality's accounting
periads beglnning an or aftar 01 July 2018 or later periods but are not relavant to lis operations:

GRAP 104 (amended): Financial Instruments

Following the global financial crisls, a number of cancerns were ralsed about the accounting for financial instruments. This
included that (&) information on credit losses and defaults on financial assets was received too late to enable proper
decislon-making, {v) using fair value In cartain Instances was inappropriate, and (c) some of the existing accounting
raquirements were seen as loo rules based, As a result, the International Accounting Standards Board® amended its
existing Standards to deal with these issues. The IASB lssued IFRS® Standard on Financlal Instruments (IFRS ) in 2009 to
address many of the cancems raised. Revislons wers also made lo IAS® on Financial Instrtuments: Presentation and the
IFRS Standard® on Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The IPSASB issued revised International Public Sestor Accounting
Standards in June 2018 so as to allgn them with the equivalent IFRS Standards.

The revislons better align the Standards of GRAP with recent international developments, The amendments result In batter
information available to make decisions abaut financial assets and their recoverability, and more transparent Information on
financlal Hlabilities.

The most significant changes to the Standard affact:
+  Flnanclat guarantes contracts lssued
+  Loan commilments issued
«  Classification of financlal assets
+  Amortised cost of financlal assets
«  Impairment of financlal assets
¢« Disclosures

The effective date of the amendment s not yet set by the Minlster of Finance.

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the amendment untl such time as it becomes applicable to the
Munlcipality's operations,

The impact of this standard s currently belng assessed,
Gulideline; Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites

The objective of this guideline: The Constlitution of South Africa, 1896 (Act No. 108 of 1996) {the constitution), gives local
government the execulive authority over the functions of cleaning, refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal,
Even though waste disposal activities are malnly undertaken by municipallties, other public sector entities may also be
involved In these activities from time to time. Concerns were ralsed about the Inconslstent accounting practicos for landfill
sltes and the refated rehabilitation provision where entlties undertake waste disposat activities. The objective of the Guldeline
s therefore to provide guldance fo entifies that manage and operato landfill sltes. The guidance will iImprove comparabllity
and provida the necessary information fo the users of the financial statements to hold entitles accountable and for decision
making. The principlas from the relevant Standards of GRAP are applied in accounting for the landfill site and the related
rehabilitation provision. Where appropriate, the Guideline also lHustraes the accounting for the land in a {andfill, the landflii
slie asset and the related rehabilitation provision.

It covers: Overview of the legislative requirements that govern tandfifl sites, Accounting for land, Accounting for the landfill
site assef, Accounting for the provision for rehabilitation, Closure, End-use and manitoring, Cther constderations, and
Annexures with Terminology & References to pronouncements tised in the Guideline.

The effective date of the guideline Is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The Municlpallty does not envisage the adoption of the guideline until such time as it becomes applicable to the
Municipality's operations.

The Impact of ihis standard Is currently belng assessed.
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Guideline: Guldeline on the Application of Materfality to Financlal Statemants

The objactive of this guldsline: The objective of this Guideline s to provide guidance that will assist enfitles to apply the
concept of materialily when preparing financial statements in accordance with Standards of GRAP. The Guidaline aims to
assist entitles In achieving the overall financlal reporting objactive. The Guldeline outlines a procass that may be considared
by entitles when applying materiafity to the preparation of financial statements. The process was developed based on
cohcapis outlined in Discusslon Paper 9 on Mafeviality — Reducing Complexity and improving Reporling, while also clarifying
axisting principles from the Conceptual Framework for General Purpose Financial Reporting and other refevant Standards of
GRAP. The Guideline includes examples and case studles fo [lustrate how an entity may apply the principlas in the
Guldeline, based on specific facts presented,

It covers: Definition and characieristics of materiality, Role of materiality in the financial statements, ldentifying the users of
financial slatements and their information needs, Assessing whether information Is materlal, Applying materialily in pieparing
the financlal statements, and Appendixes with Referencas to the Conceptual Framework for General Purpose Financlal
Reporting and the Standards of GRAP & Refarencas to pranouncements used in the Guldeline.

The effactive date of the guideline is not yet sat by the Minister of Finance.

The Munlcipality doas not envisage the adoption of the guklsline until such time as it becomas applicable o the
Municlpaility's operations,

The impact of this standard is currenily being assessed.
GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of Financial Statements
Amendments to this Standard of GRAP, are primarily drawn from the IASB’s Amandments [o JAS 1.
Summary of amendments are:
Materiality and aggregation
The amendments clarify that:
»  information should not be obscured by aggregating ar by providing immaterial Information;
*  materlallty considerations apply to all parls of the financial statements; and
= even when a Standard of GRAP requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations apply.

Statement of financlal position and statement of financial performance

The amendmaents clarffy that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and aggragated
as relevant and additional guldance on sublotals in thase statements,

Notes structure

The amendments add exampfes of possibie ways of ordering the notes ta clarify that tnderelandability and comparabiiity
should be considered when determining the order of the notes and to demonstrata that the notes need not be prasented In
the order listed In GRAP 1.

4
Disclosure of accounting policies

Remove guidance and axamples with regards fo the identification of significant accounting policies that were perceived as
being potentially unhelpful.

AMunicipality applies judgement based on past experlence and cutrent facts and clrcumstances.
The effective date of this amendment is for years beginning on or after 0% April 2020.
GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statoments

The oblective of this Standard is to prescribe the aceounting and disclosure requirements for investments in controllad
entitios, jolnt ventures and assodlates when an entity prepares separats financial statements.

it furthermore covers Definitions, Preparation of separate financlal statements, Disclosure, Translional provisions and
Effective date.
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The sffective data of the standard Is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2020.

The Municipality doas not envisage the adoptlon of the standard until such time as It becomes applicable to the Municipality's
operations,

The impact of this standard is currently belng assessed.
GRAP 35: Consolldated Financial Statements

The objective of this Standard |s to establish principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial
statoements when an entlly controls one of more othar entiiles,

To meet this objective, the Standard:
«  requires an entity {the controlling entity) that controls ane ermore othar entities {controlled entitles) fo present

consolidated financiat statements;
«  dofines the principle of control, and establishes control as the basis for consclidation;
+  sals out how to apply the principle of contral o [dentify wheather an entity conirols another entity and therefore

must consolidate that enfity;
«  sals out the accounting reguirements for the preparation of consolidated financial statements; and

+  defines an Investment entity and sets cut an exception to consolidating particutar controlled entitles of an
Investment entily.

it furthermore covers Definitions, Contral, Accounting raquirements, nvestment sntifies: Fair value requirement, Transitional
provislans and Effective date.

The effactive date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2020.

The Municipality doss not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable fo the Municlpality's
operations.

The impact of this standard is currently belng assessad.
GRAP 36: Invesiments in Assoctates and Joint Ventures

The objective of this Standard Is to prescribe the accounting for Investments in associates and joint ventures and to set out
the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments In associates and Joint ventures.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Significant influence, Equity method, Application of the aquity method, Separate financial
statements, Transttional provisions and Effective date.

The effective date of the standard is for years beglnning on or after 01 Aprll 2020,

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such \ime as it becomes applicable to the Municipality's
operations.

The Impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements

The objectiva of this Standard is fo establish principles for financial reporting by entities that have an interest in
arrangements that are controlled jolntly {i.e. jolnt arrangements).

To maet this objective, the Standard defines joint control and requires an entity that s a party to a joint arrangement to
determine the type of jolnt arrangement in which It is involved by assessing its rights and abligatlons and to account for those
Tights and obilgations In accordance with that type of joint arrangement.

it furthermore cavars Definiflons, Joint arrangements, Financlal statements and parties to a joint arrangement, Separate
financlal statements, Transitional provislons and Effective dale.

The effective data of the standard Is for yoars beginning on or afler 01 April 2020

‘The Municipality does not envisege the adoption of the standard untli such time as it becomas applicable to the Municipality's
oporalions.
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The impact of this standard is currently belng assessed.
GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

The objeclive of this Standard Is to raquire an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to

evaluate:
*  the nalure of, and risks associated with, its interests in controlied entities, unconsolldated controfled entitles, joint

arrangements and associates, and siruclured entities that are not consolidated; and
»  the effects of those Interests on Iis financlal position, financial performance and cash flows.

It furthermore covers Definltions, Disclosing information about inferests in other entities, Slgnificant judgements and
assumptions, Investment entity status, Intarests in controfled antttles, Intarests In joint arrangements and assoclates,
Interasts in sfructured entities that are not consolidated, Non-qualitative ownership intereats, Controliing interests acquired
wlth the intention of disposal, Transitional provislons and Effactive date.

The effactive date of the standard is for years baginning on or after 01 Apili 2020,

The Municlpality does not anvisage the adoptien of the standard until such time as it becomos applicable to the Murdcipality's
operations.

Tha impact of this standard is currently being assessed,
GRAP 110 (as amended 2016): Living and Non-llving Resources

The objective of this Standard Is to preseribe the:
. recognition, measurement, presentatlon and disclosure recuirements for fiving resources: and
*  disclosure requirements for non-living resources

It furthermare covers Definifions, Recognition, Measwrement, Depractation, Impalrment, Compensation for Impalmment,
Transfers, Derecognition, Disclosure, Transliional provisions and Effective date,

The subsequent amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Living and Non-living Resources resulted from editorial changes
to the original text and inconsistencles in measurament requirements In GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of
GRAP in refation te the treatment of transaction costs, Other changes resufted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Property,
Plant and Equipment (IPSAS 17) as a result of the IPSASR's Improvements to IPSASs 2014 Issued in January 2015 and
Improvements to [PSASs 2015 Issued In March 2016,

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
*  Genoral lImprovements: To clarify the freatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on asssts acqlired
In non-exchange transactions to be In line with the principle In GRAP 23; and To clarlfy the measurement princlpla
when assels may be acquired th exchangs for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and

nen-monetary assets

*  IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated
depraciatlon when a living resoures is revalued: To clarify acceptable mathods of depraclating assels; and To
define a bearer plant and include bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17 or GRAP 110, white the produce
growing on baarer plants will remaln within the scope of GRAP 27

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Financa.

The Municipality doss not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as It becomes applicable to the Municipallty's
operalions,

The impact of this standard is currently being assaessad,
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IGRAP 1 {revised): Applying the Probahility Test on Initlal Recognition of Revenue

The amendments to this Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP clarlfies that the entity should alsc consider other factors In
assessing the probability of future ecanamic benefits or service potential lo the entity, Entities are also uncertalin of the extent
to which factors, other than the uncertainty about the collectability of revenue, should be consldered when determining the
probabiilly of the Inflow of future economic benefils or service potentlal on initial recognition of revenue. For axample, in
providing certain goods or services, or when charging non-exchange revenus, the amount of ravenue charged may be
reduced or olherwlsa madified under contain circumstances, These clroumstances include, for example, where the entity
grants early seltloment discounts, rebales or similar reductions based on the satisfaction of cartaln crlteria, or as a result of
adjusiments to revenue already recognised following the oulcome of any review, appeal or objection process.

The consensus Is that on initial recogrition of revenue, an enfily consldars the revenue it Is entitled to, following Its obligation
to collact all revenue due to It In terms of leglslation or similar means. in addition, an entity considers other factors that will
Impact the probable inflow of future economic banefits or service potential, based on past experience and current facts and
circumstances that exist on Initial racognition,

An Municipality applies fudgement based on past experience and current facts and circumstances.
The effective date of the amendment s for years beginning on or after 01 April 2020.

The Municipality does not envisags the adoption of the amendment until such time as it bacomes applicable to the
Municlpality's operations.

The Impact of this standard is currently belng assessed.

GRAP 18 {as amended 2018); Segment Reporting

Segmants are identifled by the way it which informatlon Is reported to management, both for purposes of assessing
performanca and making decisions about how future resources witl be aliocated to the varlous activities undertaken by the

munigipality. The major classiications of aclivities identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the segments for
which an entity reports infarmation to managemant.

Segment informatlon is either presented based an service or geographlcal segments. Service segments relate to a
distinguishable component of an entlty that provides specific outputs or achleves particular operating oblectives that are in
{ine with the municipality's overall missior. Gaographical segments ralate to specific cutputs generated, or particular
objectives achleved, by an entity within a particular reglon.

The subsaquent amendments fo the Standard of GRAP on Segment Reporling resuited from editorial and other changes to
the orlginal text have been made to ensure consistency with other Standards of GRAP.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
«  General Improvements: An appendix with Hlustrative segment disclosures has been deleted from the Standard as

{ha Nationgl Treasury has issued complete axamples as part of its implementation guidance.

The effective date of the standard is for years beainning on or after 01 July 2019

The Municlpality does nol envisage the adaption of the standard until such fime as [t becomes applicable to the Municipality's
operations,

it Is unfikely that the standard will have a matertal impact on the Municipality's consolidated financlal statements.

GRAP 108: Statutory Recelvables

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of statutory receivables.

it furthermore covers: Definitlons, recognition, derecognition, meastrement, presantation and disclosurs, transitional
provistons, as well as the effective date.

The effeciive date of the standard s not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The Munlcipality doss not envisage the adoption of lhe standard untl such time as it becomes applicable lo the Municipalily's
operations.
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itis unlikely that the standard wili have a malerial Imipact on the Municipality's consalidated financlal statements.
[GRAP 18: Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and Derecognition of Land

This Interpratation of the Standards of GRAP applies to the Initial recognition and derecoghition of fand in an antity’s financial
statements. It also considers Joint control of land by more than one entily,

When an entity concludes that it controls the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP, it applies the applicable Standard of GRAP, i.e. the Standard of GRAP on Inventories, fnvesiment Property (GRAP
18), Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17) or Heritage Assets, As this interpratation of the Standards of GRAP doas not
apply to the classiflcation, inilial and subsequent measurement, presentation and disclosure raquirements of land, the entity
applies the applicable Standard of GRAP to account for the land once control of the land has been detarmined. An entity
also applies the applicable Standards of GRAP Io the derecognilion of land when it concludes that It does not contral the
land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP,

The effectiva date of the interpretation Is for years beginning on or aiter 01 July 2019,

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the Interpretation untif such time as it becomes applicabls to the
Municipaiity's operations.

Itis unilkely that the interpretation will have a material impact on the Munlcipality’s consolidated financlal statemants.

IGRAP 19: Llabilities to Pay Levies

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance on the accounling for levies In the financial statements of
the entity that is paying the levy, It clarifies when entifies need to recognise a liability to pay a ievy that Is accounted for In
accordance with GRAP 19,

Ta clarify the accounting for a liability to pay a levy, this inteipratation of the Standards of GRAP addresses the following
issties;
*  Whatis the obligaling event that gives rise to the racagnition of a liability to pay a levy?
*  Does economic compulslon to continue to aperate in a fulure period create a constructive obligation to pay a levy
that will be triggered hy operating in that future period?
] Does the going concem assumption impiy that an enfity has a present abligation lo pay a levy that will be
triggered by operating in & future period?
*  Does the recognition of a liabitity to pay & levy arlse at a point in fime or does It, in some clreumstances, arise
progressively over time?
*  Whatls the obligating event that gives rise to the recognition of a ligbility to pay a levy that is triggered if a
minimum threshold is reached?

Consensus reached in this interpretation;

*  The obligating event tha gives rise o a liabliity to pay a levy is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as
Identified by the lagislation;

¢ Anentily does not hava a constructive obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by opsrating In a future period
as a result of the entily being ecenomically compelied to continue to oparate in that future period;

*  The preparation of financlal statements under the going concern assumption doss not Imply that an entity has a
present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a future period;

*  Thellability to pay a levy Is racognised progressively if the obligating event occurs over a perlod of time;

*  lfan obligation to pay a levy Is triggered when a minimum threshold is reached, the accounting for the fiability that
arlses from that obligation shall be consisient with the principles established in this Interpretation of the Standards
of GRAP; and

. An entity shall recognise an assel, in accordance with the relevant Standard of GRAP, i it has prapaid a levy but
does not yet have a present obligation to pay that levy.

The effective date of the Interpratation is net yet set by the Minlster of Financa.

The Municlpality does not envisage the adopfion of the interpretation untit such time as It becomes applicable to the
Municipality'’s operations,
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It is unlikely that the Interpretation will have a material impact on the Municlpality's consolidated financlat statements.

3. inventories

Consumable stares 12 742 335 13 744 420 12742 335 13 744 420
Stands 5 420 000 5420 000 5 420 000 5 420 000
168 162 336 19 164 420 18 162 335 19 164 420

The carrying value of inventories is disclosed at lower of cost of net realisable vaiue.
4, Ofther financlal assets

At amortised cost
Fixed deposits - listed 31 526 083 26 887 399 31 525 083 26 BBY 389

Mon-current assets
At amortised cost 31 626 083 26 887 399 31 525 083 26 887 399

Einanclal assets at amortised cost

Councli's vaiuation of llsted investments

Liberty Group Limited 14 136 280 10 762 080 14 136 960 10762 080
Standard Bank 17 388 103 16 125 319 17 388 103 16 126 319
31 525 083 26 887 399 31 525 083 26 887 399

Fair value of Investments are at book value as at 30 June 2019,
No non-current Investments defaulted and rio terms of any of the non-current investments wera re-negotiated.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date Is the falr value of sach ciass of financial asset menticned above,

Fixed deposits of R 14 136 980 and R 17 388 103 baen made with Liberty and Standard Bank of South Africa respectively to
repay loans of R 16 000 000 and R 30 000 000 on maturity date.

Loane to staff and the public
To camply with the requirerents of the MFMA, no loan has been made after 1 March 2004,
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Economic antity Conirolling entity
Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
6. Receivables from non-exehange transactions
Fines : 36 833 080 43 961 106 36 833 080 43 981 108
Government grants and subsidjes 720 000 - - -
37 653 D40 43 961 106 36 833 080 43 961 106

Reconcilation of traffic fines
Opening balance 43 881 106 75 870 945 43 961 1086 . 76 870 945
Issued 33 076 650 38 364 900 33 076 850 38 364 900
Less; Withdrawn (1441 020) (913 400) {1441 020) {913 400)
Less: Fines receipted (1974 279) (5018 102} (1974 279) {6018102)
Less: Proviston for impaliment {36 789 377) (64 343 237) (36 789 377) {64 343 237)
Balance at the end of the year 36 833 0ao 43 961 106 36 833 080 43 961 106
Reconcillatlon of provision for traffic fines
Opening balance 91 141 550 268789313 91 141 650 26 798 313
Pravision for impairment 36 789 377 64 343 237 36 789 377 64 343 237

127 930 927 91 132 650 127 930 927 91 141 550

Recelvables from non-exchange transactions

The Accounting Standard Bozrd amended GRAP 1 applying the Probability Test an the initial Recognition of Revenue to Includs
revenus from non- exchange lransactions. This amendrment is appficable {o municipaiitias from 1 July 2013, GRAP 1 indicates
that antitles should not consider the probability of non- payment on the initlal recognition of revenue, This should be considered
as a subsequent even when assessing impairment.

Fine revenue of all fines issued during the current year amounted to R 31 635 630 {2018: R 37 481 500). The outstanding fines
were assessed for impafment based on the payment history of fines Issued and measures put in place to recover the
oulstanding amount.

The racovery of traffic fines Is & prolracted pracess dug to the administrative and court procedures,

Credit quality of receivahles from non-sxchange transactions

Trafiic fines are payabla as determined by the fine, The credit period granted is considered to be consistent with the establishad
practices and legislation,

The Munlclpality's historicat experience in coliaction of fraffic fines fall within recorded allowances. Due to thesa factors,
management believes that no additionaf risk bayond amounis provided for collection lossas Is Inherent in the Municipality's
receivables from non-sxchange transactions,

6, Opsrating lease asset {accrual)

Operating lease agsat {accrual}

Current assets 152 382 173 367 162 382 173 387

Municipality as lessor: Future minimum
lease repayments receivable

Less than one year 478 478 445 409 478 478 445 409
Between one year and five years 1108 6500 1585 328 1108 500 1585328
More than five years 108 376 110 028 108 376 110026

1 696 354 2140763 1695 354 2140 763
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Economic entity Controlling enlity
Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

Operating leases relate to property owned by the Municipality with lease terms of batween one (1) and twventy (20} years, with an
option to extend the lease. The lesses does not have an oplion to purchase tha property at the expiry of the lease paried. The
propertles are rmaintained by the tenant, at thelr cost.

The Municipality has operating lease agreements for the following classes of assets which are only significant collectively.
= Municipal buildings
= Vacantland

Operating lease income and expenditure have baen recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term. The effect of
accounting for operating leases on the straight line baslis had the above offect.

No restrictlons have been imposed on the Municipality in terms of the opsraling lease agreements

7. Recelvables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 260 572 662 230 349 127 260 572673 230 349 133
Prepayments 3089 1939 - -
Rental deposit 3386 3386 - -
Other recalvables 33 148 139 29 056 132 33 148 140 29 056 132
Bursary loans 692 742 574 734 692 742 574 734
294 420 026 259 885 318 294 413 556 259 979 999
Provision for impalrment of recaivables (33 200 687} (26 260 544) {33 200 £87) {26 260 5H44)

261 219338 233724774 281 212 868 233719455

Reconciliation of provision for impalrment of trade and other recelvables

Opening batance 26 260 644 22 357 001 26 260 544 22 357 001

Provision for impairment 6 940 143 9 651 393 6 940 143 9651393

Amounts written off as uncollectible - (5 747 850} - (5 747 850)
33 200 887 26 260 544 33 200 687 26 260 544

The 'bursary loans' 2018 comparative amount of R 674 734 has baen restated from R 586 374 (sco note 62).
The "trade debtors’ 2018 comparative amount of R 223 million has been restated from R 243 million (see note 82).

The impairment allowance mainly reprasents the outstanding amounts due to the Municipatity In respact of indigent
consumables, rental hawker stafls, private dumping, etc.

Cradit quality of raceivables from exchange transactions

Trade and other debiors ara payable within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered o be consistent with the terms
usad in the public sector, through wstablished practices and legistation. Discounting of trade and other recelvable on inltial

recognition Is not deemed nocessary.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to other receivables are iimited due 1o the Munlcipality's large number of customers.
The Municlpality's historical experience in collection of irade receivables falls within racarded allowances. Dus to these factors,
management balleves that no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses ls Inherent in the Municipality's trade

receivables,

8. Consumer debtors

Gross balances

Rates 189 892 185 469 747 326 489 892 185 159 747 326
Electricity 199 167 687 197 492 846 199 197 687 197 492 845
Refuse 81 828 219 69 066 027 81828219 69 066 027

470 918 091 426 306 198 AT0 918 091 426 306 198
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Economic entity

Cantrolfing entity

Figuras in Rand 2018 2018 2019 2018
Less: Allowance far impalrment
Rales {170 651 680} (132 340 973) (170 651 580) (132 340 973)
Electricity {128 114 018) (98 074 859) {128 114 016) {98 079 859)
Refuse (70 208 661) (68 564 242) (70 208 661) {568 564 242)
{368 874 237) (288 985 074) {368 974 237) (288 985 074)
Net balance
Rates 19 240 625 27 406 353 19 240 825 27 408 353
Electriclty 71083 671 99412 988 71 083 671 99 412 988
Refuse 11619 568 10 501 786 11 619 658 10 501 786
101 943 854 137321124 101 $43 864 137 321 124
Included In above Is receivables from
exchange transactions
Electricity 71083 671 09 412 988 71083 871 98 412 986
Refuse 11619 558 10 501 785 11619 558 10 601 785
82703 229 108814 771 82703 229 108914 771
Included In above is receivables from
non-exchange transactions (taxes and
transfers)
Rates 19 240625 27 408 353 19 240 625 27 406 353
Net halance 101 943 8564 137 321124 101 943 B54 137 321 124
Rates
Current (© -30 days) 9619 270 9333200 9619 270 9333 209
31-60 days 5025 903 5433 544 5025903 5 433 644
81 -90 days 4 243 682 3793 069 4243 682 3793 069
91 -120 days 3870083 3 590 317 3970083 3 590 317
121 - 365 days 167 033 247 137 697 187 167 033 247 137 697 187
189892 185 159 747 326 189 892 185 169 747 326
Electriclty
Gurrent {0 -30 days) 45 308 917 62 010 928 45 308 917 62 010 928
31 - 80 days 6204 859 10 421 708 8 204 859 10 421 706
61 - 90 days 9538 695 5 860 226 9 538 695 6 860 226
91 - 120 days 3265273 17 887 176 3265273 17 887 175
121 - 365 days 134 879 943 101 512 810 134 879 943 101 512 810
189 197 687 197 492 845 126 197 687 197 492 845
Refuse
Currant {0 -30 days) 3430 392 3674 191 3430 392 3674 181
31 - 60 days 2010 906 1785671 20109086 1785671
61 - 90 days 1713103 1311323 1713103 1311323
91 - 120 days 1436 272 1286771 1436 272 1256771
121 - 365 days 73 237 546 61 138 071 73 237 6548 61138 071
81 828 219 69 068 027 81 828 219 €9 086 027
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Econarhic entity Contralling entity

Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Resldential
Current (0 -30 days) . 17 805 834 26018 711 17 806 834 256018 711
31 - 60 days 6 692 329 7 811 301 6 692 329 7 811 301
61 - 90 days G 201 227 4 837 055 6 201 227 4 837 055
94 - 120 days 4 418 310 4 103 348 4 416 310 4 103 348
121 - 365 days 239 438 774 191 386 528 736 438 774 191 386 528

274 554 474 233 166 943 274 654 474 233 156 943
Indusirialf commaercial
Gurrent (0 -30 days) 35 030 580 43 144 736 35 030 580 43144736
31 - 60 days 3894 378 6785 389 3804 378 6 785 380
81 - 90 days 7 035 623 4 463 331 7 035623 4 463 331
91 - 120 days 1623930 14 197 481 1923 930 14 197 481
121 - 365 days 123 808 710 91 885 861 123 808 710 91 886 861

174 693 221 160 476 798 171 693 221 160 476 798

National and provineial government

Current (0 -30 days) 1434 382 1431910 1 434 382 1431910
31 - 60 days 742 038 936 908 742 038 ©36 908
61 - 90 days 634 872 789 350 834 872 789 350
91 - 120 days 278770 549 684 278 770 549 684
121 - 365 days 43 234 796 11 499 710 43234796 11 498 710
16 324 8568 16 207 562 16 324 858 185 207 662

Other
Currant {0 -30 days}) 2478 404 5074 274 2 478 404 5074 274
31 - 60 days 590 477 3223969 500 477 3223969
61 - 90 days 436 114 1 541 872 438 114 1 641 872
99 - 120 days 928 030 4031778 0928 030 4031778
121 - 366 days 39125613 3603 001 3912513 3 593 001
8 345 538 17 464 B9S 8345 538 17 464 855
Total 470 918 091 426 306 198 470 918 091 426 306 198

Consumer debtors pledged as security
No poriing of accounts recelvables was pledged as securlty for any financial liabllitles

Credit quality of consumer debtors

The credit quallty of consumer deblors that are nelther past nor impaired can be assessed by reference o historical information
about counterparty default rates:

Consumer debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period Is considered to be conslstent with the terms used in the public
sector, through established practices and leglslation. Discounting of consumer debtors on initial recognition Is not deemed
necessary.

Concentiations of cradit risk with respect fo cansumer debtors are limited due to the Municipality's large number of customers.
The Munlcipality's historical experience in collection of consumer debtors falls within recorded allowances. Due to these factors,
management believes that no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherant in the Municipalitys

cansumer debtors,
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Econemic entity Canlrolling entity
Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

Fair value of consumer debtors

The fair value of accounts receivable approximates thelr carrying amotnts,

Consumer debfors

No security is held for any of the accounts receivable,

Consumer debtors Impaired

As of 30 June 2019, consumer debtors of R 368 974 237 (2018: R 288 985 074} were impalred and provided for.

An estimate Is made for doubtful recsivables based on the reviaw of alt oulstanding amounts at year end. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probabiiity that the deblor may enter bankrupcy and default of delinquency in payments (more than 90
days overdue) are considered indicators that the consumer is impaired. No amount for the curent year (2018: R 9 978 788) was
written off during the vear as uncollsctable.

The amounls best reprasent the maximum exposure to credil risk at the end of the reporting period wilhout taking into account
of any collateral hekt or other credit enhancemants.

ReconchHiation of allowance for im pairment of consumer debtors

Opening balance 288 985 074 258 833 918 288 986 074 268633 918
Allowance for impalrment 79989 183 40 329 922 79989 163 40 329 922
Amounts written off as uncollectible - (e 678 766) - (9 978 786)

368 974 237 288 985 074 368 974 237 288 985 074

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 178 177 - -
Bank balances 42 448 807 7 696 B85 42033011 7 490 665
Other cash and cash equivalents 1266 359 193 - -

42 450 240 8 056 256 42 033 011 7 490 865

No cash and cash equivalents, or portion thereof, was pledged as securily for any financial liabilittes.

The balance of unspent conditional grants as per Note 49 can only be used for the purpose as sel autin the different grant
conditions and is not available to the Municipality to use In its normal business operations.
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‘The Municipallty had the following bank accounts

Acgount number { description

Bank statement balances
30 June 2099 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Cash book halances
20 June 2049 30 June 2018 30 June 2017

Consolidated cash book balance - - - 42460 240 Bo56256 32550420
ABSA Bank - Cheque account

number 126 085 0527 Primar

ABSA Bank - Cheque account 7 714 245 6995 425 3313689 - - -
number - 404 896 4222

ABSA Bank - Cheque account 245 207 487 680 1 510 568 - - -
number - 908 197 4990

ABSA Bank Liquldity plus 5141 834 4692 22534572 - - -
account - 9312433930 {(MIG)

ABSA Bank - Liquidity plus 28 @31 725 - 2968 4 480 334 - - -
account - 9312434237 {INEP)

ABSA Bank - Chaque Account - 93 850 206 220 646 331 " -
40-7166-4682

ABSA Bank - 32 Day notice 356 348 340 - - -
account 92-2181-3770

ABSA Bank - Depositr Plus 898 358 845 a4 608 - - -
Account - 92-8785-3028 _

ABSA Bark - Classic Business 321 947 - - - - -
Account {SETA) 40-9462-4400

Total A2 480 062 8 056 078 32 660 342 42 450 240 8 056 255 32 560 420

The Municipality has fwo bank accounts o control MIG and INEP funds saparately.
An amount of R 5083 272 (2018: R 2 924 B4T) of the unspent conditional grants s included in cash and cash equivalents.

Credlt quality of Cash and cash aquivalents

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents that are neither past due nor Impalred can be assassed by refarence to the

Municipality's golng concern ratio's which include current ratio,

10. Investment property

Economic entity

Investment property

Controlling entity

fnvestmant property

debt ratio and nat Income to nel sales ratio.

2018 2018
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumutated
Impairment Impairment
481 377 053 - 181377053 181377063 - 181377 053
2019 2018
GCost! ‘Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impalrment Impairment
181 377 063 . 181377063 181377083 - 181377063
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Reconciliafion of Investment property - Economic entity - 2019

Opening Total
balance
Investment property 181377 053 181 377 053
Reconciliation of investment property - Economic entity - 2018
Opening Disposals Transfers Total
balance received
Investment property 170 942 753 (670 000) 11004300 181577 063
Reconcillation of investment praperty - Controlling enfity - 2019
Opening Total
balance
Investment property 181 377 053 181 377 053
Reconclliation of Investment proparty - Controiling entity - 2018
Opsning Dlspasals Transfers Total
balance received
Invesiment properly 170 942 753 (670000) 11004300 181 377 033

Pledged as security
No Investment propertios was pladged as securlty for liabilitles,
The municipafity genarated fncome from renlal of investment properties of R140 510 monthly on average (2018: R131 31 0}

A register containing the information required by seciion 63 ofthe Municlpai Finance Management Act Is available for inspaction
at the reglstered office of the Municipality.

Details of valuation

The Greater Tzansen Municipal valuations is based on the valuation rolt which Is reviewed every four years, The last valuation
roll came Into effect on 1 July 2017, Supplementary valuations are Issuad and processed annually to take into account changes
in Individual property value due to alterations and subdivisions,
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41. Properly, plant and equipment

Economic entity 2018

2018

GCost/ Accumuiated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
valuatlon  deprociation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Land 124 398 446 - 124308 446 124 308 446 - 124 398 446
Fumiture and fixtures 183 960 (163 446) 20614 171732 (147 207) 24 526
Office equipment 37 278 {27 240) 10038 45 324 (38 810} 6514
IT aquipment 245 776 {160 636) 85 140 257 333 {141 767) 115 576
Infrastructure 2 982 241 337 (1 183 099 509) 1 099 144 828 2 254 746 250 (1074 653 827) 1 180 092 423
Community {08 B42 767  {43332049) 1565509 g8 170300866 (36314 648) 134 076 218
Work in Progress 52 949 441 - 52049441 30085479 - 30985479
Other assels 71276476 (66570812) 15705 614 652326385 (61563361) 13 773024
Leased Assets 18315531 {10792 849) 7522682 10920220 (7932 282) 2987 938
Total 7748 450 962 (1 293 147 441} 1 AB5 343 521 2 657 242 036 {1170 781 892) 1 486 460 143
Controlling entity 2019 2018
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Gost/f Accumulaied Garrylng value
valuation  depreciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impalrment impairment
Land 124 398 446 - 124398446 124 308446 - 124398 446
Infrastructure 5982 241 336 (1 183 099 510) 1 088 141 825 2 254 746 249 (1 074 653 828) 1 180 092 421
Community 108 842 785 (43 332960) 156509 815 170300866 (36314 648) 134 076 216
Work in progress 52 949 441 - 52040441 30 985 479 - 30985479
Other assels 74976426 (65670812) 16705 613 65326384 (51553 363) 13 773 024
Leased assels 18316631 (10792849) 7622682 10920221 (7 932 282} 2 987 939
Total 2 748 023 943 (1 292 796 121} 1 456 277 822 2 656 767 644 (1 170 464 422) 1 486 313 622
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidated Financlal Statements for tha yaar ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Flgures in Rand

A register containing the information required by section 83 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is avaifable for inspection
at the registered office of the Municipality.

The prior period balances were restated for prior year arrors. Refer to note 62 for detall,

A detailed breakdown of prapery plant and equipment by asse! class can be found in Annhexure "B”,

12, Intangfble assets

Economic entity

Computer sofiware, internatly
generated
Other Intangible assets

Total

Controlling entity

Computer software

Reconciliation of intanglble assets - Economie entity - 2019

Computer softwara, internally genarated

Reconciliation of Infangible assets - Economic entity - 2018

Computer software, internally generated

Reconclliation of intangible assets - Controlling entlty - 2019

Computer software and license

Reconcliiation of Intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2018

Computer software and license

2019 2018
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying valie Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  amortisation Valuation  amoriisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impalirment impairment
3808 727 {2 673 590) 1135 137 3653780 {2 046 8385} 1606 954
45 051 (45 051) - 45 051 {45 051) -
3863778 {2718 641) 1135137 3 698 840 (2 091 888) 1606 954
2019 2018
Cost/ Accumulated Carrylng value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation  amortisation Valuation  amortisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
Impairment impairment
3 760 040 (2624 903) 1135 137 3 605 102 (2 001 634) 1603 468
Opening Additlons  Ameortisation Total
kalance
1606 954 154 938 (626 755) 1135137
Opening Additions  Amortisation Total
balance !
1143 106 1 160 797 {686 948) 1606 954
Opening Additlons  Amortisation Total
halance
1603 468 1649038 (623269) 1135137
Opening Additions  Amortisation Total
balance
1135 042 1160 797 (682 371} 1603 468
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Pledged as security

No intangible assets have been pledged as security for any liability.

The municipsdity amortizes all its Intangible assets on a straight-ine method and none of these are regarded as having an
indafinite uselul fife. The useful lives of intangible assets changed front one to two years on average from previous years.

13, Heritage assets

Economic entity 2018 2018
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost! Accumulated Carrylng value
Vafuatlon  Impairment Valuation  impairment
logsas losses
Stamp collections, military 495 000 - 196 000 195 000 - 166 000
insignia, medals, coln
Controlling entity 2019 2018
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation impalrment Valuation Impairment
josses logses
Mayoral chaln 195 000 - 195 000 $85 000 - 195 000
Reconciltation of heritage assets Economic entity - 2019
Opening Total
balance
Stamp collections, military inslgnia, medals, coin 195 000 195 000
Reconcillaflon of heritage assets Economie enfity - 2048
Opening Total
balance
Stamp collections, milltary insignia, medals, coln 195 000 185 000
Reconciliation of heritage assets Contralling entity - 2019
Cpening Total
balance
Maryoral chain 195 000 185 000
Reconcillation of herltage assets Gontrolling entity - 2018
QOpsning Total
halance
195 000 195 000

Mayorai chaln
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Economlc entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand 2019 218 2019 2018
14.  Other financial liablfities
Designated at amortised cost
DBSA local registered Ioan stock 15 000 000 15 600 000 16 000 000 156 000 000
Loan Stock - Standard Bank 30 000 000 30 000 000 30 000 000 30 000 000
45 000 000 45 000 o000 45 000 000 45 060 600
At amortised cost
Annuity loan - YBSA 30 466 889 32 183025 30 466 889 32 183 025
Annuity Joan - ABSA 16 848 525 18 340 756 16 848 525 18 340 756
Annuity foan - INCA - 1953 417 - 1953 417
Annuity loan - Standard Banlk - 4 585 172 - 4565 172
Annuity loan - DBSA 40 000 000 - 40 000 000 -
Accrued interest 1140 403 1139 209 1140 403 1132 209
B8 455 817 58 181 578 88 455 817 58 181 579
Total other financial liabllMias 133 456 817 103 181 578 133 455 817 103 181 579
Non-current llabllities
Other 45 000 000 45 000 000 46 000 000 45 00G 000
Annuity loans 65 645 166 47 456 572 65 645 166 47 456 572
110 645 168 92 456 572 110 645 166 92 456 572
Current Habilitieg
At amortised cost 22 810 651 10 725 007 22 810 651 10725 007

The 'Other financial liabilities' 2018 comparalive amount of R 32,183 milifon has been restatad from R 32.041 milflon (see note
62},

Annuity loan - Standard Bank

This loan of R21 611 000 was taken up on 30 June 2012. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 11,8% and has been fullly
redeemed on 30 June 2019,

Annuity loan - ABSA

This loan of R25 140 000, with a current batance of R 16 848 525, was taken up on 15 August 2010. The loan bears interest at a
fixed rate of 10,62% and wlll be fully redeemed on 31 July 2025,

Annuity loan - DBSA

A loan of R41 000 000, with a current bafance of R 30 486 889, was taken up o finance capital projacts. This ican baars interast
ata fixad rate of 6,76% per annum and will be fully redeamad on 31 Qctober 2030,

Annuity loan - INGA

The loan has bean taken up to finance the purchase of land. It bora interest al a fixed rate of { 2,5% per annum and has been
fully redeerned on 31 December 2018,

Loan stock: DBSA {Excelsior 1 000 Investment)

Amr annual investrent of R855 618 has been made with Libarty to repay a loan of R16 000 000 on maturity date, The loan boars
Interest at a variable rate and will be redsemed on 30 September 2019,
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Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

Annuity loan: DBSA

Atpan of R 40 000 000, with a current balance of R 40 000 000, has beon taken up to finance capital projects. The loan bears
Interest at a fxed rate of 11.3% per annum and will be fully redeemed on 30 September 2028.

Loan Stock: Standard Bank

A loan of R 30 000 000 has been taken up to financa caplital projects. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 12.09 % per
annum and will be redeamed an 16 October 2026.

Undrawn horrowings
There were no undrawn borrawing facliities thal were available for fulure aclivities or to settle capital commitments at30 June

2018.

Mone of the loans are secured by any fixed or movable assets of the Greater Tzanesn Muricipality.
The Munlcipality did not default on any of the botrowings in respect of capilat or Interest portions.
No terms attached fo the financial llabilitles were re-negotiated.,

16. Einance lease oblgatton

Minimusms lease payments due

- within ohe year 3630878 034 458 3630878 434 458
- in second to fifth year inclusive 4 060 236 632 049 4060 236 632 049

7691 114 1 666 507 7691 114 1 666 bO7
Less: future finance charges {1 161 090) {139 534} (1 161 090) {139 534)
Present value of minimum lease 6 530 024 1 426 973 6 530 024 1428 973
paymerite

Present value of minlmum [ease
payments due

- within one year 2976540 824 306 2 978 540 824 306
- In second to fifth year Inclusive 3 561 484 802 667 3 551 484 602 667
6 530024 1 426 873 6 530 024 1426 973
Non-current liabilities 3551484 602 667 3551 484 602 667
Current liabliities 2 978 540 824 306 2978 540 824 306
6 530 024 4 428 973 6 530 024 1426 973

The average lease term was 2 to 3 years. Interest rates are fixed at the coniract daie. Certain leases have fixed repayments and
others escalate, No arrangements have been entered into for canfingent rent.

The carrying value of these laased assels are included under property, plant and equipment.

The Municipality's obligations undar finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased asssts,
‘The Muntclpality did not default on any of the Interest or capital repayments of he finance leases.

Now ipase agreements were enterad into during 2018/2019 financial year for iICT equipment and photocopiers.

No terms and conditions of the finance leases wore re-negotiated during the reporting period.
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Ecanomic entity Confrolling entity

Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
16. Payables from exchange fransactions
Payables 161 179 161 136 307 798 181 179 1569 136 307 7985
Staff leave 30919811 3b 880 487 30918811 35 880 487
Retention 22753278 24 481 Q08 22 753 277 24 481 008
Accrued ieave pay 45 568 39 005 - -
Unknown direct deposits 4739264 3798 158 4739 264 3798 158
13th Cheque 8 034 088 7 397 616 8 034 086 7397 615
Accrued audit fas 495 934 - - -
Other payables 148 959 175 362 - -

228 316 (91 208 079 431 227 625 6597 207 865 063

The 'payables: 2018 comparative amount of R 136.3 million has baen restatad from R 128.7 million {see note 62},
The 'refention’ 2018 cornparative amaunt of R 24.4 miflion has baen restated from R 23.6 milllon (see note 62).

Trade payables

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from racelpt of the Invoice, as determined by Secfion 89 of the MFMA. No
interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of receipt of the Involce, Thereatter Interest is charged In aceordance with
the credit policles of the varlous Individual creditors that the Municlpality deals with.

included under payables are payments received In advance which ars non-interest bearing and normally settled on 30 day lerms
Staff leave

Annual leave accruss to employees on a monthly basis subfect fo certaln conditions. The provision is an estimala of the amount
due to staff as at the financlal year-and, based on the value of statutory and non-statutory leave,

Retention
Retention Is non-interest bearing and settied in terms of the contract agreement,

Unknown direct deposits
The origin of the deposits could not be delermined at year-end,

13th Cheque

A 13th chequs or annual bonus acoruss to staif on an annual basis subject to certaln conditions. The provision Is the actual
amotnt duo at the reporting date to staff and is pald after ihe completion of twelve months. The Municipality has an obligation to
pay a seivice bonus in terms of il's conditions of employmaent,

The carrying valye of payablas from exchange fransaclions approximale their fair values, The fair valus is determined after
considering the standard terms and conditions of agresments entered into by the Municlpality and the parties.

The Municipality did not default on any accounts payable In respect of capital or interast portions.

No terms attached to the accounts payable were re-negotiated.

17, VAT payable

Net VAT payable 46 798 765 42 373 168 39 960 827 36 353 082

‘The financlal statements have been prepared on the acerual basls whilst VAT Is payable to S8ARS on the payments basis,
Gutput VAT is only payable as and when the purchase considaration is raceived and Input VAT san only be claimed as and
when payments are made, Interest on late payment is charged according to SARS poficles, In terms of the VAT Acl, tha VAT
increased from 14% to 16% from 04 Aprif 2018.
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Economic entily Controliing entity
Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
48, Gonsumer deposits
Electriclty 27 088 007 26 858 463 27 068 007 26 858 463
Guarantees held In liet of electricity deposils 3241830 3330030 3211830 3339030

Consumar deposits are paid by customars on application for new slactricity connectlons. The deposils are repaid whan the
eleclriclly conneciions are terminated. In cages where consumers dofault on thelr accounts, the Municipality can utilise the
deposit as payment for the outstanding accounts.

Guaranteses are given to business consumers on application for new slactricity conneclons instead of deposlis, In cases whera
consumers default on their accounts, the Munlcipalily can requoest the guaraniea amounts from the consumers' bank as payment

for the oulstanding accounts.
19, Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and recelpts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and recelpts
Grants - other 5083273 3 955 460 5083273 3 955 460

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 3 956 460 17 749721 3 9855 460 17 749 721

Addlflons during the year 416 602 4056 134 005 000 116 602 405 134 005 000

Income recoghition during the year {94 239 834) {116 716 118) (94 239 934) (116 715 118)
Administration fee recognised during the (46156 760) (6 047 100) {4 616 760} {6 047 104
year

Loan repayments - (7 738 405) - (7 738 405)
Roll-over not approved (2 725 000) (1919412) (2 726 000} {1919 412)
VAT (12 863 296) (16 379 226) (12 863 296) {15 379 226)
Roll-over not apptled for {1 0308612) - (1 030 612) -

5083 273 3 956 460 5083 273 3 955 460

The amount of unspent condilional grants and receipls Is held in the operating bank account of the Municipafity until utilized.
The total grants recognlsed In the statement of financial performance are disclosed In note 25,

20. Provisions

Reconelllation of provisions - Economic entity - 2019

Opening Addlfions Total
. Balance
Provislon for rehabiiitation of landfil site 4 §26 520 462 651 5089171
Provision for performance bonuses 445 724 502 946 948 670
5072 244 966 597 6037 841
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Economlc entity

Controlling entity

Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
Reconcfitation of provislons - Economic entity - 2018
Opening Additions Reduction due Total
Balance tore-
measurement
or seftlement
without cost
to entity
Provision for rehabilitation of landfill site 4 205 027 420 593 - 4 826 520
Pravislen for performance bonuses 606 890 - (161 166} 445724
4812 817 A20 593 {161 166) 5072 244
Reconcifiation of provisions « Controlling entity - 2019
Opening Additions Total
Balance
Provision for rehabilitation of landiil sile 4626 520 462 851 5089171
Praviston for performance bonuses 446 724 502 946 948 670
5072 244 985 597 6 037 81
Reconclliation of provisions - Controlling entiy - 2018
Cpening Additions  Reduction due Total
Balance o re-
measurement
ot seftlemont
without cost
to entity
Provislon for rehabilitation of landfil site 4205 927 420 593 - 4628 520
Pravision for performance bonuses 606 890 - (161 166) 445 724
4 812 817 420 593 (161 166} 5072 244
Non-current liabllities 5089 171 4 626 520 5089 171 4 626 520
Currant Habilitios 848 670 445 724 848 670 445 724
6 037 841 6072244 6 037 41 5072 244

Provislon for rehabilitation of landfitl site

The provision for rehabliitation of landfll sites relates fo the lagal abligatlon to rehabliitate fandfili shes us
Proviston Is made In terms of the Municipality's licensing slipulations on the wasta landfill slte. The provi

ed for wasta disposal,
slon has been

determined on the basis of Independant valuations by snviranmental consultants. Itis calculated as the present value of the

future obligation, discounted at 10% over an average period of 20 years. The due date of this provislon Is June 2027,

Provislon for performance bonuses

Performance bonuses accrue te Section 67 managers on an annual basis subject to certain conditions. The provision is the
actual armount due at the reporting date to staff. Periormance bonuses are pald one year in arrears as the assessment of eligible
employses had not taken place at the end of the reporting period, Performance bonuses are measurad at face value asitis
expected that these would be pald shortly afler the financlal year end once performance evaluations have besn completed,
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entily Controfling entity

Flgures In Rand 2019 2018 2018 2018
21, Employes benefit obligations
Defined benefit plan
The total amount recognised In the
statement of financlal position Is as
follows:
Carrying value
Dofined benefit obligation - long service 16 363 718 12 977 166 16 353 718 12 977 166
award
Defined benafll obligation - post retirment 65 120 960 70 844 367 65 120 960 70 844 367
medical ald plan

81 474 678 83 821 523 81474 878 83 821 523

Post-retirement medical ald plan

The Municipality provides post-retirement beneflts by subsidising the medical aid contributions of certain retired staff. According
to the rules of tive medical aid funds with which the municipality is associated, a member on retiremant is entitied to remain a
continued member of such medical aid fund, and the municipality will continue fo subsidise inadical contributions in accordance
with the provisions of the employee’s emplayment cantract and the municipallty's decislon on protected rights.

The post-employment health care benefits valuation considers ali current employees, refirad employees and thelr dependants
who participate in the health care arrangements and are entitled to a post-employment medical schame subsidy. The post-
employment health cate Hability is not & funded arrangement, l.e. no separate sssels have baen set aside to mest this liabllity.
The affactive date of ihe valuation which was performed by ARCH Actuarial Consulting Is 30 June 2019,

Plan assets
Gurrently, no fong-term assets are set aside off - balance shest In tespect of the employer's past-employment health care

iability.

The Projected Unlt Credit Method was used to value the liabilitles and the liability for eligible ermployaas is accrued over thelr
expectad working iifetime.

Membership of health care arrangements enfitiad to a post-employment medical aid subsidy af reporting date was:

in-service members 302 385 302 386
In-service non-mempers 262 268 262 268
Continuation mambers 51 63 61 53

706 706 705 706

The amount recognised in the statement
of financial position Is as follows:

Catrylng value
Prasent value of the defined benefits 65 120 460 70 844 367 65 120 960 70 844 367

obligations - wholly unfunded

Changes in the present valua of the
defined beneflt obligation are as foltows:

Opsning balance 70 844 367 72 653728 70 844 367 72663728
Benefits pald (2217 321) {2172 117} (2 247 321) (2172 117)
et expense recognised in the statetnent ol {3 508 0BG} 462 766 {3 506 086) 462 766

financial performance

65120 860 70 844 367 65 120 960 70 844 387
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consalidated Financial Statements for the year andad 30 June 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2018 2018
Net expense recognised In the statement
of financial performance
Current cost 3613750 3981762 3613750 3981762
Interast cost 6738938 7017670 6738 938 7017 670
Actuarlal {gains) / losses (13 858 774) (10635 678) (13 858 774} (10 536 676}

{3 508 086} 462 756 (3 506 036) 452 766
Calculation of actuarial gains and losses
Actuarlal {pains) / losses 13858774 (10 536 678) 13858 774 (10 536 678)
Key assumptions used
Assumptions used af reporting date
Discount rate used 9.48 % 9.66 % 9.48 % 9.66 %
Health care cost inflation rate 693 % 7.45 % 6.93 % 7.45 %
Net discount rate 2.38 % 206 % 2.38% 2,08 %
Average refirment rate 62 61 62 61
Best estimate of contribution expacted to
be paid .
Expected benefit to be paid 2 200 887 2217 321 2 200 887 2217321
Other assumptions
The sensitivity analysls Is based on the total llability which includes water and sewerage,
Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have a slgnificant effect on the amounts recognised In surplus or daficlt. The effect of a
one percentage mavement in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation Is as follows:
increasa
Effect of aggregate service cost and inferest 13328 300 14 295 400 13 329 300 14 295 400
cost
Effact on the defined benefit obligation 82 169 000 89 597 00D 82 168 000 89 587 000
Decrease
Effect of aggregate service cost and Inferest {9 562 700) (10 170 200) {9 562 700) {10 170 200}
cost
Effect on the defined benefit obligation {60 994 000) (B7 172 000) (60 994 00D) (67 172 000)
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
R R R R R

Defined benefit obligation 65 120 960 70 844 387 72 553 728 74 141 098 65 494 318
Surplus {deficit) (65 120 980) (70 844 367) (72 553 728) {74 141 098) (65 494 316)

Long servica awards

l.ong service awards relates fo the legal obligation to provide for long service leave awards, An acluarlal valuation has been
performed on all 855 (2018: 654) employees thal are entiied to long service leave awards on 30 June 2019, The long service
leave awards liabllity is not a funded arrangement, .a. no separate assels have been set aside to meet this liability,
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Economis entity Conlrolling entity
Figures In Rand 2018 2018 2019 2018

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Garrying value
Prasant valua of the defined benefit 16 353 718 12 977 156 16363718 12 977 156

obligation-wholly unfunded

Changes in the present value of the dafined henefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balancs 12 977 158 11 66Y 375 12 977 166 11669376
Benofits paid {1738 011) (976 674) {1738 011) (976 674)
Net expense racognised in the statement of 5114 673 2284 454 6114 673 2284 454

financlal performanca

16 363 718 12 977 166 16 363 718 12 977 1566

Net expense recognised in the statement of financlal performance

Cunrent service cost 1206 302 1154 289 1 2086 302 i 154 289
Interest cost 1022 199 940 824 1022 199 940 824
Actuarial (gains} losses 2886072 189 341 2 886 072 189 341

5114 673 2 284 454 51144 673 2 284 464

Galeulation of actuarlal gains and fosses

Actuarial (galns) losses — Obligation 2 886 072 189 341 2886 072 188 341

Key assumptions used

Assumptions used al the reporting date:

Discount rates used 8.13 % 8.43 % B3 % 8.43 %
Expected Increase in salaries 5,55 % 6.06 % 5.66 % 6.08 %
Other malerial actuarlal assumptions 244 % 2,23 % 2.44 % 223 %

G2 61 62 61
Other assumptlons

The sensilivity analysls is based on the total liabllity which includes water and sewerage.

Assumed healthcare cost trends rates have a significant effact on the amounts recognised in surplus or deficlt, A one
percentage point change in assitmed healthcare cost trends rates would have the following effects:

Increase

Effect of agaregate service cost and interest 2 627 600 2 473 400 2627 600 2 473 400
g;:e:cl on defined contribution abligation 19 067 000 16 137 000 19 067 000 16 137 000
Dacrease

Effect on aggregate service cost and Interest (2 305 900) (2 182 200) (2 305 800) (2 162 200}
t'!:E{:fse:ctcm definad benefit obligation (16 954 000) (13 680 000} (16 954 000} (13 580 000}

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
R R R R R
Defined benefit obligation 16353 718 12 977 156 11 669 378 i1 622 662 10 830 508
Surplus {defict) (16353718) (12877 166} (11668376) (11622 662) (10 830 606)
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Economic entity Controlling entity
Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

Defined contribution plan
The Municipality is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits,

The amount recogrised as an expense for 51922 920 49 198 630 61922920 49 188 630
defined contribution plans is

The only obligation of the Munlcipality with respact lo the retirement benefit plans is to make the speclfied contributions, Whera
cotncllfors/ employess leave plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contiibutions payable by the Municipality are
reduced by the amount of forfelted contributions,

The tatal expense recognised in the statement of financial performance of R 51.9 milllon represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Municipality at rates specifiad in the rules of the plans.

Included in defined coniribution plan of R 51 922 920 above, is the following plans which are Multi-Employer Funds and are
Defined Benefit Plans, but dus ta the fact that sufficient information I3 not avallable to enable the Municlpality to account for the
plans as defined benefit plans, the Municipality accounted for these plans as defined contribution plans.

The amounts disclosed above Includes an amount of R 671 964 (2018: R 1 657 183) which represents the contributions for
counciliors.

Municipal Employees pension fund

The contribution rate paid by the members of 7.5% and council of 22% or 18% are sufficlent to fund the benefits acorulng from
the fund in future.

2 458 610 2334 578 2 458 610 2334678

Municipal Employees Gratuity Fund

The conbribution patd by the members of 7.5% or 9% and counclt 22% or 18% is sufficlent to fund the benefits aceruing from the
fund in future.

Al the valuaticn date of 30 June 2018 the grafulty fund was funded and revealed that the fund was cerlified to be in & sound
financial position,

7760 568 7 580 663 7 760 568 7 580 863

Municipal Fund for Municipal Workers

The above mentioned fund Is a defined contribution fund and according to regulation 2 of the Pension Fund of 1956 exempt
from the provistons of secifons 8A and 16 of the Acl.

41031779 37 626 208 41031779 37 626 208

Munleipal councillors pension fund

The municipal councllfers' penslon fund operates as a defined contribution scheme. The contrlbution rate pald by the membera
Is 28.75% and no contribution Is made by Gouncil,
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the ysar ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Econoric entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
22. Service charges
Sale of electriclty 439 099 834 444 052 394 430 095 834 444 092 394
Sale of prepaid eleclricity 10 764 021 7 930 880 10 764 021 7 930 880
Indigent charges 2 882 501 1798 946 2 882 501 1798 946
Refuse removal 33062 322 30990 314 330562 322 30 680 314
Othar service charges 507 734 (2 200 016) 507 734 {2 200 016}

486 306 412 482 612 518 486 306 412 4826812 618

The amounts discloged above for sale of electriclty, Indigent charges and refuse removal are In respect of sorvices rendered and
ara billed to tha consumers on a monthly basis according to council's approved tarlffs.

Greater Tzanesn Municipality acts as service provider for the Mopanl District Municlpality with regard to the water and sewer
services. Mopan Disirict Municipality is the water and sewer service authority and those services reflect in thelr records,

23, Other income

Credit control actions 154 709 1040 188 164 709 1 040 188
Environmental health services 19774 23 856 16774 23 856
Grant admin fee § 452 684 6 047 100 § 452 684 6047 100
Insurance claims - 8399 - 8399
Library services 7 413 7753 7 413 7753
Moator vehtcle and drivers licence 6922 136 8022 361 69221356 8022 362
Recoverles 361 494 1 481768 361 494 1181 767
Sundry income 192 322 888 627 182 322 888 627
Valuatlon cortificates 82 565 110 100 B2 665 110100
Grant revenus 14 408 711 13 370 955 14 408 711 13 370 955
Other income - 67 203 - 87 203

27 601 807 30 768 310 27 601 807 30 768 310

The amounts disciosed above as other income are in respect of services rendered, other than disclosad in note 22, which are
billed to or pald for by the users of services as required aceording to counclls approved tariffs.

24, Property rates

Rates levied

Resldentiaf 46 599 616 41106 934 46 699 B16 41 106 934

Commarcial 37 736 924 35 894 071 37 736 924 36 894 071

State 0251 648 7 046 036 0261 648 7 046 036

Other 15672 224 16 242 482 16 572 224 16 242 482
109 160 412 99 289 523 109 160 412 9g 289 523

Property rates - penaities imposed 10022 809 8203616 10 (22 809 8203816

119183 221 107 493 139 119 183 221 107 493 139

72




Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Stalements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economlc entity Controlling antity
Flgures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
Valuations
R'000 R'000 RGO R'000

Residential 6940 743 6 525 385 8940743 6 526 385
Commercial 3033 734 2 856 825 3033734 2865825
State 739 185 1857 355 739185 1657 355
Municipal 386 999 385 959 385 999 385 999
Agricuiture 4 955 176 4 197 687 4955178 4 197 687
Other 184 106 184 106 184 106 184 108

16 238 943 15 BOG 387 16 238 943 15 806 367

Valuations on land ang buitdings are performed every four years. The last valuation came into effect on 1 July 2017, Interim
valuations are processed on a monthly basis to take into account changes In individual property values due to alterations and

25, Government grants and subsidlos

Operating grants

Equitable share 338 344 000 311 877 000 338 344 000 311 977 000
Finance Management Grant 2 145 000 2145 000 2145 000 2 145 000
SETA 636 404 - 636 404 -
Munlclpal Infrasiructare Grant 76 150 621 98 925 621 76 150 621 98 925 621
National - Electrification Grant 9604 683 10 726 498 9604 683 10726 408
EPWP 5510 000 4918 QDO 5510 000 4 918 000
Cleanest town 193 228 - 193 226 -

432583 934 428 692 119 432683 934 428 692 119

The Municipality does not foreses a significant changs In the level of grant funding. Unconditional grants are used to subsldise
the provision of basic services to Indigent communlties. Conditionat grants are for operating and capital expenditure, Ohter than
the amount unspect, the conditions of the granis have besn met.

Unconditiona! Grants

Equiteble Share )

Current year allocation 338 344 000 311 977 000 338 344 000 311 977 000

Transfer to revenue (338 344 000) {267 486 413) (338 344 000) (297 496 413)
Allocation not recejved {recelvable) - {14 480 587) - (14 480 587)
Conditions stil to be met - transforrad fo - - . -

liabHitles

The aquitable share Is the unconditional share of the revenue raisad nationally and Is being allocated in terms of section 214 of
the constitution (Act 108 of 1996) to the municipality by the National Treasury.

In terms of the Conslitution, this grant is used to subsidisa the provision of basic services ta indigent communily membars.,

Conditional Grants

The grant [s targeting communities without primary potable water, mainly atiributed by drought. The alm Is to provide primary
water to a minimum of 251t par day In the proposed area,
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entity Controliing entity
Flgures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
SETA
Current year receipts 636 404 - 636 404 -
Conditicns met - transfer to revenue {636 404) - (636 404) “
Conditions still to be met - transferred to - “ - -
Habilitles

The grant is used fo pay for tralning courses. It supplements ! augments the funds on the training vote. Itis used to fund the
primary and secondary skills development facilitators when they are aut of the office on skills develapment related matters.

Municipal Infragtructure Grant

Ralance unspent at beginning of year - 15 830 308 - 15 830 308

Cument-year recelpts 92 315 000 101 742 000 92 316 000 101 742 000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue {76 150 621) (08 926 621) {76 150 621) (08 926 621)
VAT on Grant (own Revenue) {11 422 693) {13 849 587) {11 422 593) (13 849 587)
Administration fee (4 615 750} (4 797 100} (4 615 760) {4 797 100}
Conditions still to be met - transferred to 126 036 - 126 036 -

liabilities

Conditions stil to be met - remain liabilities (ses note 19).

Municlpa! Infrastructure Grant funds are used to upgrade and bulld new infrastructuve up to a basic level of service as well as to
rehabilitate oxisling infrastructure for the poorest of the poor.

National Electrification Grant

Ralance unspent at baginning of year 3755 468 - 3766 458 -

Currant-year receipls 15 996 000 26 000 000 15 996 000 256 000 000

Conditions met - transferrad to revenue {9 604 683) (10 726 498} (9 604 683} {10 726 498}
VAT on grants (1 440 703) {1 629 639) {1 440 703) (1 528 639)
Administration fees - {1 250 000) - {1 260 000)
Roll over not approved {2725 000) - {2 725 000) -

Loan repayment - (7 738 405) - (7 738 405)
Roll-over not applled for (1 030 B12) - (1030612) -

Conditlons still to be met - transferred to 4 950 460 3 766 458 4 950 460 3 7656 ABB

liabllities

Conditions still to be mel - remain fiabilities (sse hote 19).

The grant was used for electiification of farm labour housing and schools.

Nelghtourhood Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of yeat - 1919413 - 1919413

Rolled-over not approved - (1 919 413) - {1919 413}
Conditions sfil! to be met - transferred to - - - N

liabilities

These funds were used to embeilish the entrances of varlous towns and viilages.
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entity Controlling entity
Figures in Rand 2018 2018 2019 2018
Gleanest Town
Balance unspent ai beginning of year 200 000 . 200000 -
Current-yoar receipis - 200 000 - 200 000
Conditions met - tranaferred to revenue {193 226) - (193 228) -
Conditfons still to be met - transferred to 6774 200000 6774 200 000
liablittles

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 19},

Funds recslved through the greensst town competition were used for the construetion of a wall for grease and oll trays and
traps.

Finance Management Grant

Current-year recelpts 2 145 000 2 145 000 2145000 2 145000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2 145 000) (2 145 000) (2 145 000) {2 146 000)
Condiltions stilf to be met - fransferred to - - - -
liabilities

The Finance Management Grant Is pald by Natlonal Treasury to municlpalities to help implement the finance refroms raquired by
the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003. The Flnance Management Grant also pays for the cost of the Financial
Management Internship Programme (e.g. Salary cost of the financial management interns),

EPWP Grant

Current-year receipts 5510 000 4 918 000 5510 000 4918 000
Conditions met - transferred ta revenue (5 510 000) {4 918 000) (5 510 G00) (4 918 GoO)
Conditians still to be met - transferred to - - - «
liabilitles

The expanded public works programme grant was used to increase labour employment through operational programmes that
Increass fob creation and skills davelopment,

The grant is mainly used for rural waste removal,
Ghanges in level of govarnment grants

Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Ravenus Acf, no significant changes in the level of government grant funding
are expacled over the ferthcoming 3 financial years.

26. Donations received

201812018

Greater Tzanaen Municipality received a donation of IT equipment from The Office of the Premier on the 21st of Fabruary 2019,
The IT equipment was accounted for at cost of R 110 887 as provided by The Office of the Fremier.

201712018

Greater Tzaneen Municipality recelved a donation of speed humps from TBC Company on Agatha street on the 13 March 2048,
The speed humps wers accounted for at cost of R49 272, The cost information was provided by TBC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figuras in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

27. Revenue

Service charges 486 306 412 482612 518 486 306 412 482 612 518
Renta! of faciiifies and equipment 2132 853 1781898 2132 853 1781896
Interest recelved (trading) 17 826 053 18 396 501 17 826 053 18 395 501
Agency services 9254 073 7988118 9254 073 7988 116
Licances and permits 1020674 1 006 867 1 020674 1 005 867
Other income 27 601 807 30 768 310 27 601 807 30768 310
Interast received - investment 9639 044 4 477 920 0615814 A 427 275
Properly rates 109 160 412 99 260 523 109 160 412 90 283 523
Property rates - penalties imposed 10 022 809 8203 616 10 022 809 8203616
Government grants & subsidies 432 583 934 428 692 119 432 683 934 428 692 119
Grants - SETA 2 898 502 - - -
Public contributions and donations 110 987 49272 110 887 49272
Fines Note 66 32 180 439 37 986 646 32 1689 439 37 686 646
Administration and project management foe 217 388 - - -

The amount included in revenue arising
from exchanges of goods or services are
as follows:

Sarvice charges

Rental of facllitles and equipment

Interast recelved {trading)

Agency services

Licences and permits

Other income

Interest recelved - investment

The amount Included in revenue arising
from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Taxation revenus

Property rates

Property rates - penalfles Imposed
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies

fLavies

Public contributions and donations

Fines

Administration and project management fee

1 14D 964 387

1121 2561 304

1137 826 267

1121 200 669

486 306 412 432612 618 486 306 412 482612 618
2 132 863 1781845 2 132 853 1781806
17 826 063 18 396 501 17 826 053 48 365 501
9254 073 7988 116 0254073 7988 116
1020674 1006 867 1020 674 4 005 867
27 601 807 30768 310 27 601 807 30768 310
£ 639044 4 477 920 0616814 4 427 275
553 780 916 547 030 128 553 757 €86 £46 979 483
109 180 412 09 289 523 109 160 412 94 289 6523
10 022 809 8203 616 10 022 809 8203616
432 583 934 428 692 118 432 583 934 428 692 119
2808 6502 - - -
110 987 49272 110 987 49 272,

32 189439 37 986 646 32 189 439 37 986 646
217 388 - - -

587 183 471 574 221 176 £B4 087 681 6574 229176
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Economic entity

Controlling entity

Flgures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
28, Employee related costs
Salaries and wages 214 168 716 190 521 084 241 658 810 197 263 207
Performance bonus 51 488 3743 - -
Social contributions 45 104 962 46 010 829 44 265 273 45 522 664
Leave pay provision charge 56 092 84 115 - -
Travel alfowance 12 879 438 11 807 142 12 767 198 11 847 450
Overtime paymenls 24 770 008 25 484 376 24 754 790 25 477 677
13th Cheques 115978 97 064 - -
Housing allowances 1 886 391 1905 268 1 886 384 1905 268
299024 073 285 057 089 295 232 455 282 016 268
No advances were made to empioyees during the year.
Far reclassification of employee cost refer lo note 62,
Remuneration of Munlcipal Manager
Annual Remuneration 1497 398 356 123 1497 396 356 123
Car Aliowance 80 000 15000 80 000 15 000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pensian 201 785 49 052 201 785 A9 052
Funds
Telephona allowance 24 000 5250 24 000 6250
1783 181 426 425 1 783 181 425425
The Municipal Manager was appolnfed on 1 Apiil 2018,
Remuneration of Chief Finance Cfficer
Annual Remuneraiion 057 568 147 738 957 568 147 738
Car Allowance 329 364 54 894 329 364 54 804
Confributions to UIF, Medical and Pension 221 662 38 377 221852 38377
Funds
Telephone allowance 24 000 4 000 24 000 4 000
1532584 245 009 1632 684 2465 069
The Chief Finance Officer was appolnted on 1 May 2018,
Director Communlty Services
Annual Remuneration 1009 926 238075 1008 928 238 075
Car Allowancs 72 000 18 000 72 000 18 000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension 179 626 45 858 179 625 45 858
Funds
Telephone allowance 24 000 5 000 24 Q00 5000
1 285 551 306 933 1 286 651 306 933

The Director Gommunity Services was appointed on { April 2018
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Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

Director Engineering Services

Annual Remuneration 892 293 83 869 802 293 83 869

Car Aliowance 349 000 25 000 349 000 25 000

Contelbutions to UIF, Medical and Penslon 24b 856 2 554 245 856 2 554

Funds

Telephone allowance 24 000 2000 24 000 2000
1511 149 113 423 1511149 113 423

The Director Civil Engineering was appolntad on 1 June 2018,

Director Planming and Economic Development

Annual Remuneration 987 761 309 433 087 761 309 433

Car Allowance 496 000 32 000 88 000 32000

Contributions to UiF, Medical and Pension 177 025 681 094 177 026 61091

Funds

Telephone allowance 24 000 - 24 000 -
1 284 786 402524 1 284 786 402 524

The Director Planning and Economic Development was appointed on 1 March 2018.

Director Corporate Services

Annual Remuneration 1 008 401 946 639 1 008 401 946 539

Car Allowance 12 000 72 000 72 000 72 000

Contributions fo UIF, Medical and Pension 181 785 102 234 181 785 192 234

Funds

Tetephone allowance 24 000 14 000 24 000 14 000

Acting allowance - 74 552 - 74 552
1 286 186 1209 326 1286 186 1299 325

The Director Corporale Services was appointed with effect from 01 June 2017.

Director Electrical Engineering

Annual Remuneration 1141 612 1040 371 1111 612 1 040 371

Car Allowance 164 778 151778 161 778 151 778

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension 257 168 269 801 287 168 269 801

Funds

Telephone allowance 24000 14 000 24 000 14 000

Acting allowance - 173 472 - 173472
1 644 458 1 649 422 1 544 458 1649422

The Director Electrical Engineering was appointed with effect from 1 April 2017.

¥.J. Maphoto - Ghief Executive Officer

Annual remuneration 700 834 689 766 - -

Performance Bonuses 51 488 37 431 - -

Travelling 113 418 o1 089 - -

865 740 819 186 - -

20. Remuneration of counclllors
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Economic entity Controlling entity
Figures In Rand 2019 2018 2018 2018
Counchilor
Mayar 904 434 860 032 804 434 860 032
Executive Committes allowance 2037 281 1888916 2037 281 1888 916
Speaker and full-tlme counclifors' allowances 4 872 620 4 614 143 4 872620 4814 143
Other counclliors' allowances 19 236 191 18 020 477 18 321 967 17 069 321
27 050 626 25 383 583 26 136 302 24 432 412
Mayor .
Annual remuneration 544 803 619810 644 603 619 810
Car allowance 214 868 206 603 214 868 206 603
Celiphone allowance 40 800 285 880 40 800 29 660
Contribution to medical ald and pension fund 4163 3959 4163 3959
904 434 860 032 904 434 860 032
Speaker
Annual remuneration 515681 495 B47 515 661 495 847
Car allowance 171 884 165 282 171 894 165 282
Csllphone allowance 40 800 29 660 40 800 29 860
Contribution to medical ald and pension fund 3388 3245 3386 3215
731 764 694 004 731 7614 §94 004
Chief Whip
Annual remuneration 483 452 464 828 483 4562 464 828
Car alifowance 161 151 154 953 161 151 154 953
Cellphone allowance 40 800 29 660 40800 29 680
Contiibution te medical aid and pension fund 4616 3923 4616 3923
890019 653 364 650 019 663 364

in-kind benefils

The Mayor, Speaker, Chief WHIP and five Counclliors are full-time employees. Each s provided with an offica at the cost of the
Council.

The Mayor and Spoaker have use of Councll owned vehlcles for officlal duties,
The Mayor has one full-time secretary, one manager and a gender, youlh and disabiftty programme.

The allowances and bensfits of councillors of the Municipality, whether financlal or In-kind, are within the upper limils of the
framework envisaged In section 219 of the Constitution. Refer to Government Gazelts nr 41335,

30. Employees remuneration

Counclilors
2019
Emoluments Other Cellphone SETA Total
benefits* allowance

MS MM Letsoalo 289703 89 901 40 80D 2 648 4003 052
MS ML Hiangwane 269703 89 901 40 800 2860 403 064
MR D Malemela 61378 20 459 & 800 658 89 296
MR M Prinsioo 269703 89 901 40 860 28386 403 040
MS MM Sekhwela 224 752 74918 34 000 2108 335778
MS MS Tiba 269 703 89 901 40 800 2647 403 051
MR € Machimana 483 452 181 161 40 800 5 456 600 859
MR GE Ntimbane 483 452 161 151 40 800 4 8601 890 004
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MR TT Maunatliala 483 4572 161 151
MR NJ Mbhalati 483 452 161 151
MR DG Mkhabela 483 452 161 164
MR MG Mangena 6844 603 244 868
MISS MJ Mokgolobo 2034993 67 887
MS SP Masetla 203 993 67 997
MS MS Raganya 203 983 87 997
MR TL Matita 203993 87 997
MS MM Mchale 203 993 87 997
MR NR Rikhotso 203993 &7 897
MS NH Zandamela 203993 67 997
MR OK Banyin! 203 993 67 897
MR MA Makwela 203 993 67 997
MS RE Pohi 203993 67 997
MR N Nkhwashu 203903 87 997
MR TH Mushwane 203 993 67 997
MS MS Baloyi 203 993 67 997
MR J Banyini 203 993 67 997
MR PW Cronfe 203 993 67 997
MS DF Kgafane 266016 6 974
MS MG Kaatla 66 868 22289
MS MR Kgalla 203 983 67 997
MR LK Lepulana 203 993 67 997
MR M. Maake 203993 87 997
MR MH Mafokwane 203 993 87 997
MS JT Makhubele 203 963 67 997
MR GP Makhubele 203993 87 997
MR TE Malatji 203 993 67 997
MR D Malemela 189 994 656 665
MS SM Mapitja 203 903 67 997
MS NP Mathebula 231235 40 755
MS MM Thlokwa 203 993 67 997
MR NG Maunatlala 203 993 67 997
MR TJ MC Clintock 203 993 67 997
MR MF Mochabela 203 993 67 087
MS FT Mohlaba 203993 67 997
MR SN Mohonone 203 693 87 997
MS MC Morwatshepe 203993 87 897
MS TR Mpenyana 203993 67 997
MR NG Mukans] 203 9693 67 997
MR JL Ngobent 203 993 67 997
MS ET Ngobent 203 883 &7 997
MR SE Ngobeni 203 993 67 898
MR ME Phekula 203993 67 997
MS SB Ramoshaba 203 993 67 997
MS MQ Raolane 2039893 67 997
MS Ki Rapatsa 203993 67 997
MR RS Rapitsi 203993 67 997
MS JM Ratopola 203 993 67 097
MS MM Sekhwela 33999 11333
M35 CT Shisinga 203893 67 997
MR © Sithole 203893 67 957
MR PP Machethe 135 2562 45 084
MS MF Mbhafati 2617191 87 264
MR SC Makwala 261 791 87 264
MR NA Masila 261 791 87 264
MS ML Pudikabekwa 261 791 87 264
MR PJ Ramodipa 281791 87 264
MR NM Mahasha 261784 a7 264
MR MM Matwala 281791 87 264
MR MC Nkwashu 261 391 87 264
MR GM Malatl 261 791 B7 264
MS DJ Mmetle 515631 171 894
MR CS Nhemo 483 435 161 161

40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40800
40 800
40 80O
40 800
40 800
40 800
43 609
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
34 000
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800

6 800
40 800
40 800
27 046
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800
40 800

4574
4577
4620
4163

1458
1 458
2 046
2 044
2044
2 043
2044
2043
2043
2043
2047
2 045
2 046
2043
2 0682

664
2 044
2 044
2 043
2 046
1534
2043
2044
1638
1528
2 684
2 051
2048
2043
2043
2043
2 049
2044
1523
2043
2 043
1523
2 046
2043
2044
2 044
2045
2044
2043

393
2044
2043
1747
2572
2 568
2 566
2 665
2584
2573
2 591
2611
2572
3 386
4628

689 977
689 880
690 023
904 434
312790
314 248
314 248
314 836
314 834
314 834
314 833
314 824
314 833
314 833
314 833
314 837
314 835
314 836
314 833
314 852
103 730
314 834
314 834
314 833
314 838
314 324
314 833
314834
262 297
314 216
315374
314 844
314 838
314 833
314 833
314 833
314 839
314 834
314 313
314 833
314 833
314 313
314 837
314 833
314 834
314 834
314 835
314 834
314 833

52 625
314 834
314 833
209 096
392 427
392 420
392 420
392 420
392 438
392 428
392 446
392 066
392 427
131 784
690 024
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Figures in Rand

M.Z Mawasha {Chalrperson) {GTEDA) 138 105 28 469 - - 166 574
Adv E.S Maake (GTEDA) 146 601 33037 - - 179638
M.F Mushwana (GTEDA) BG 388 12713 - - 102 101
M.J Makapan (GTEDA) 74 491 76 430 - - 150 921
M. Moakamela (GTEDA) 81 939 23 268 - - 105 207
B.J Pretorius (GTEDA) 78 216 36212 - - 114 427
B.L Mathebula (GTEDA) 63 317 32 039 . - 95 356

18127759  §943176 2816354 164238 27050 526
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Figures In Rand

2018
Emoluments Other Pengion pald Compensation Total
benefils*  or receivable forloss of
. office

Letscalo MM 269 330 86 443 29 680 2 2568 377 689
Hiangwat ML 250 330 06 443 20660 2 268 377 891
Prinsloo M 269 330 86 443 28 660 2 489 377922
Sekhwela MM 260330 86 443 29 660 2 489 377 922
Tiba MS 259 330 86 443 20 660 2 287 377 690
Maunallata TT 464 858 154 53 29 680 4347 653 818
Mbhalatf NJ 464 858 164 953 20 660 4345 653 816
Mkhabela DG 464 858 154 953 29 660 3711 653 182
Machiman C 464 858 154 953 28 660 3221 652 692
Ntimbane GE 484 858 164 853 28660 3794 653 265
Mangena MG 619810 206 603 29 660 3958 860 031
Mimokg 85 196 147 B6 382 29 660 - 201 189
Masetla SP 196 147 65 382 29 660 1366 292 545
Raganya MS 196 147 65 382 29660 1356 292 545
Matitia TL. 196 147 65 382 29 860 1745 202 934
Mohala Miv 1986 147 65 382 29 660 1742 202 931
Rikhotso NR 196 147 65 382 29 660 1742 202 931
Zandamel NH 198 147 65 382 29 660 1742 202 931
Banyinl OK 196 147 65 382 29 660 1742 292 931
Makwela MA 106 147 65 382 29 660 1742 2092 931
Pohi RE 196 147 65 382 20680 1919 293108
Nikhwashi N 166 147 65 382 29 660 1919 293 108
Mashuwan TH 186 147 65 382 29 660 1742 292 931
Baloyl MS 196 147 65 382 29 680 1742 292 931
Banylnl J . 106 147 65 382 29 660 1742 292 931
Cronje PW 196 147 65 382 29 660 1918 293 108
Kgafane DF 192 147 66 382 29 660 2014 289 203
Kgatia MG 196 147 65 382 29 660 1742 202 931
Kgatla MR 186 147 65 382 28 660 1743 292 932
Lepulana LK 196 147 65 382 29 660 1742 282 931
Maake Md 196 147 65 382 29 660 {918 293108
Mafokwane MH 196 147 65 382 29680 1743 292 932
Makhubele JT 168 147 65382 - 29 8GO 1400 292 £88
Makhubsle GP 106 147 65 382 29 660 1741 292 930
Malatfl TE 198 147 65 382 20 660 1742 292 931
Malamela D 196 147 65 382 29660 1919 293 108
Mapltja SM 186 147 85 382 29 660 1421 282610
Mathebula NP 196 147 65382 26 660 2235 293 424
Thokwa MM 196 147 65382 28 660 1742 202 931
Maunatiala NG 196 147 85 382 29 660 1743 292 932
Mec Clintock TJ 196 147 65 382 29 660 1919 203 108
Mochabsla MF 196 147 65 382 29 680 1919 293108
Mohlaba FT 196 147 65 382 29 860 1742 202 931
Mohonone SN 196 147 65 382 29 660 1919 293108
Morwatshehla MG 196 147 65 382 29 660 1742 292 831
Mpenyana TR 196 147 65 382 29 680 1420 292 609
Mfukanwsi NG 196 147 65 382 29 660 1919 293 108
Ngobeni JL 196 147 65 382 29 660 19198 203108
Ngobeni ET 196 147 65382 29 680 1420 292 609
Mgobeni SE 196 147 65 382 29 660 1743 292932
Phakuia ME 196 147 66 382 29 660 1619 293 108
Ramashaba SB 1986 147 65 382 20 660 1742 292 931
Raolane MO 196 147 65 382 29 660 1919 293 108
Rapatsa Ki 196 147 65 382 29 660 1742 202 931
Rapitsi RS 196 147 86 382 29 660 1742 202 931
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Figures in Rand

Ratopola JM 196 147 85 382 29 660 2248 293 437
Shishinga CT 198 147 66 3682 20 660 1743 292 932
Sithole O 196 147 65 382 29 660 1919 293 108
Mbhalati MF 251 722 83 907 29 680 2196 367 485
Makwela SC 251 722 83 907 29 660 2193 367 482
Mastla NA 251 722 83 607 29 660 2 193 367 482
Pudlkabek ML 251 722 83 907 29 860 2193 367 482
Ramodipa PJ 251722 83 907 29 860 2194 367 483
Mahasha NM 251 722 83 907 20 660 2194 367 483
Makwala MM 251 722 83 507 29 660 2196 367 485
Niwashu MC 249 922 83 507 29 660 2198 365 685
Malatji GM 2651722 83907 29 660 2 421 367 710
Mmetle DJ 495 847 165 316 29 660 3215 694 038
Nhemo CS 464 828 154 953 29 660 3923 653 364
MZ Mawasha (Chairperson) (GTEDA) 165 849 34 560 - - 200 409
Adv E.S Maake (GTEDA) 147 402 41088 . - 188 490
M.F Mushwana (GTEDA) 82676 14 149 - - 06 825
M.J Makapan (GTEDA) 70 436 102 202 - . 172 638
M. Moakamela (GTEDA) 75998 19 850 - - 95 848
B.J Pretorius (GTEDA) 106 545 3447 - . 109 992
B.L Mathebula (GTEDA) 48 287 38 667 - . 86 954

17377226 5815932 2046 640 143871 25 383 568

31. Impairment loss

Impalrments
Property, plant and equipment 4399272 2839900 4309 272 2 83g 900

In terms of GRAP21, "Impalment of non-cash generating assels”, Municipalities are required to assess the Impalrment of its
assels to comply with GRAP standards and asset Mmanagement policy. Greatsr Tzaneen Municipality has assessed the
impalrment of its assets for the financial year snded 30 June 2019, The assassment of Impalrment of assets has resulted in an
impairment loss of R 4 399 272 (2078 R 2 839 900) as a resull significant loss in carrying amount of eleckricily infrastructure of
R 3745 124 due to physical damage and roads infrastructure of R 654 148 due to signficant change Is condition.

32. Finance costs

Finance leases 1012 410 866 616 1012 410 866 616
Other Interest paid 10 961 350 11 107 653 10961 350 11 107 653
11 973 760 11 §74 269 11 973 760 11974 269

33. Repairs and maintenance

Machinery and equipment 76 119 81900 76 119 61 800
Lawnmowsrs 82 979 38 843 82 979 38 843
Distribution networks 14 589 708 13 892 020 14 589 708 13 882 020
Stormwater, drainage and bridges B57 208 126 500 867 206 126 500
Tarred roads 9105 738 11 420 950 9105 738 11420 950
Gravsl roads 11 332 065 11 986 290 11332 065 11 986 290
Street lights 312 668 303 012 312666 303012
Councll-owned buildings 1381 693 1908 975 1381 6593 1908 975
Councfl owned vehicles 3909 148 3 583 086 3909 148 3 583 086
Other 510 684 1620 538 510 684 16206538

42 157 908 44 932 114 42 187 906 44932114
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Economic entity Conirolling entity
Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
34, Bulk purchases
Elactricity - Eskom 348 443 869 325 455 983 348 443 869 325 456 993

Bulk purchases are the cost of eloctricity not genarated by the Municipality. The electricity which is purchased from Eskom Is
sold to consumers.

Water purchases are not included in bulk purchases as fhe Municipality acls as resource provider for Mopani District
Municipality with regards lo this sarvice. Mopani Disirict Municipallty is the water and sewer service authorlty and those services

refloct in thelr records.

35. Contracted services

Valuation roll 437 342 674 097 437 342 674 097
Traffic and securily servicas 14 965 651 14 706 413 14 985 651 14796 413
Refuse removal 12 876 846 41 993 688 12 875 846 11 993 588
Cleaning services 12 606 749 11 064 628 12 606 749 11 064 628
Cotincil owned land 980 332 1963 316 980 332 1863 316
Information technology 1176 365 933 933 1176 366 933 933
Meter reading 842 498 1 348 420 842 408 1348 490
Town planning 406 952 250 758 496 952 250 758
Aerodrum 28 060 - 28 060 -
EPWP 4033010 2 600 040 4 033 010 2 500 000
Credit confrof 2992 638 2 525 325 2 992 638 2525 325

57 435 443 48 050 548 51 435 443 4B 05 548

36. Grants and subsldies paid

Other subsidies
HEH - 594 188 - 594 188
Other grants 39621982 102 856 003 39 621 982 102 856 003
Eskom EBSST 3304 042 30687 047 3304 042 3087 047
Mayor bursary account 620837 520 526 620 837 520 526
SPCA 156 000 130 000 156 000 130000
Sport Councll 106 644 106 644 106 644 106 844
SETA (Tralning) 636 404 - 636 404 -
Mayor special account 341 452 194 962 341 452 194 962
Museum - 33 326 - 33326
Salid waste: EPWP 5510000 4918000 5 510 000 4918 600
50 297 361 112 420 696 50 297 361 112 420 656
The mayor's bursary account s in respoct of providing bursaries for further tertiary education.
Other grants are summarized as foilows
Finance Mangement Grant 2 145 000 2191787 2145 000 2191 787
Integrated National Electrification programme 857 572 152 857 672 152
(INEP} (DBSA profect)
MIG project transfer to RAL 27 014 727 80 780 489 27 014 727 90 780 489
Integrated National Electrification programme 0604 683 9883 575 9 604 683 ¢ 883575
(INEP)
39 621 982 102 856 003 39621982 102856 003
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Economic entity Controlling entity
Flgures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
37. General expenses
Advertising 70926 132 430 - -
Auditor's remuneration 6619 161 3795922 § 780 394 3 448 595
Bank charges 41844 37 077 - -
Cleaning - 4 400 - -
Computer rental 972 965 706 301 g§72 965 708 301
Consulting fees 39 426 250 2b 780 052 39 147 870 25 422 531
Consumables 1277 783 1391 511 1276 761 1388 110
Entertainment 9837 7323 - -
Fines and penalties 351828 274 531 - -
Insurance 61 133 43 730 44 890 27 619
IT oxpenses 77 380 40 635 - -
Fuel and oil 11 402 837 9165 920 11 402 836 9 166 920
Postage and courier 598 849 616 604 508 266 616 304
Printing and stationery 1 780 801 1740 128 1748 128 1721828
Proteclive clothing 850 129 892 310 950 130 892 309
Project maintenance costs 3148 927 724 796 - -
Secuilty (Guarding of municipal property) 4281 4836 - -
Seminar and workshop cost 67 604 32 094 - -
Subseriptlons and membership fees 26 280 28 475 - -
Telephone and fax 2301028 1632 963 2145797 1479 118
Tralning 2854223 1981 744 2854 223 1898 615
Travel - focal 7 566 398 8 477 187 7331213 9148278
Insurance claims - Own expandiiure 2 088 509 8093 635 2 988 509 8 090 304
Membership fees - Salga 3072616 3043 082 3 089 866 2 868 915
Telephone exchange rental 40 461 366 677 40 461 366 677
Publlc relations, tourism and matketing 1622 603 1987 6573 8 457 173 8242 223
Small tools and equipment 676 438 377 303 676 436 377 304
Leasa rentals on operating leases 608 529 1161 064 504 173 1047 340
Bank administration fees 1772510 1693 588 1772 610 1693 6588
Licences and permits 2139 152 1039818 2136 162 1039 817
Cultural day 903 828 876 432 203 828 976 432
Other expenses 25789 225 18 081 620 25789 243 18 081 605
119 222 839 08 222 521 120 614 821 28 700 950

Other general expenditure Is summarized
as follows
Waler and sewerage expenses 13 818 841 7638 330 13 818 841 7538 330
Intarest paid 4785 678 3520073 4795 678 3520073
Electricity 1215 177 956 941 1215 177 956 041
Instirance excess payment 1012 321 12 o8 1012321 12 898
Other expenses 4947 208 6 053 378 4947 228 8053 363

25789 228 18 081 620 25 789 243 18 081 606

Refer to note 62 for prior year reclassification details of general expense items,
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Eeonomic entity

Controlling entity

Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

38, Cash generated from operations

Deficit {67 864 220) {90 309 601} (67 110621) (88 201 168)

Adjustments for:

Depracialion and amoriisation 127 793 108 127 696 817 127 724 087 127 654 034

{ass on disposal of praperty, plant and 2201 607 25 924 361 2201607 25 024 361

equipment

Fair value adjustments - {11 004 300} - {11 004 300}

Finance costs - Finance leases 1012 410 866 616 1012 410 866 616

impairment deficlt 4398272 2 839 900 4399272 2839900

Debt Impalrment 123 718683 114 324 652 123718683 114 324 552

Movements in operating lease assats and 20976 (23 541) 20975 (23 541)

accruals

Movements In retirement benefit assets and {2 346 845) {401 581) {2 346 845) (401 681)

liabilitles

Movements In provisions 085 587 269 428 965 597 268 427

Donation of assels {Non-cash item) (110 987) - (110987) -

Transfer of property, plant and equipment 64 500 821 76 728 A64 64 509 821 76728 464

(non-cash Hem)

Changes [n working capital:

inventories 1002 085 {4 411 218) 1 002 085 (4 411 218)

Recelvables from exchange transactions (34 434 709) (42681 813) {34 433 654} (42 710 805)

Consumer debtors (44 611 892) (70 815 &17) (44 611 892) (70615 917)

Other receivables from nen-exchange {30 381 351) (32 433 308} (20661 351) {32 433 398)

transactions

Payables from exchange transactions 20 236 662 26 568 884 19 760 633 28 660677

VAT 4 423 699 4 982 400 3807 745 2977048

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 1127 813 {13794 263) 1127 813 (13 794 263}

Consumer deposils 208 544 3720078 209 544 3720078
171 871 172 119 245 068 171 984 922 119 277 968

39, Auditors remuneration

Fees - Auditor Genera! of Soull Africa 6 566 987 3628 004 5780 384 3 448 595

Gonsulting 62174 167 828 - -

6 619 161 3795 922 5780394 3 448 595
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Economic entity

Caontroliing enlity

Figures in Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018
40. Commitments
Authorised expenditure
Alrsady contracted for but not provided
for
*  Property, plant and equipment 128705 676 13 600 982 128 706 576 13 600 982
*  Internal Audit (GTEDA) 73089 125 731 - -
* 1T Support {GTEDA) 44 470 23 940 - -
*  Cellphone (GTEDA) 52118 22200 - -
*  Panasonic - copier rental (GTEDA} 52734 110 262 - -
*  Office loass / rental (GTEDA) 36 092 - - -
*  Other financial assets 100 165 025 80 915 727 100 165 025 60916727
229128 814 74 798 842 228 870 601 74 616 708

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but nat provided for 229128 814 74798 842 228 870 801 74 516 709
Total commitments

* Total commitments
Authorised capltal expenditure 229128 814 74 798 842 228 870 801 74 516 709

Capital commilments represent future, capital expenditure. The Muriclpality has an obilgation to spend these amounis dua to
slgned contracts with suppliers and approval as per the Medium-Term Revenus and Expenditure Framework {MTREF).

The expendlture will be financed by:

Internal advances 86 474674 61 862 861
MIG grants 128 705 578 12 935 981
DBSA loan 13 948 564 -

229128 814 74 798 842

86 216 481 61 580 728
128 705 576 12 535 981
13 948 564 -
228 870 601 74 616 709
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Economic entity Controlling entity
Flaures In Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

41, Contingencles
Contingent liabilities
Contractual disputes

Various contractual claims by contractors' suppliers and staff are currently i dispute, and are subject to mediation, The potential
extent of the liability cannot be determined, since it is subject to litigation, The provisional estimate pased on management
assassment Is R 76 million. The merits must still be determined and could result in a lesser or greater amount.

Malunga Tax Consultants vs Greater
Tzaneen Municipality

tn 2016 Malunga Tax Consultant sued the 10 302 106 7 896 584 10 302 108 7 896 584
Municipality for not honouring payment of
services rendarad in respect of review and
recover of VAT, SDL, UIF and PAYE, the
matter is stili pending in High Court. The
actual amount claimed as per the summons
and estimated legal fees for the matter is
indicated [n 2019 and In 2018 was an
ostimation of how much the claim would cost

SIphiwe Engineering and Technologies vs
Greater Tzanegen Municipallty

The Municipallly is being sued by Siphiwe 11694 144 1 200 000 11694 144 1 200 000
Engineering Technologies for unlawiful
termination of contract for services of
upgrading of electrical network, the matter is
slilt panding at the Arbliration slage from
2017. However, the Municipaiity made an
application in terms of section 33 of the
Arbitration Act 42 of 1966 agatnst Siphiwe
Engineering Technologies CC and His
Lotdship Retired MR Justice Zulman in High
Court. The application involves a selting
askde of an award granted in the amount of R
10 504 144.74 which Is included ir the
contingent liabllity of 2019 and also the
estimated legal feas for this matter

Wapheto Business Enterprise vs Greater

Tzansen Municlpallty

The Municipatity is being sued for unlawful - 27 000 000 - 27 000 000
tarmination of contract for provision of

physical securlly servicas, the matter was

settled In the High Court

Leotaba Pakkers ve Greater Tzaneen

Municipality

The Municipality is belng sued for damage of 626 969 170 000 625 569 170 000
electrical equipment which was caused by

electrical surge within ihe jurisdiction of

Greater Tzaneen operiated by the

Municlpality, the matter s pending in the

Maglsirate Court from 2017. The actual

amount clafmed as per the particulars of

clalm and estimaied legal fees Is clearly

indicated [n 2019 and in 2018 was an

estimation of how much the damages would

cost
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Economic entity

Controlling entity

Figures In Rand

2019

2018

2018

2018

C Van Der Merwe vs Greater Tzaneen
Municlpality

Mrs C Van Dar Merwe who was the
employes of the Municlpalily is sulng the
institution for an Insurance claim that was not
paid after a valid claim was instituted due (o
an accidant which happened while she was
employed by Councll. The matter is sl
pending Ini the High Courl. The contingsni
fiabllity of 2019 for this maiter Includes the
actual amount clalmed and estimated legal
faes for the matter

Hlimbyi Trading Enterprise vs Greater
Tzansen Municipality

Hlimbyi Is suing the Munlclpality for unlawful
termination of contract for provision of
physical securily contraci, the matter is
pending in the High Court from 2015, The
aclual amount claimed as per the summons
and estimated legal fees for the matter [s
indicated in 2019 and In 2018 was an
estimation of how much the cairn would cost

Thabo Molepo vs Greater Tzaneen
Munleipality

In 2008, Mr Thabo Molepo sued the
Municlpality for unfawful amest which was
caused by the conduct of the Municipal
Traffic Officer, the case had been settisd
pending finalisatlon by the High Court as per
court order

Greater Tzaneen Municipality vs Phinnet
ITEC Finance Is sulng Phinnet
Communications and the Municipality for
breach of conlract for the services of
managed printing in the Municipality, the
case has been settled with Phinne!

Marla WMalat]l vs Greater Tzaneen
Municlpality

In 2016, Ms Maria Malatil suad the
municipality for damages to her property as a
result of floods, The matter Is pending in the
Hight Court. The aclual amount claimed as
per the summons and estimalad legal faas
for the matter is indicaled in 2019 and in
2018 was an estimation of how much the
clalm would cost

T 366 511

32 554 330

1150 000

9186 6511

27 307 440

100 000

1200 000

3000 000

1366 511

32 564 330

1150 000

916 511

27 307 440

100 000

1200 000

3 000 000
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Bernado Tounge vs Greater Tzaneen

Munlcipality

In 2015, Bernado Tounge sued the 1 180 000 300 000 1 160 000 300 000
Munlclpality for damages to his properly as a

result of fleods, The matter Is pending in the

High Court. The actual amount claimed as

per tha summons and estimated legal fees

for the matter is Indicated in 2018 and In

2018 was an estimation of how much the

claim wouid cost.

Makoma Pony Hlokwe vs Greater Tzaneen

Municipality

Makoma Pony Hiokwe Is sulng the 5191214 - 5191 214 -
Municipallty for loss of support as a result of

the death of her husban whom was an

employes of the Municipality. The amount

cdlaimed as per the summons is R 3 391 214

and the estimated legal feas amountis R 1

800 000

Sima Sllver Lodge vs Greafer Tzaneen

Municipality

Sima Sllver Lodge Is suing the Municipality 1809 250 - 1899 250 -
for services rendered to Council In the

amount of R 1 389 250 and the estimated

legal fees amount is R 510 000

Bravaspan 252 CC vs Greater Tzaneen

Municipality
1n 2018, Bravospan sued the Municipality for 10 324 000 10 324 000 10 324 000 10324 000

damages of declaring their contract nui and
void In the amount of R 8 624 000 and the
estimatad legal fees amount is R 700 000

76 267 b24 79 414 836 76 287 524 79 414 535

Other jn GTEDA

Mushwane vs GTEDA In the High Court of SA
Case No:; JR142116

Mr A. Mushwana was dismissed with offect fram 18 May 2015 as a sanction of the disciplinary hearing. Subsequently, Mr A
Mushwana approched the Labour cour of South Africa pleading for arbliration sanction following the outcomes of the disclplinary
hearing Mr A. Mashwana further requested for reasons for dismissal from ihe Labour court to prepare for an appeal since 2017,
The case ls continuing and the potential extend of the [labllity cannot be determined at this stage.

Subsequently, Mr A Mushwana procseded the matter fo the High Coutrt in terms of the provisions of section 145 of the Labour
Relatlons Act 66 of 1995, for an order to review and set aslde the CCMA ruling awarded In favour of GTEDA, The potential
extent of the fiability cannat be determined at this state.

Mushwana vs GTEDA 1n the Tzanean Wagistrafe Gourt
Case No; 283416

Subsaquent to Mr. A Mushwana's dismissal, he appreached the Court for the Subdistrict of Tzaneen pleading for compensation
for his alleged bonus. An agreement was reached with legal representatives of the employee with his concern, a setilement

amount was agresd on.

The contingent liability is R 103 000
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Output VAT on Grants

Provision for VAT payable has been mads. This Is a result of the Entity not declaring output VAT on grants recelved from its
funders l.e. the Greater Tzaneen Munleipality and Industrial Development Corporation,

Penalties and interest have been accrued,
Contingent assets
Outstanding Insurance claims

The estimated contingent assst for Insurance clalms amounts to R 276 088 {2018: R 4 987 000}, The estimation Is based on
quotalions, medical reports, astimates based on previous claims of simifar nature, estimates by management and lettars of
demand fecelvad, The merits must all sl be determined and could result In a lesser or greater amount, A detailed insurance
ragfster is available at the municipality for inspaction.

Contractual disputes

Phadima Group Holding and Greater Tzanean Municipality are currenlly In dispute. The potential extent of the assel cannot be
determined, since it is subject to litigation, The provisional estimate based on management assessment Is R 912 800, The
merits must still be datermined and could result n a lesser ar greater amount,

Phadima Group Holding vs Greater
Tzaneen Munlclpality

Orn or during the 2007 {o 2009, the parties 912 800 912 800 912 800 912 800
{the Municipality and Phadima Phadima)
entered into thiee wiliten agresments with
regards to the development of an immovable
property known as Avis Park Extenslon 53,
Tzaneen {"The Property")
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42. Related partles

Relatienships/iManagement

Munlcipal Manager BS Matlala

Chief Financial Officer MP Makhubela

Director Community Services HA Nkuna

Director Givil Englneering CW Molokomme

Diractor Gorporate Sefvices W Shibainba

Director Electrical Engineering MS Lelope

Director Planning and Econamlc Devalopment B Mathabula

Councillors Refer to Note 29 for list of counciliors

Mo member of the Municipallly's management has significant influence over the financial or aperating pollcies of the municipality.

No husiness transactions took place between the municipaiily and key management persornel.

All Councltiors have disclosed their Interest In related parties and no ona has the ability 1o control or exerclse significant
influence over the Gouncll In making financlal and operational decistons. Councillors are remunarated according lo the
Remunaration of Public Office Bearears Act 20 of 1998 and only have collective exocutive powers for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the municlipalily,

Loans granted to related pariles

In terms of the MFMA the Municipality may not grant loans {0 its councliilors, management, slaff and public with effect from 1
March 2004, Loans granted prior to fhie date as weli as stand sale arrangement are disclosed in note 4 to the annual financlal
statements.

GTEDA

GTEDA Is a Municipal Entlty Established by Grealer Tzaneen Municlpafity and parforms the function consistent with that of an
entily and cannot contro! or influence councl in making finansial or operationa! declslons

Mopani Distrlct Municipality

Greater Tzaneen Municipality acts as the service provider far Mepani Distrlct Munlclpality (MDM) with regards to the water and
sewer services, Mopani District Munldipality Is the water and sawer service authority and those services reflect in their records.
Mopani District Municlpaiity has no controt over the council of Greater Tzanesn Municipality and cannot influence councll In
making financial or operational decisions.

The batance owing by MDM to GTM at year end amounts R237 639 646 (2018: R 208 840 260)
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Secllon 67 Managars and Counclllors

Refer to note 28 for detall of remuneration pafd fo Section 57 Managers and {0 note 30 for remuneration pald to Councillors.

Bids awarded fo family of employees In service of state,

In terms of Section 45 of the municipal supply chain management regulatlons any award above B 2 000 to family of employaes
In the service of the state must be disclosed in the annual financlal statemants.

The followlng is a list as recorded:

Name of person Gapacity in which the person Sticcesshul tenderer Amount is in
service

H. Maake Manager in Human Resources Baobab Trading R 130955
H. Maake Manager In Human Resources White Hall Tradings and Projects 64 R 308208
XP. Sibis| Compliance Officer Rivisi Electrical Contractars R 10 693 694
H. Maake Manager In Human Resources Keleka Trading CC R 87 250
3D. Maake Testing offtcer DTM Consulting R 9814927

R12 272034

43. Risk management
Financial risk management
Exposure to liquidily, credit, interest rate and currency risk arises In the normal course of the Municipaiily's aperatlons. This note

presents information aboul the municipaly’s exposura to each of the above tisks and processes for measuring and managing
risks. Guantalive disclosures are included In these Financial statements,
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Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an antity in the event of difficuity in meeting ohligations associated with financial [iabilitles
that are sellied by dellvering cash or another financlal asset.

“The Municipallty's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitmants. The Munlclpality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. The Municipality's policy on counterpart credit
exposures ensuras that only counterparties of & high cradit standing are ussd for the Investments of any excess cash,

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequately utillsed borrowlng fadilities are monitored,
The table below analyses ihe Municipality's financial liablities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the slatement of financlal position to the contractual malurity date. The amounts disclosed In the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows., Balances due within 12 months equal thelr carrying balances as the impact of discounting Is not
significant at 30 June 2018.

Economlic entlity

At 30 June 2019 Less than 1 Between 1
year and 2 years
Other financial liabiltles 22 810 651 110 645 166
Finance lease obligation . 2 978 540 3 551484
Payables from exchange {ransactions 228 316 091 -
At 30 June 2018 Less than 1 Betweeh 1
year and 2 years
Other financial Habililles 10725 007 92 456 672
Finance lease obligation 824 308 602 667
Payables from exchange transactlons 208 079 431 -

Contralling entity

At 30 June 2019 Less than 1 Between 1
year and 2 years
Other financial liabililies 22 810 851 110 645 166
Flnance lease obligation 2 978 540 3651 484
Payables from exchange transactions 227 625 b97 -
At 30 June 2018 Less than 1 Betweean 1
year and 2 years
Other financial liabilities 10726 007 92 456 672
Financo lease obligation 824 306 802 667
Trade and other payables 207 865 063 -
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Flgures In Rand

Gredlf risk

Cradit 1isk Is the risk that one parly to a financlal instrument will cause & financial loss for the other party by falliing to dischaige
an obligation.

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash aquivalents and trade debiors. The Municipality only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limils expasure to any one counter-party.

Polential concantrations of credit rate risk consist malnly of investments, loans, trade recaivables and other recelvables, short-
term Investment deposits and cash and cash equivalenis,

The Municlpality limils its counterparty expostres from its money market investment aperations by only dealing with well-
sstablished financlal institulons of high credit standing. The oredit exposure lo any single counterparly Is managed by setting
transaction/ exposure limits, which are included in the Munlcipaiity's Investments Policy.

Trade recelvables comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industrles and geographlcal areas,
Ongoing credit evaluations are patformed on the financial condition of these customers. Trade recelvables are presented nat of
an allowancs for impairment and where appropriate, credit imits are adjusted.

Credit risk pertaining fo trade and other debtors lg considered to be moderate due fo the diversified nature of debtors and
immaterial nature of individual balances. In the case of consumer debtors the municipality effectively has the right to terminate
services to customers,

in the case of customers whose accounts become In arrears, |tls endeavaured to collect such accounts by "levying of interest
charges”, "demand for payment”, “restriction of services" and, as a last resort, " handed over for collection”, whichever
procedure Is applicable In terms of Gouncil's Credit Conirol and Debt Gollection Policy.

Non-currant Recelvables and Other Recelvablas are collectively evaluated annually at raporting date for impairment or
discounting. A report on the various calegories of customers Is drafted o substantiate such svaluation and subsequent
Impairment / dlscount, whera applicable,

No cash and cash equivalents were pledged as sscurlty for financiaf liabllities and no restrictions ware placad on the use of any
cash and cash equivalents for the period under review, Although the credit risk pertaining to cash and cash equivalents Is
considered {o ba low, the maximum exposure Is disclosed below,

The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the relevant financlal instruments are as follows:

Financial assets exposad to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financlal instrument Economic Economic Controlithg Controiling
entity - 2019 entlty - 2018 enfity - 2019 entity - 2018
Receivables from exchange transaclions 261219338 233724774 261212 868 233719455
Recalvables from non-exchange transactions 37 583 080 43 961 106 36 833 080 43 961 106
Cash and cash equivalenis 42 450 240 8 056 255 42033 011 7 490 665
Consumber debtors 101 943 854 137 321 124 101 943 854 437 321 124
Other financlaf assets 31 625 083 26 887 349 31 526 083 26 887 399

The method for determining the cradit quality of the different financial instruments are disclosed In thelr Individual notes,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes In market prices such as interest rates and forelgn exchange rates affecting the
Municipality's income or the value of its financial Instrument holdings. The objective of market risk management Js to manage
and control market rlsk exposure within aceeptable paramalters, while optimising the return on the risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financfal Instrument wilt fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates,
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The Municipality is exposed to interest rate risk on lts invesiments and long term borrowings.

A sensitivity analysis is done by the Municipallty on a contlnuous bases o determine its potential exposure to interest rate
charges. Different scenarlos are simulated which Include renewal of current pasition and alternative financing. Based on those
scanarios the municipality calculatas the impact that a change in Interest rate will have on the surplus / deficit for the year. These
scenarios are only simulated for liabilities which constitute the majority of interest hearing liabiiities.

This risk Is managed by investing In investments with different maturity dates. This enables the Municipality to re-allocate some

of the Investments in the event of majer fiuctuations in interest rates. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Municipality
ta cash flow interast rate risk, Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Munlcipality to falr value Interast rate risk.

Price risk

The effect of any price risk in the foresesable future Is regarded as minimal given the fact ihat amounts recelvable from the
Municipalily's customers are levied in terms of the relevant statutes. It is niot antlcipated that given the nature of the
Munigipality's business, changes in the market prices will have a material impact on the trading results of the Municipality.

Contruiling entity
Risk Is managed on an angoing basis.

There has been no change, since the previous financlat year to the municipality exposure to market risks on the manner which it
manages and measures the risk.

44. Golng cancern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policles applicable fo a going concain.
This basis presumes that funds witl be available to finance fulure operatlons and that the realisation of assets and seltiement of
liabilitles, contingent obligations and commitmants will acour in the ordinary course of business,

The abllity of the Municipality to continue as a going concem is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these
5 that the Accounting Officer continue to procurs funding for the ongeing operations for the Municipality.

46. Unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance 111 909 226 61 379 545 111 909 226 61 379 645
Unauthorised expenditure for the year 83 025 989 111 908 226 83 026 988 114 909 226
{overspending of budgef)

Unauthorlsed expenditura condoned by (111 909 226) (61 379 545) {111 908 226) (61 379 545}
councll

Unauthorised expenditure awalting B3 025 989 141 909 226 83 026 989 111 509 226
condonement

Unauthetised expenditure for the year ls as @ result of averspanding of the approved hudget.

The operational budget was axcesdad on vote level which Is summarised as follows:

Financial Services R 78204401 R 103583 886
Electrical engineering services R 4731588 R -
Corporate sarvices R - R 2747362
Planning and economic develapment (PED) R - R 222 070
Engineering services R - R £ 355 918
Unauthorised epsndifure R 83026983 R 111909 226

A detalled list of unauthorised expenditure is available at {he Municlpaiity for inspection.
Overspending of R 646 371 on the Municipal Managers budget was approvad by Counail,

The overspending of R 83 025 988 is mainly as a result of provision for impairment.
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The unauthorised expenditure has been tabled to councli and will Investigated by a commiltae of coungi,

46, Frultless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 13 886 868 7 395 508 13524 312 7327 483
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 10327 802 2826 020 8976974 2551 489
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - prior - 3 645 340 - 3846 340
yaar

Frultless and wasteful expenditure written off (943 172) - (943 172) -
{(2015/2018)

Frultless and wasteful expanditure written oft (6 060 039) - {6 060 039) “
(2016/2017)

Fruitless and wasteful exponditure written off (4 868 884) - (4 868 884) -
(2017/2018)

Frultless and wasteful expenditura - (342 558) - - -
Condoned (28 March 2019)

Frultless and wasteful expenditure 11 980 019 13 866 868 11 628 194 13 6524 312

awaiting condonament

The frultless and wastefyl expenditure has been tabled to councll and was investigated by a commifttee of Council.
A delailed llst of frultless and wastefut expenditure is available at

No criminal or disciplinary steps have been taken as a consequence of above expeanditurs,

the Munlcipality for inspection,

The investigation results, resulted in the fruittess and wasteful expenditure tabled to council be contioned and written off.

47, Ihrregular expenditure

Opaning balance

Add: Irreguiar expenditure - current year
Irregutar expenditure condoned 2015/2016
Irregular expenditure condonad 2016/2017
Irregular expenditure condoned 2017/2018
Irregular expenditure - Condoned on 28
March 2019

Irregular expenditura written off 2016/2017

Irregular expenditure awalfing
condohement

Analysis of expendlture awaiting write off per age classification

Gurrent year
Prior years

No criminal or disciplinary steps have been taken as a consequence of the above expenditure,

104 904 598 92 588 505 104 827 940 92 575 025
7438 134 12 316 093 7438 134 12 252 915
(39 460 428) - (39 460 428) -
(27 178 275) - (27 178 275) -
{12 262 915) - {12 252 915) -
(76 658) - . .
(547 657) - (547 657) -
32826 799 104 904 558 32826799 104 827 940
7438 134 12 316 093 7438 134 12 252 915
25 388 665 92 688 505 25 388 665 92 676 025
32826 799 104 904 598 32826 799 104 827 940

A detailad list of rreguiar expenditure is avaiiable at the Municipality for inspection

The Irreguiar expenditure has been tabled to Counctl and was Investigatod by a committes of Coungil,

Alleged irregutar expendilure under Investigation

The tnvestigation process has been concluded and the Irregular expenditure disclosed have been condoned and wrltten off by

Councll.
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48. Addltional disclosure in terms of Munlcipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to SALGA

Current year subscription / fee 3430 171 3 166 801 3430 171 3166 801
Amount pald - current year {3 430 171) {3 166 801) {3 430 171} (3 166 801)
Skills Development Levy

Current year subscription / fee 3220 392 2 515609 3220362 2515609
Amotnt pald - cusrent year {3220 392) {2 516 609) (3 220 392) (2 516 609)
Audit fees

Current year subscription / fea 5780 394 3668634 6780 394 3 668 634
Amount paid - current year {5 780 394) {3 668 634) (6 780 394) (3 668 634)
PAYE and UIF

Gurrent year subscription / fee 66750919 59 604 866 68 750 919 52 604 866
Amount pald - current ysar {68 750 919) (59 604 866) (66 760 919) {59 604 866)
Pension and Medicat Ald Deductions

Current year subscription / fee 73657 876 69 230 043 73857 675 69 239 043
Amaunt pald - currant year (73 657 675} (69 239 043) (73657 675) (69 235 043}
Bargaining Gounecil Lavy

Current year levy 146 038 437 389 146 038 147 389
Amount pald - current year (146 038} (137 389) {146 038} (137 389)
VAT

VAT payable 46 796 765 42 373 168 39 960 827 36 363 062

VAT output payables and VAT input recelvables ara shown in note 17.

All VAT refurns have been submitted by

he due data throughout the year.
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Councillors
Arrear consumer accounls
30 June 2019

The following Counclifors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2019;

Outstanding Outstanding Total
less than 90 more than 90 R
days days
R R
Councillor: MJ Maake 503 - 503

30 June 2018

The following Counclifers had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2018

Qutstanding Qutstanding Total
fess than 90 more than 90 R
days days
R R
Councllior: JT Makhubsle 1294 74 191 76 485
Councillor: C Machimana 1868 £98 2 468
Councillor: FT Mohlaba a87 875 1882
4149 75 464 79613

48.  Supply chain management regulations

In terms of gection 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain
Management Pollcy needs to be approved by the Accounting Officer and noted by Counclt. The expenses Incurred have baen
approvad, .

§0. Deviatlon from supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 12(1){d){i) of Government Gazette No. 27636 Issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management policy
must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36 of the same gazells states that the Accounting Officer may dispense with the official procuremant procsss in
certaln clrcumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
Council and includes a note to the consolidated financial statements.

An amount of R73 260 were procurad for accounting services during the financial year under raview and the process followed in
procuring those sarvices deviate from the provislon paragraph 12(1){d)(i) as stated above, The reason for thase deviation were
documented and reported to the Accounting Officer who considered them and subsequently approved the daviation from the
nermal supply chain management regulations.

The rewards listed halow have besn approvad by the Accounting Officer and noted by Councll.
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Figures In Rand 2018 2018 2019 2018
The classification of devlations!
Emergenclas on servica delivery 7075122 4 498 655 7076122 4 488 555
Deviatlons on appointment altemative 10 133 600 12 128 194 10 133 000 13128 194
service providers due current service
providers having pending litigations with the
Municipality
Deviation on general internal municipal 508 202 2676644 508 202 2676 644
operations and human resources
Emergency on provisien for gecurity 7 547 436 - 7 547 436 -

25 263 760 18 303 383 26 263 760 20 303 393

Al deviations conslderad by the Accounting Officer are processed in terms of the Supply Chain Management Regulatlons and
the Supply Chain Management Policy. This process antails being assessed by the supply chaln management bid adjudication
committes in terms of the stipulated criteria of emergency procurements or clrcumstances where it ls impractical or impossible to

follow the officlal procedures.
A detalled deviation register 18 avaliable at the Municipality for Inspection.
51. Utilisation of Long-term [labilities reconciitation

Long-term liabiiities ralsed 133 455 817 103 181 579 133 455 817 103 181 678

Extornal loans have been utilized in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act. Refer to note 14 for more detail
regarding long-term borrowings.

52. Distributlon [osses

Units purchased {kwh) 376 039 517 377 371 088 376 039 517 377 371 088
Uniits lost during distribution (KWh} 77 317 186 83 060 406 77 317 1886 83 060 406
Percentage lost during disfribution 20.62 % 2201 % 2062 % 22.01 %
Rand value 123 566 576 108 946 468 123 6656 476 108 9486 468

Electricity losses:

The electricity distribution tosses for the current year are 20.62% {2018; 22.01%). These losses are predominantty due to
metering inaccuracies, system operations, theft and vandallsm.

The Municipality has engaged In a two year investigation project to address the distrlbution lossas. The project Includes the
upgrading of infrastruciure.

100




Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Censolidatad Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Economic enlity Controlling entity
Figures fn Rand 2019 2018 2019 2018

53. Budget differences
Material differences between budget and actual amounts
§1.1 Explanation of varlances hatwean approved and fina) budget greater than 10%

The variance betwsen the approved and final budget Is due to adjustments approvad on the adjustment budget and virements
approved by directors, The increase In the Capltat Budget is due to Capital projects rolled over from the previous financlal year.

Rental of facilities and equipment (20.36%)
Tha higher than anticipated ravenue on rental of facliities is due to the increment of jease agreaments enterad during the year

and once off rental agreement of department of labour. Variance is R 360 753 (2018: R 409 798).

Income from agency services {(-81.91%)
The budgeted amount includes the revenue recalved on bahalf of the agency which cannot be regarded as own revenue, only
20% s recognised as own revenue. Variance is R {41910 218) (2018: R (42 278 176)).

Licences and permits (32.38%)
The variance is due to higher than expecled revanue from the Issuing of iicences and permils especially building plans
approved, clearance certificates issued and town planning application fees. Variance [s R 249 674 {2018: R 304 857),

Other income {135,21%)
This higher than anficipated Incoma is dus ta grant administration fees and VAT en grant transforred from grants and subsidies.

Varlance is R 16 866 761 (2018: R 23 888 760).

Interest received - external Investment (153.59%)
The Increase is as a result of the annual additional investment made during the year, annual capitalisation of interest on
investment and Interest earnad on bank account. Variance is R 65 838 044 (2018: R 926 275).

Property rates (25.47%)
The Increase Is due fo supplementary valuation and new development. Variance is R 22 180 412 (2018: R 15 289 523),

Praperty rates - penalties imposed (47.39%)
The Increase In penalties is due fo late payments of debtors accounts and Increment on deblors book. Variance js R 3 222 800

(2018: R 1 703 616),

Publie contributions and donations (100.00%)
The Municipality received a donation of IT equipment from The Office of the Premier. Variance Is R 110 987 (2018: R 49 272).

Fines (615,14%)
The dlsclosure of fines has been done in accordance with GRAP and resulling in tolal fines issuss disclosed whilst the budgetad
amaount represants only cash racelvad. Varfance is R 27 688 303 (2018; R 32 483 510,

Expenditure

Employee cost (-13.81%)
The underspending Is due to vacant posts not filled immediately during the year. Vanance Is R 47 901 655 (2018;

R 34 663 847).

Finance cost (-54.73%)
The reduction in finance cost Is due o the loan of R 60 million approved by Councll during the budgel process but fater was
cancelied which led to the undarspending. Variance is R 14 474 707 (2018: R 1 757 421),

Coliection cost (-31.15%)
The contract for the debt collectors expired during the year which led to underspending. The new appointmants wers done
during August 2018. Varlance is R 19 073 403 (2018: R (1 370 028)),
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Figures in Rand

Debt impalrment (320.81%)
The Increase is due o the aliowance for impalrment done during the year and the impairment of traffic fines and no write offs

were done for 2018/2019. Varlance is R (94 318 683) {2018: R 89 588 752).

Grants and subsidies paid (58,97%)
The high spending ts duse fo the roads that wore constructed on behalif of RAL and are transferrad to RAL as grants and

subsidies. Variance is R {18 856 284) (2018: R (74 084 620))

Repalrs and maintenance (-31.16%)
The lower ihan antlcipated spending is due to the under expenditure on the council owned vehicla usage and repairs and
malntenance on electricity distribution network. Variance is R 15 073 403 (2018: R 8 ©34 161},

impairment of assets {100%)
The actua! amount represent fransformers impaired during the year due fo change in condition assessment. Variance is

R {4 399 272) (2018: R 2 839 900},

Loss on disposal of assets (-188.06%)
1.oss on disposal due to scrapped transformers and ather assets written off. Varlance is R {4 701 807) (2018: R (28 124 361)).

Staternent of Financial Posltion

Assets

Inventory {t1.68%)
The varianes is due to Increase In Inventory purchases. Variance I3 R 1 896 030 (2018: R {1 071 188)).

Other financlal assets (~100.00%)
The reduction Is due to management affort made during the year fo recover outgtanding funds regarding stand sales, Varlance

is R (3 267 978} {2018: R 36 943).

Consumer debtors {-6.63%)
During the budget preparalion the municipatity was antlcipating that consumer debtors hook would reduce due fo credit control

measures, Variance Is R {7 242 681) (2018: R 20 578 989),

Heceivables from non-exchange transactions {-50.64%)
The budget amount represents only cash recelved whilst the actual amount represents total traffic fines issued. The aclual is

disclosed according to GRAP1. Varlance is R (37 793 551) (2018: R 41 3566 780).

Recelvabies from exchange transactions (73.45%)
The Increase Is dus to the outstanding balance on Mopani debtros account. Variance is R 110 613 068 (2018; R 29 830 860).

Gash and cash equivalents (530.13%)
The municipality closed with a positive hank balance due to the foan amount of R 40 million taken up from DBSA. Varlanca ls

R 35 362 442 {2018: R {1 466 825)).

Investment property {~11,05%}
The reduction is dus fo duplicate assets taken out of the asset ragister, Variance is R (22 623 700) (2018: R (17 041 947)).

Property, plant and equipment {+15.30%)
The reduction In PPE Is due to the depreciation of completed projacts and write offs of Infrastructure assets. Variance is

R (262 832 135) (2018:R (314 715 282)).

Intangible assets (40.12%)
The reduction Is due to the amortisation of intangible assets. Varlance is R 325 019 (2018: R 1 089 288).

Heritage assets (100%)
The variance is dus to the inclusion of the Mayors chain in the asset register. Variance is R 195000 (2018: R Q).
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Other financial assets (-30.48%)
The dacrease is dus fo the long term vestment not taken up during 2018/2019 finanfcal year. Variance Is R {13 823 858}

(2018: R 3 187 399),
Liakilitles

Other financial liabilities (current) (11 1.86%)
The increase Is due o the ioan of R 15 mililon that will be redeemed during the year, Variance is R 12 044 040 (2018:

R (13 821 344))

Payables from exchange transactions (28.16%)
The municipality had creditors and retention amount not pald out at year end. Variancs s R 60 021 262 (2018: R 56 718 738).

VAT Payable (16.92%)
The oulstanding balance represents an amount owed to SARS not paid at year end. Varlance iaR & 487 458 (2018;

R 5303 044),

Unspent conditional grants and recelpts (259.23%)
The unspent condittonal grants Is higher than anticipated due to the outstanding balarce of R 4.9 million under INEP grant.

Variance |s R 3 668 221 (2018: R 1 509 7986).

Provisions (39.12%)
The increase Is dus to tha provision for parformance bonus of all directors and municipal manager for the full financial year.

Varlance Is R 266 768 (2018; R (327 914)).

Other financial liabilittes (non-current) {-9.75%)
The reduction is due to the loan of R 15 milllon that will be redeemed during the year, Variance isR {11 948 850) {2018:

R 37 245 403).

Finance lease abligation (-55.38%)
The budget amaunt includes the vehicles that were supposed to be purchased through a finance lease, Varlance Is

R (8 103 976) (2018: R 1 426 973).
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Statement of Cash Flows

Interest Income {-53.77%)
The decrease is due to the inclusion of Interest on outstanding debtors amount recelved under sales of goads and services.

Varianee Is R (11 185 186) (2018: R (7 123 £25)).

Finance costs (-55.17%)
The reduction In finance cost is due fo the loan of & 80 million approved by Councll during the budget process, but later was
cancalled, which led to the underspending. Variance is R 13 487 207 {2018: R 2 553 949).

Transfer of property, plant and equipment {100%)
The actual amount represent vapitalisation of campleted projects transferred from WP to infrastructure assets. Varlance is

R 64 508 821 (2018; R 75 728 464).

Additions to propetly, plantand atulpment (16.57%)
The ovarspending is due ta the amount of completed projects transferred from workin in prograss to infrastructure. Varlance is

R (22 492 473) (2018: R 44 409 766),

Procesds on disposall write off of property, plant and equipment (-100%)

During the budget process, it was antlcipated that the Municipality wili dispose of its assets. Variance lsR (1 823 110} (2018
R 491 367).

Addlflons to Intangible assets (100%)
The difference Is due to the acquisition software for two way radio system. Variance R (154 938) (2018: R 0}.

increase In financial asset (-13.9%)

The decrease Is due to the long temm investment not take up during the 2076/2019 financlal year. Variance is R 435 316 {2018:
R (671 921)).

64, Fair value adjustments

invastment property (Falr value model) - 11 004 300 - 11 004 300

The Graater Tzaneen Munlcipality fair valued its investment praparlies using the valuation roll that came into effect on the 01
July 2017 which Is reviewed evary four years.

B5. Investmentrevenue

Interest ravenue

Bank 23230 60 645 - .
Interesi received - invesiment 9615 814 4 427 275 94615814 4427 276
Interast recelved - trading 17 826 0563 18 396 601 17 826 053 48 395 501

27 466 097 22 873 421 27 441 867 22822776

An amount of R 5311 745 (2018: R 2 760 228) included in [nvestment revenue arises from fixed deposit transactions amounting
to R 45 860 000 (2018: R 243 500 000), while the halance of R 4 304 069 (2018: R 1 677 047) arisas from Interest received on
the Municlpslities current bank accotmnt.

56. Finas revenue

Revanue for fraffic fines lssued 31 635 630 37 461 500 31 635630 37 451 600
Cther fines 563 809 £36 148 553 808 535 148
32189439 37 986 646 32188439 37 986 646

§7. Loss /(gain) on disposal/ write off of assets

Property, plant and equipment {2 201 607} (25 924 361) (2 201 607) (26 924 361)
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Economic entity Controlling entity
2019 2018 2019 2018
Restated* Restated*
68. Public contributions and donatlons
Public contributions and donations 110987 49272 110 987 48 272
|
See note 26,
59. Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment 127 789 622 127 892 240 127 100 818 126 971 667
Intanglble assets 3486 4 577 523 269 882 371

127 793 108 127 696 817 127 724 087 127 664 038

60, Debtimpairment movements

Racelvables from exchange {ransactions 8 164 876 10 286 853 8 164 878 10 286 853
Consumer debtors 87 344 204 42 300 662 87 344 204 42 309 662
Fines 28 209 603 61728 037 28 209 603 61728 037

123 718 683 114 324 552 123 718 683 114 329 552

61, Change in estimafe
Changes In accounting estimates

The Municlpality has reassessed the useful lives of proparty, plant and equipment which resulted in certain assets remaining
usetul lives to changa. infrastructure assets useful life cha;nged from nine (8) to ten {10) ysars on average. Other assefs

The change In estimate sffected the following classes of assets:
¢ Infrastructure assets
*  Communily assets
. Other assets
*  leased assets
*  Intaglble assets

€2, Prior period errors

Presented below are those ltams contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial parformance and cash
ftow statement that have besn affacted by the prior-peried adjustments and raclassification,

Economic entlity
Statement of Financial Position 2017

R-16433462 PPE
2017/08/30 Accumulated depreclation for infrastructure road ussfil [ifs previously not reviewed R 6 090 668
2017/08/30 Accumulated depraciation due to other assets useful life previously not reviewad R 721 434
2017/06/30 Aceurnulated depreciation due to leased assels usefyl life previously nof reviewed R 115 335
201706130 Reduclion It community assets dua to Jand duplications taken out - R 22 380 900

R 195 00O Herlfage Assots
2017/06/30 Mayoral Chain previously not resognised R 185 G00

* See Nole 62
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Figures In Rand

R.-2240000 Invesiment property
2017/06/30 Raduction of invesiment property dua to duplicated properties in the asset register -R 2 240 000

R .38 636 965 Accumulated Surplus

2017/06/30 Accumulaied depreciation for infrastructure road useful life previously not reviewad - R 6 080 668,17

2017/06/30 Accumulated depreciation due to other assets useful life previously not reviewed - R 721 434

2017/06/30 Accurnulated depreciation due to leased assets useful llfe praviously not reviewed -R 115 336

2017/06{30 Reduction of Investernent property due to duplicated properties in the agset registar R 2 240 000

2017108130 Reduction in community assets due to land duplications taken out R 22 360 500

20176730 Reduction of unspent conditfonal grants due to unspent grants written back - R 2 580 605

2047/08/30 INEP amount incorrectly classified as revenue recognised instead of loan repayments R 11 368 623

2017/06/30 INEP amount Incorrectly classified as revente recognised instead of loan repayment R 8 769 017

2017/06f30 Mayoral Chain previously not recagnised - R 195 000

201706130 Grant amount allocated in incorrect financial year R 842 923

2017106130 The VAT liabllity for 2017 was understated with the SARS assessment raleed and was not previously
accounted for In the books -R 2 677 545.

R -20 128 540 Receivables from exchange transactlons
2017/06/30 INEP amount incorrectiy classified as revenus recognised instaad of loan repayment - R 11 358 523
2047106/30 INEP amount Incorectly classified as revenue recognisad Instead of loan repayment - R 8 769 017.

R 2 590 505 Unspent conditional grant ,
201 7/06/30 Reduction of unspant conditional grants due to unspont grants written back R 2 580 605.

R -842 923 Payables from exchange transactions
2017/06/30 Grant amount allocated in Incorrect financlal year - R 842 923,

R-2 6776548 VAT Payable
2017/06/30 The VAT liability for 2017 was understated with the SARS assessment raised and was not previously
accounted for in the books -R 2 877 545,

Staternent of Financlal Position 2018

R-15609 578 PPE

2018/06/30 Accumulated depreclation for Infrastruciure road usefu life previously not raviawed R 6 090 668
2018/06/30 Accurmnulated deprectation due to ofher assets useful life previously not raviewed R 721 434

2018/08/30 Accumulated depreciation dus fo leased assels useid! life previously not reviewed R 116 335
201810630 Accumnulated depreciation due to roads infrastructure useful flife previously not reviewed - R 772 848
2018/06/30 Accumulated depreciation due to other assots useful lifs pravicusly not reviewed capitalised -R 209 504
2018/06/30 Accumuated depreciation dus to leased assets useful life previously not reviewed capitalised - R 37 000
2018/06/30 Increase in roads community assets due to Marumofase Bridge capitalised with incorrect amount R 828 834
2018/06/30 Increase in accumulated depreciation for Marumaotase bridge capitalised with incorrect amount -R 21 181
2018/06/30 Reduction if community assets due lo land duplications taken out -R 22 360 900

2018/06/30 Increase in ather assels due to fumiture previously not capitalised R 14 720

2018/086/30 Increase In other assets dus to cameras previously not capitalised R R 20 867,
RA76 Gonsumer debtors

2018/06/30 Interest was not accrued for R168 on the ABSA Depositor Plus Accolint and R9 on the 32 day Notice
Account R 176,

R. 680000 investment property
2018/06/30 Reduction in investment property dus to duplicated properties in the asget register - R 2 240 000

2018/06/30 Change in fair valie adjusiment for duplicated investment properties taken out R 660 000.

*See Note 62
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R -8GB 844 Payables from exchange transactions
to Marumofase Bridge payment Incorrecly classifiad - R 828 834

2018/06/30 Dacrease in retention account due
2018/06/20 Decrease in payable from exchange transaction due to accrual of Inferest not falsed - R 960 662

2018/06/30 fnterest pald instead of acorued - R 178 650,

R -19 173 372 Receivablas from exchange fransactions
¥ classified as revenue recognised instead of loan repayment - R 11 359 523

2018/08130 INEP amount incorrectl
2018/06/30 INEP amount incorrectly classified as revenue fecognised insiead of loan repayment - R 8 7689 047

2018/06/30 Grant amount allocated in incorrect financlal year R 141 157
2018/06/30 Interest paid instead of acerued R 178 650,

R 195 000 Herltage assots
2018/08/30 Mayoral Chain previausly rot recognised R 195 000,

R-3752613 VAT Payable
2018/06/30 The VAT ilabllity for 2018 was understated with the SARS assessments raised and not previously accounted
for In the books, the amount of R 2 877 545 relates to 2017 financial year and the amount of R 1 075 088

tefates to the 2018 financial year,

R -141 157 Other financial liabities
2018/08/30 Interest amount allocated in the incorrect financlal year- R 141 157,

R-~2447 887 Other financlal assets
2018/06/30 Redugtion In other financial assets due fo money not recelved for stand sales - R 2 447 887

R 1979 740 Recelvables from non-sxchange transactions
2018/08/30 fncrease in consumer dabtors due to debt lmpairment VAT portion R 1 979 740

R1030612 Unspent conditional grants

2018/06/30 Overspending of INEP grant transtferred to genersl expenses - R 1 030 612

R-113920%  Other financlal lIahility
2018/08/30 Increase in other financlal Hability due to interest accruad onloans - R 1 139 209

* See Nale 62
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R-43 668 357 Accumulated surplus
2018/06/30 Accumulated deprectation for Infrastructure road useful life previously not reviewed - R 6 090 G668

2018/06/30 Accumulaled depreciation due to other assets useful life praviously not reviewed R 721 434
2018/06/30 Accumulated depreciation dus lo laased assets useful tife previously not reviewad - R 115 335
2018408130 Accumulated depraclation due to roads infrastructure useful life previously not reviewed - R 772 848
2018/08/30 Accumitlated depreciation due to other assets useiul life previously not reviewad caplialised R 208 504
2018/05/30 Accumuated depraciation due to leased assets uselul life previously nol reviewed capitalised R 37 000

2018/06/30 Increase In roads community assets due to Marumofase Bridge oapitalised with Incorrect amount - R 828 834
2018/06/30 Increase In acctimulated depreciation for Marumofase bridge capltalised with Incorrect amount R 21181
2018f06/30 Reduction |f community assets due lo land duplications taken out R 22 360 900

2018/06/30 Increase in other assets due to furniture previously not capltalised - R 14 720

2018/06/30 increase In other assets due to cameras previously not capitalised - R 20 867

2018/06/30 Reduction in Investment property dus to duplicated propetiles in the asset register R 2 240000
2018/06/30 Ghange in falr value adjustment for duplicated Investment properties taken out - R 560 000
2018/08/30 Dacrease in retantion account dus to Marurmofase Bridge payment incorrectly classified R 828 834

2018/06/30 Desrease in payable from exchange transaction due to accrual of Interest not ralsed R 960 662,
2018/06/30 INEP arnount incorrectly classifled as revenus recognised instead of loan repayment R 11 369 523
2018/06/30 INEP amount Incorrectly classifled s revenue recognised instead of loan repayment R 8 768 017

2018/06/30 Mayora! Chaln previousty not racognised - R 195 000

2018/06/30 intarest amount allocated In the incorrect finanicial year - R 141 157

2018/06/30 Interast amount allocated In the incorract financial year R 141 157

2018/06/30 Interest was not accrued for R168 on the ABSA Dapositar Plus Account and R9 on the 32 day Notlce
Account R 176

2018/06/30 The VAT liabllity for 2018 was understated with the SARS assessments ralsed and not previously accounted
for in the boaks, the amount of R 2 677 546 relates to 2017 financlal year and the amount of R 1 075 068
relates fo the 2018 financial year,

Controlling entity
Statement of Financial Position 2017

R-15433462 PPE

2017/06/30 Accumulated dapreciation for Infrastructure road useful life praviously not reviewed R 6 080 668
2017/06/30 Accumulated depreciation due to other assets useful life previously not reviewed R 721 434
2017/08/30 Accumulated depreciation due to leased assels useful life previously not reviewsd R 115 336

2047/06/30 Reduction In community assets due fo land duplications taken out - R 22 360 900

R 195 000 Heritane Assels
2014 7/06/30 Mayoral Chain previously not recognised R 195 000

12 240 Q00 Investment property
201 7/06/30 Reduction of investment property dus to duplicated proporties in the asset register -R 2 240 000

R -35 859.420 Accumaulated Sutplus

2017/06/30 Accumuiated depreciation for Infrastructure road usefut life previously not reviewed - R € 090 668.17
2017106130 Accumulated depreciation due to other assels useful life previcusly not reviewed - R 721 434
2017/06/30 Accumutlated depreciation due to Inased assels useful life previously not reviewed -R 116 336
2017106130 Raduction of Investement property due to duplicated properties In the asset reglster R 2 240 000
2017/08/30 Reduction In communily assets due fo fand duplications taken out R 22 360 900

2017106130 Reduction of unspent conditional grants due to unspent grants written back - R 2 580 506
2017/06/130 INEP amount Incorrectly classifiad as revenue recognised Instead of loan repayments R 41 359 523
2017/06/30 INEP amount incorrectly classified as revenue recognised instead of foan repayment R 8 769 D7
201706130 Mayoral Chain previously not recognised - R 1856 000

2017/06/30 Grant amount allocated in incorrect financial year R B42 023,

R -20128 640 Receivables from exchange transactions
2017/06130 INEF amoun! incorrectly classifled as revenue recognised instead of loan repayment - R 11 359 623
2017/06/30 INEP amount incorrectly classified as revenue recognised instead of loan repayment - R 8 769 017.

* See Nole 62
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R 2 590 K05 Unspent conditional grant

2017108130 Reduction of unspent condiifonal grants dus to unspent grants writtsn back R 2 580 505,

8 -842 923 Payables from exchange fransactions

2017/06/30 Grant amount allocated In incorrect financlal year - R 842 923,

Statement of Financlal Position 2018

R -16 608 577 PPE
2018/08/30 Accumulated depreclation for infrastructure road useful iife previously hot reviewed R & 090 668
2018/06/30 Accumulated depraclation due to ather assels usefu] lifa previously ot reviewad R 721 434

2018/06/30 Accumulated depreciation due to leased assets usefuf life previously not reviewsd R 115 335
2018/06/30 Accumutated depreciation due to roads infrasiructure useful Jife previously not reviewsd - R 772 848
2018/06/30 Accumulated depreclation due ta other asseis useful lifs previously hot reviewed capitalised -R 209 804
2018/06/30 Accumuated dapreclation due to leased assels useful ife previously not reviewed capitalised - R 37 000

2018/08/30 Increase In roads community assets due to Marumofase Bridge capitalised with incorrect amount R 828 834
2048/06/30 Increase in accumulated depreciation for Marumofase bridge capitalised with incorrect amount -R 21 484
2018/08/30 Reduclion if community assets due to land duplications taken out -R 22 360 200

2018/6130 Increase In other assets due to furniture previously not capitalised R 14 720

2018/06/30 Increase In other assets due to cameras previously not capitalised R R 20 867.

R 1979 74¢ Recelvables from non-exchange fransactions

2018/06/30 Increase in consumer deblars due to debt impatment VAT porllon R 1 979 740

R 1680000 Investment property
2018/08/30 Reduction in invastment property due to duplicated properties in the asset register - R 2 240 000

2018/08/30 Change in fair value adjustment for duplicated investment properlies laken oul R 560 000.

R -B28 836 Payables from exchange fransactions

2018/08/30 Decrease in relention account due to Marumofase Bridge payment incorrectly classifled - R 828 834
2018/06/30 Dacrease in payable from exchange transaction due to accrual of interest not raised - R 960 862
2018/06/30 Interest pald Instead of accrued - R 178 550

R-1132208 Other financlal iiabillty

2018/08f30 Increase In other financlal flability due to Interest acerued on loans - R 1139 209

R-19173 372 Receivables from exchange transactions

2018/06/30 INEP amount Incorrectly classified as revenue recognised instead of loan repayment - R 11 359 623
2018/06/30 INEP amount incorrectly classified as revenue recognised instead of loan repayment - R 8 769 017

2018/086/30 Grant amount allocated in Incorrect financial year R 141 157
2018/06/30 Interest paid Instead of accrued R 178 550
2018/06/30 Redugtion in debt impairment with the VAT portion R 635 461

R 196 000 Herltage assots
2018/06/30 Mayoral Chaln previously not recognised R 195 000,

R 10308612 Unspent conditlonal grants
2018/06/30 Overspending of INEP grant transferred to generel expenses - R 1030612

R -141 157 Other financlal liablities
2018/06/30 Interast amount allocated in the Incorrsct financial year - R 141 157,

R-2447 887 Qther financlal assets
2018/06/30 Redugction in other financial assats due to menay not received for stand sales - R 2 447 887

* See Nole 62
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R -39 875910 Accumulated surplus

2018/06/30 Accumulated depreciation for infrastructure road useful life previously not reviewed - R 8 (90 658
2018/08/30 Accumulaled depreciation due to other assets useful life previousty not reviewed R 721434
2018/06/30 Accumulated depreciation due to leased assels useful llfe previously not reviewed - R 115 33b
201806130 Acoumulated deprecialion due to roads infrastructure useful life praviously not roviewed - R 772 848
2018/086/30 Accurmulated depreciation due to other aasets useful [ife previously not reviewed capltalised R 208 504
2018/06/30 Accumuated depraciation due to leased assets useful fife previously not reviewed capltalised R 37 000
2018/06/30 Increase in roads community assets due to Marumofase Bridge capitalised with Incormect amount - R 828 834
2018/06/30 Increase in accumulated depreclation for Marumofase bridge capitalised with Incorrect amount R 21 181
2018/06/30 Reduction if community assets due to [and duplications taken out R 22 360900

2018/06130 tncrease in other assets due to furniiure previously not capitalised - R 14 720

2018/06/30 Increase in other assels due to cameras praviously not capitalised - R 20 867

2018/08/30 Reductlon in investment property due to duplicated properties in the asset register R 2 240000
2018/06/30 Ghange In falr vaiue adjustment for duplicated investment praperties taken out - R 560 000
2018/06/30 Decrease in retantion account due to Marumafase Bridge payment incorrectly classified R 828 834
2018/06/30 Decrease in payable from exchange transaction due to accrual of interest not raised R 960 662,
2018/06/30 INEP amount incarrectly classifled as ravenue recognised instead of loan repayment R 11 35689 523
2018/06/30 INEP amount incorrectly classified as revenue racognised Instead of loan repayment R 8 768 017
2018/06/30 Mayoral Chaln previously not recoghised - R 195 000

2018/06/30 Interest amount alfocated in the Incorrect finanlcial year - R 141 167

2018/06/30 Interest amount allocated in the incorrect financial year R 141 157

2018/06/30 Increase in other financlal lability due to interest accrued on loans - R 1 139208

* See Note 62
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Figures in Rand

Econcomic entity

Statement of Financlal Position
Assets

Current Assets

Inventory

Other financlal assets

Operating lease asset

Recelvable from exchange fransactions

Recelvabiles from non-exchange transactions

Consumer deblors

Cash and cash equivalanis
Non-Current Assets
Invastment property

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assats

Herltage asset

Other financial assets
Liabliities

Current Llablllties

Gther financlal liabiliies
Flnance leass ebfigation
Payables from exchange transaction
VAT Payable

Consumer deposiis

Unspent conditional graifs and receipts
Provislons

Non-Current lfabifitles

Other financial laibililies
Finance lease obllgation
Employee benelit obligation
Provisions

2017 previously Correction of 2017 Reslaled
raported errors
14 753 202 - 14 753 202
2669 089 - 2 669 089
149 818 - 149 816
220 822 902 (20 128 540) 200 694 382
75 870 946 - 75 BT0 945
107 035 128 - 107 035 128
32 650 519 - 32 550 §1¢
173 182 753 {2 240 000) 170 942 753
1610594 138 {15 433 462) 1595 160 678
1143 105 - 1143105
- 195 000 195 000
25174 277 - 25174 277
(17 075 313) - {17 075 913)
{1758 832) - {1 768 832}
(178 687 626} {842 923} (179 510 549)
{34713 133) (2677 645) (37 300 678)
{23 129 384) - {23 129 384)
(20 340 228) 2 590 505 (17 740 723)
{608 889) - (606 889}
(102 861 330) - (102 661 330)
{3 558 300) - {3 558 300}
(84 223 104) - (84 223 104)
(4 205 927) - (4 205 927)
1793 005 208 {38 536 965) 1 754 468 243

* Sea Nole 62
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Figures in Rand

Gontrolling entity 2017 previously Carrection of 2017 Restated
Statement of Financial Posltion roported errors

Assets

Current Assets

inventory 14 763 202 - 14 753 202
Other financial assets 2 669 089 - 2 669 089
Operating lease asset 149 816 - 149 818
Recslvables from exchange transaction 220788 581 (20 128 540) 200 660 041
Receivables from non-exchange {ransactions 75 870 945 - 76 870 945
Consumer deblors 107 036 129 - 107 035 129
Cash and cash equivalents 31 839 163 - 31839 163
Non - Current Assets

Investment properties 173182 753 (2 240 Q00) 170942 753
Properly, plant and equipment 1610622 177 {16 433 462) 1505 088 716
intangible assets 1135 042 " 1136 042
Heritage assel - 195 000 195 000
Other Financial assets 26 174 276 - 25 174 276
Llabilities

Cutrent Liabijities

Other financial liabllities (17 075 913) - (17 075 813)
Finance lease obligation (1 758 832) - {1 758 832}
Payables from exchange transactions {178 361 481) (842 923) {179 204 384)
VAT Payable {33 376 034} - {33 376 034)
Consumer debtors (23 129 385) - (23 129 385)
Unspent conditional grants and recelpts (20 340 228} 2 590 505 {17 749 723}
Provisions (606 890) - {606 890)
Non-Current Liabllities

Other financlal llabllities (102 661 329) - (102 661 329)
Finance lease obligation {3 558 300) - (3 558 300)
Employee benefit obligation (84 223 104) - (84 223 104)
Provisions (4 205 927) - {4 205 927}
Accumulated surpius 1793822770 (35 8569 420) 1 757 963 360

Economic entiy

statement of financial position
Gurrent Assets

{inventories

Other financial assets

Operating lease asset

Recelvables from exchange fransactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Consumer debtors

Cash and cash equivalents
Non-Current Assets

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
intangible aesets

Heritage assels

Other financial assets

Currant llabilitles

Other financlal liabilities

Flnance lease obligation

Payables from exchange transactions
VAT Payable

Consumer deposits

Unspent conditional grants and recelpls
Provisions

2048 previously
reported

19 164 420
2 447 887
173 366
252 898 146
43 961 106
135341 384
8056 079

183 057 053
4 602 069 721
1606 954

28 887 308

(9 585 798)
(824 306)
(207 210 585)
(38 620 553)
(26 858 463)
(2 924 848}
(445 724}

Correction of
arrors
(2 447 887)
(19173 372)

1979739
176

{1 680 000}
(16609 578)

195 000

(4 139 209)

(868 844)
(3 752 613)

{1030 812)

2018 Restated

19 164 420

173 356
233724 774
43961 106
137 321 123
8 066 265

181 377 053

1 486 460 143
i 606 954

195 000

28 887 308

{10725 007}
(824 306)
(208 079 429)
(42 373 166)
(26 858 463)
(3 955 460)
(445 724)

* See Nole 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolldated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Flgures in Rand

Non-Gurrent Liabilities

Other financlal liabifities {92 315 415) (141 167) {92 456 572)
Finance lease cbligation (602 667) - (602 667)
Employes benofit obfigation (83 821 523) - {83 821 523)
Provislons (4 625 518) - (4626 519)
1 707 827 103 (43 668 357) 1664 158 746

* See Note 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year endad 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures In Rand

Econcomie entlty

Controlling entity 2018 previously Correctlon of 2018 Restated
Statement of Financlal Position repaorted eIrars
Assets
Current Assots
Inventories 10 164 420 - 19 164 420
Othar financial assels 2 447 887 (2 447 887) -
Operating lease assst 173 357 - 173 357
" Recelvables from exchange transactions 262 892 827 (19173 372) 233719455
Recsivables from non-exchange transactions 43 881 108 - 43 961 106
Consumer debiors 135 341 384 1978 740 137 321 124
Cash and cash equivalents 7 480 665 - 7 490 665
Non-Curront Assets
Investment properfy 183 057 053 {1 680 000) 181 377 053
Properly, plant and equipment 1 601 923 089 (15609 577} 1 486 313 622
Intangible assets 1 603 468 - 1603 468
Heritage assels - 195 000 195 000
Other financial assels 26 88T 389 - 26 BBY 399
Liakiilties
Currant Liabilities
Other financial labilitias (D 585 798) (1 139 209) (10 725 007)
Finance leass obligation {824 3086) - {824 306)
Payables from exchange transactions {207 038 227} (528 8386) (207 865 063)
VAT Payable (36 353 082) - (35 353 082)
Consumar deposits {26 858 463) - {26 858 463)
Unspent conditional grants and recelpts (2 924 848) {1 030612) {3 955 460)
Provislons (445724) - (445 724)
Non-Current Liabllitics
Other financial liabllities (92 315 415} (141 187) (92 456 572)
Finance lease obligation {602 667} - (602 667)
Employee benefit obligation (83 821 523) - (83821 523}
Provistons {4 628 520} - {4 626 520}
Accumulated surplus 1 709 5438 082 (39 875 910} 16869672182

Statement of Financial Performance 2018

Intarest was not accrued for R167 on the ABSA Depositor Plus Account and R9 on the 32 day Notice Account.

Raduction of other income due te unspent uncaditional grants wrilten back - R 3 333 486,

Change In deprecialicn dua to roads infrastructure usefu! lIfe previeusly not reviowed - R 772 848
Dapraciation for other assets due to useful life previously not reviswed -R 209 504

Depreciation for lvased assets due to useful life previously not reviewed capltalised - R 37 Qoo
Depreciation for Marumofase Brldge capitalised with incorrect amount - R 21 181

Reallocation between travelling cost to remuneration of councillors R 4 400,

R178 Interest recelved - trading
2018/06/30

R-3333406 Otherincomeg

2018/06/30

R-{ 040632 Depreciation and amortisation
2018/06/30

2018/06/30

2018/06/30

2018/06/30

R 4400 Remuneration of counclliors
2018/06/30

R 960 662 Finance cost

2018/06/30

Inctease In payable from exchange transactions due to acctual of Interest not raised - R 960 660

* Sea Note 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures In Rand

R-668 875 General expenses

2018/06/30 Reduction in general expenses due o furnliiure previously not capitalised R 14 720

2018/08/30 Reduction in general expenses due to cameres previously not capltalised R 20 865

2018/06/30 Grant allocated in the incomect financial year R 742 990

2018/06/30 General expense was overstated with R4400 that was taken to boards remuneration and the amount of
R1 075 068 relates to VAT adjustments.,

R 560 000 Fair value adjustment

2018/06/30 Change in fair value adjustment for duplicated investment properties taken out R 560 000

R-2447 887  Service charges
2018/06/30 Raduction In service charges due to raoney for stand sale not received - R 2 447 887

R 2 615 200 Debt impalrment
2018/08/30 Reduction in debt impalrment due to VAT portion taken out R 2 615 200

R 842 923 Grants and subsidies pald
2018/06/30 Granl amount alfocated in incorrect financlal year R 842 923

Controlling entity
Statement of Financial Performance 2018

R-3333436 Otherincoms
2018/06/30 Reduction of other income due to unspent uncoditional grants written back - R 3 333 496.

R-1040 833 Depreciation

2018/06/30 Change in depraclation due to roads Infrastructure useful ife praviously not reviewed - R 772 848
2018/06/30 Depreciation for other assests dus to useful life previously not reviewed -R 209 504

2018/06/30 Depreciation for leasad asssts due to useful life praviously not reviewed capltalised - R 37 000
2018/08/30 Depreciation for Marumofase Brldge capitalised with incorrect amount - R 21 184

R -980 860 Finance cost
2018/08/30 increase In payable from exchange Yransactions due to accrual of interest not ralsed - R 960 660

R -252 036 General expenses
20118/06/30 Reduction In general expenses due to furniture previously not capitalised R 14 720

2018/06/30 Reduclion in general expanses duse to cameras previously not capltalised R 20 865
2018/06/30 Grant allocated in the Incorrect financlal year R 742 090,

R 660 000 Falr value adjustment

2018/06/30 Change in fair valus adjusiment for duplicatad Investrment properites taken out R £80 000

R 842 923 Grants and subsidies paid
2018/06/30 Grant amount allocated in Incorrect financlal year R 842 923

R-2447 887 Servlce charges
2018/08/30 Reduction In service charges due to money for stand sale not recsived - R 2 447 887

R2616200  Debt Inpalrment
2018/06/30 Reduclion in debt impairment due to VAT partion taken out R 2 615 200

Economic entlty 2018 previously Adjustment of 2018 Restated
Statement of Financial Performance restated arrors

Revenue from exchange fransactions

Service charges 485 080 405 (2 447 887) 482 612 518
Rental of facilittes and equipment 1781 896 - 1781896
Interest racaived - rading 18 395 501 - 18 395 601
Agency services 7088 116 - 7988 116

* See Note 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

Licenses and permils

Other Income

Intorest recelved - investment
Taxation revenue

Propetty rates

Property rates - penaliles Imposed
Transfer revenusa

Government grants & subsidies
Public contributions and donations
Fines, panaltles and forfelts
ExpendIture

Employes related costs
Remuneration of counciiors
Depreciation and amartisation
Impalrment loss/reversal of impairments
Finance cost

Lease rentals on operafing lease
Debt impalrment

Collection cosls

Repairs and maintenance

Bulk purchases

Contracted services

Transfer and subsidies

General expenses

Loss on disposalfwrite off of property, plant and
squpment

Fair value adjustments

Controlling entity
Statement of Financlal Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges

Rental of facilitles and equipment
Interest received (trading)

Agancy servicas

Licenses and permiis

Other income

Interest recsived - investment
Taxation revenue

Property rates

Proparty rates - penaltias imposed
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidles
Public contributions and donations
Fines

Expendifure

Employee raiated cost
Remuneration of councillors
Depreclation and amortisation
impairment of asssls

Finance costs

Debt Impalrment

Collestion costs

Repairs and malntenance

Bulk purchases

Conlracted services

1 005 867 - 1 005 867

34 101 B80S (3 333 496) 30 768 310

4 477 744 176 4 477 920

09 289 522 - a9 288 522

8203616 - 8203 616

428 692 119 - 428 692 119

49 272 - 49272

37 986 646 - 37 986 646
(285 057 089) - (285 057 089)
{25 387 968) 4 400 (25 383 568)
(126 656 285) (1 040 532) (127 696 817)
(2 839 900} - {2 839 600)
(11013 608} (960 662} (11974 271)
- {512 649) (517 649)

(116 939 752) 2615 199 (114 324 653)
{1 770 028) {367 482} (2 137 520)
{46 099 414) 167 303 (44 932 111)
(326 455 993) - (325 455 993)
(48 050 548) - (48 050 548)
{113 263 619) . 842923 {112 420 696)
{05 196 354) (668 675) (95 855 029)
{25 924 361) - (25 924 361)

10 444 300 560 000 11004 300
(85 178 110} (6 131 352) (90 309 502)

2018 praviously Adjustment of 2018 Restated
restated erors

485 060 405 (2 447 887} 482612 518
1761 896 - 1781858

18 395 501 - 18 395 501

7988 116 - 7988 116

1 005 867 - 1006 867

34 101 806 {3 333 495) 30768 310
4427 776 - 4 427 275
00289 523 - 99 289 523
8203616 - 8 203616
428 692 119 - 428 692 118
49272 - 49 272

37 986 G46 - 37 986 646
{282 016 266} - {282 018 266)
(24 432 412) - (24 432 412)
(126 613 505) {1 040 533) (127 654 038}
(2 839 900) - (2 839 900}
{11 013 608} (980 880) (11 674 269)
(116939 752) 2616 200 (114 324 552}
(1770028) - (1 770 028)
{44 932 114) - {44 932 114)
{325 455 993) - (325 455 903)
(48 050 548} - {48 050 548)

* See Nole 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Consolidated Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

Grants and subsidies pald

General expenses

Loss on disposal of assetls and liabililiss
Fair value adjustments

Surplusf(loss) for the year

Econem/ic entity

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Taxation

Sale of goods and services

Grants

Interest Income

Payments

Empiloyes cost

Suppliers

Finance cost

Transfer of property plant and equipment
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and aquipmentl
Sale of investment property

Purchase of intangible asset

Proceeds from sale of financial assets
Gash flows from financing activities
Repaymaent of other financial liabilities
Finance lease payments

{113 263 619) 842 923 (112 420 898)
(98 448 914) (252 036} {98 700 950)
(25 924 361) - {25 924 361)

10 444 300 560 000 11004 300
(84 274 679) {4 016 439) (88 221 168)

2018 previously Adjustment of 2018 restated

slated BITOrS

79 408 169 - 79408 159
534 633 862 (27 313 081) 507 320 781
472679 141 18419 122 491 096 263

4 427 275 50 646 4477 920

(310 851 048) B8 808 (310 842 240)

(723 769 172) 6930 536 {716 838 638)
{10 217 081) {890 572) (11 107 653)
75 728 464 - 75 728 4484

{124 629 010) (864 409) (125 493 419}

2 690 581 785 2691 366
§70 000 - 670 000
(1 160 797) - {1150 797)
{1491 920) 2 447 888 955 966
(17 836 031) 1280 367 {16 555 664)
(4 686 687} (70 087) (4 766 774)
(24 494 264) - (24 494 264)

* See Note 82
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

Controlling entity

Cash Flow Sfatement 2018 previously Adjustment of 2018 restated
stated errors

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Taxation revenus 79 408 169 - 79 408 158

Grants 466 424 491 1g 162 112 485 586 603

interest income 4427 275 - 4427 276

Sals of goods and services 534 664 2356 (27 262 460} 507 291 775

Payments

Employee costs (306 850 259) - {306 850 269}

Suppliers (721 403 656} 6197 158 (716 206 398)

Finance cost {10217 081) (880 572} (11 107 653}

Transfer of property, plant and equipment 75728 464 - 75728 464

Cash flows from Investing activitles

Purchase to property, plant and equipment (124 516 144) (864 417) (125 380 561)

Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment 2 691 366 - 2 691 366

Sale of investement property 570 000 - 570 000

Purchase of other intangible assets {1 150 797) - {1 160 797}

Proceeds from sale of financial assets (1491 921} 2 447 887 gb5 666

Cash flow from financing activifies

Repayment of other financlal liabilities {17 836 028) 1260 366 (16 556 663)

Financa lease payments (4 686 687) {70 088} {4 756 776)
(24 346 484) - (24 348 498)

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reciassified to conform lo changes In presentation in the current yeat:

The following amounts included in genaral expensas were raclassified to ensure a more accurate presentation of the general

expenditure tems.

Reclasslfication of general expenses 2018 praviously Reclassification 2018 restated
stated and prior period
cotrectiona

Audlitors remuneration 3 448 596 - 3 448 6595
Computer rental 706 301 - 706 301
Consulting fees 24 782 839 639 722 25 422 661
Consumables 1396020 {7 919) 1 388 110
Insurance 83 181 (35 542) 27 619
Fuel and oil 9 166 920 - 9 165 920
Postage and courler 616 394 - 616 394
Printing and stationery 1721828 - 1721828
Protactive clothing 883 416 8893 B9S2 309
Telephone and fax 1 460 368 187560 1479 118
Tralning 1 300 060 598 655 189886156
Travel ~ local 9149276 - 9 149 276
Insurance claims - own expendiiure 8105 114 (14 720) 8090 394
Membership fees - Salga 234 365 2634 560 2868915
Telephene exchange rental 366 677 - 366 677
Public relations, tourism and marketing 8142 084 100 139 8242223
Small tools and equipment 422 A80 (45 176} 377 304
Lease rantals on operating lease 1047 349 - 1 047 349
Bank administration fees 1693 6588 " 1693 588
Licenses and permiis 1029 040 10777 1030 817
Cultural day 976 432 - 076 432
Other expenses 21737 598 (3 655 993) 18 081 605

a8 448 914 252 036 98 700 950

* See Nole 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 20 June 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

Reclassification of employee cost 2018 previously Reclassification 2018 restated
stated and prior period
corrections

Salarios and wages 196 654 188 1709019 197 263 207
Sacial contributions 45 522 664 - 45 522 664
Travel allowance 11852 719 {6 269) 11 847 450
Overtime payments 25 477 677 - 25 477 677
Housing alfowance 3609018 (1 703 750} 1 905 268

282 016 266 - 282 016 268
* See Nele 62
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix A
June 2019

Schedule of external loans as at 30 June 2019

Balance at 30 Recelved Redsemad Balance at 30
June 2018 during the written off June 2019
period during the
period
Rand Rand Rand Rand
Annuity loans
DBSA - A0 000 000 - 40 000 000
DBSA 32 183025 - 1746 136 30 466 88¢
INCA 1963 417 " 1953 417 -
ABSA 18 340 756 - 1492 231 16 848 625
STANDARD BANK 4 565 172 - 4565 172 -
ACCRUED INTEREST 1 139 209 1000 - 1 140 209
58181679 A0 001000 9 726 956 88 455 623
Loan stock
STANDARD BANK 30000000 “ - 30 000 000
DEVELOPMENT BANK OF SA 15 000 000 - - 15 000 G0
AB 000 000 - - 45 000 000
Total external loans
7 Annulty loans 58 181 679 40 001000 8726 956 88 455 623
Loan stock 45 000 000 - - 45 Q00 000
103 181 579 40 001 000 9 726 956 133 455 623
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix E(1)
June 2019
Actual versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June
2019
Currentyear  Cuirent year
2019 2019
Act, Bal, Adjusted Varlance Explanation of Significant Variances
budget greater than 10% versus Budget
Rand Rand Rand Var
Revenue
Properiy rates 109 160 412 87 000 000 22160412 255 Refertanole 62
Service charges 486 306412 534 933 000 (48 626 588)  {9.1)
Properly rates ~ penalties 10 622 809 6 800 000 3222809 47.4 Referto nota 52
imposed
Rental of facliities and 2132 853 1772100 380763  20.4 Refertonots 62
aqulpment
Interest received - 17 826 053 17 000 000 826 0563 4.9
outstanding recaivables
Agency servicas D 254 073 51164 291 (41910 218)  (81.9)Refer to nole 52
Flnes 32189439 4 501 136 27 688 303  615,1 Referionole 52
Income receleved - SETA 2898 502 - 2 808 502 -
Licences and permits 1020 674 771000 249674 324 Refortonals 52
Government grants and 432 583 934 454 946 404 (22362 470)  (4.9)
stbsidies
Public contributions and 110 987 - 110987  100.0 Refartonate 52
donations
Other Income 27 801 807 11 735 046 15 866 761  135,2 Refer lo nole 62
Interast recelved - 217 388 - 217 388 -
investment
Interest receivad - other 9639 044 3 801 000 5838 044 153,86 Referto note 52
1140964387 1174 423877 (33459590) {(2.8)
Expenses
Employes cost (299024 073) (346 925 728) 47801665  (13.8)Relerto note 52
Remuneration of (27 050 526) (28 582 323) 1631797  (5.4)
councillors
Depreclation and (127793 108) (133 550 583) 5757 475 (4.3)
Impairment
Lease rentals on (509 839} (362 682) (157 157} 4458
operating lease
Impairments (4 399 272) - (4399 272) 100.0 Refertonole 52
Finance costs (11973 760) (26 448 b57) 14474797  (54.7)Refertonole 62
Debt Impairment (123718 883) (29 400 000} (94 318 683) 320.8 Referto nola 62
Collection costs (600 321} (1533 243) 932 822  (B0.8)Refer o nata 52
Repalrs and maintenance {42 157 906} (61 231 309) 19073403  (31.1)Refer lo nole 52
Bulk purchases (348443 869) (340 000 000} (8443889) 25
Confracted Sarvices (61 435 443) (67 066 372) 5630 929 (9.9)
Grants and subsidles paid (50 267 361) (31 441 077} (18 856 284) 60,0 Refer to note 52
General Expenses (119222 839) (135905 251) 16 772412 (12,3)Referbonota 52

(1206627 000) (1192527 125) (14 099 875) 1.2
Other ravenue and costs

Gain of loss on disposal (2 201 607) 2 600 000 {4701 607) (188.1)Refertonote 52
of assets and ffabilitias

(2 204 807) 2 500 000 (4 701 607) (188.1)Refer lo note 62

Net surplus/ (deficlt) for (67 864 220) (15 603 148) (52261072) 3349
the year
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Appendix E(2)

June 2019
Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June
2018
Additions Revised Variance Varla  Explanation of slgnificant
Budget nce variances from budget
Rand Rand Rand %
Municipality
Executive & Councll/Mayor and 6 059 6 069 - .
Council
Financse & AdminfFinance 11539356 4047816 (7 491 540) (185)The ovarspending ls due ta the gequisition of
pholocoplers machines and lablels through
finance lease
Planning and 48 502 248 891 2003890 81
Development/Economic
Davelopment/Plan
Health/Clinles 160 170 230 000 39830 17 Theprofectwas compleledwith theless
amount than budgeled
Housing 10686644 2500000 1433486 &7 Theakocationwas approved during the
adjustment budget in Fabruary and the the
confraclar was appointed In June which led
to the low spending on lhe profacts
Sport and Recreallon 349 001 348 000 (1004 -
Waste Water 15 131 7 366 (7 765) (105)Cfice equipment purchased thraugh non
Managemont/Sewerage capital taols vata
Road Transport/Roads 54106701 94621673 40424872 43 Thelow sponding Is due to ihe ronds thal
werte constracied on behslf of RAL and are

transfesred to RAL as grants and subsidies
Elsctricity /Electricity Distribution 36 071004 51943313 16872309 34 Tha low spending is due fo the delay In

manufaclueing of lransformers, switchgear
and aulo reclosers

103 482 438 153953018 50470680 33
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix Gb

Budgeted Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 Juns 2019

Gash flow from operating sclivittes

Regelpis

‘Faxailon ravenua

Sale of goods and services
Granla

Granis

Govammer? - caplial
Interest

Dhddeuis

Payments

Employas cosle

Suppliers

Finance cosls

Transfer of proparly plant aidd
equipment

Met eash Now fromfused operailng

activities

Cash flow from vesting activiiles

Receipts
Additions propasty, pant and
amripment

Procesds on dispesel of proparty, plant

and aquipment
Sale of kavestment properly

Decrease {Increass) in non-cument

[rvestments

Payments

Sala of Intanglbla assals
iricreasn in linandal assets

Met cash Hlow fromJused Investing

activilies

Cash flow from Ninancing activities

Recelpts
Short term loans

Borroving long termurefinancing
ncroasa (decrease} in consumer

daposis
Paymants

Repaymant of olbier inanchal tabiflies

Finence leass paymenis

Net sash Now framfused financing

aotivities

Net Increase/{tiecyease) In cash held
Gash/cash aquivalends al he yaar

begln:

Gashicash equlvalenls at the year

end:

2019/2018 2018

Odghnal Budgat Flnal Budget Aclual Varlance of Actual Aclual Restaled

Budget Adustmenis Outcoma Actual Outeome a5 Oulcome &a Audited

{i.t.o, 528 and Owcome *%of Final % of Orginal  Qulcorne

w3l of the afjainst Budget Budyet
MFHA) Adjustments
Budpot
fand Rand Rand Rend Rand Rand Rand Rand

83 800 000 - 93 800 000 89038 352 {4761 638} 95 % 95% 79408 159
806 476 673 (500000) 805978673 682169438 {23807 135) 99 % 93% 607320 701
454 310000 836404 464 046409 482 250 8R6 27 313 481 108 % 108 % 4D 008 283

- - - - ~ DIVI0 % DIVRD % -

- - - - - DIV % DIVK % -
20801 000 - 208014900 9639044 {11 181 058} 48 % 46 % 4 477 820

- - - - - DIV % DIV % -
(343617 085) « (343017085} (320421 444) 14 6058641 93 % 9 % (310842 238)
(689 678 883) -~  {BB9O7A083) (716362584) (26383801} 104 % 104 % (718838 836)
(24 448 657 - (2448 657) (10831 380) 13487 207 45% 48% (11107 853)
« - - 84 Bog 821 64 609 821 DViD % DIViO % 75720464
417 942 840 138409 §480r8362 17iB71172 53791820 46 % 146 % 119 246 080
{165 165 260) 50000000 (146 189 260) (167 728334} {22 6727 089) 116 % 89 % (126 493 419)
2 BOO 00D - 2 500000 878 891 {1 823 109} 2% W% 2691 386
- - - - - oIV % DIVIQ % 610000

. - - - - DIVIO % Divio % -
- - - {164 934} {154938) DIV % DV % (1150797)
{5 073 000) - {5073000) (4 637 696} 435 416 91 % 9 % 055 958
(197 772260)  £0000000 {147 772 260) (171242 086) (24 060 B46) 116 % B7 % (22426 882)

- - - - - DIV % DIVRR % -
0000000 {SODCOO00) 40000000 40800000 . 100 % 44% (18655 684)

- - - - - DIVID % PV % -

{8556 844) - 658044 (B725762)  (160.810) 102 % 102 % -
{1 600000 - 1500000} 4080841 6890841 (273)% (273)% {4766 776)
78943150 (50000000) 20843166 4 JG4 67D &§421 723 119 % A44% (21312439
{886 146} 138 404 (749742} 34393 806 36143727 {4 687}% {38811% (24494 284}
12342983 {4286021) 8 058 062 805G 265 19 100.00 % B5.27 % 32650619
11 455 837 {4150 617} 7308 320 42 460 240 35143920 551 % % 8 056 258
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